STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
6/19/2018 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE | ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Agenda for June 19, 2018.




10.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Minutes for February 6, 2018.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Minutes for May 15, 2018.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Minutes for May 21, 2018.

CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of update to Storey County Administrative Policies and

Procedures including 032 Records Management; 004 Travel; 035 Grant Approval; and
036 Grant Administration.

II For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $497,623.87 and

11

I\Y

accounts payable claims in the amount of $922,993.52.

For possible action, approval of first reading business license (submitted by the
Sheriff's Office):

A. US. Security Associates, Security Guard Service Provider, General Business
License, out of county 1320 Freeport Blvs., Sparks, NV 89431

B. Bonanza Saloon, Vincent Malfitano, General Business License, 27 N C St.
Virginia Clty, NV 89440

C. Delta Saloon, Vincent Malfitano, General Business License, 18 S C St. Virginia
City, NV 89440

For possible action, approval of business license first readings:

A. ADVANCED SYSTEMS LCL - General / 1020 W. 14 Mile Rd ~ Clawson, MI
B. AMERICAN POWER SOLUTIONS, LLC - General / 2995 Mill St ~ Reno, NV
C. KEN MORGAN - Contractor / 325 Neilson Rd ~ Reno, NV

D. MARIO LEPROVOST - Contractor / 1946 Wilder St ~ Reno, NV

E. PARLEVEL SYSTEMS INC - General / 114 E. Cevallos St ~ San Antonio, TX
F. VINEBURG MACHINING - General / 26 Stokes Dr ~ Carson City, NV

G. BENCH TEK SOLUTIONS, LLC - General / 525 Aldo Ave ~ Santa Clara, CA

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Acceptance of renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL)
and approval for payment from fiscal year 2018-2019 funds.




11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Authorize the County Manager to approve a contract with the United States
Geological Survey (USGS) up to $30,000 for the voluntary and limited monitoring of
groundwater levels and quality, aquifer conditions, and other geotechnical matters in
the Virginia City Highlands, Highland Ranches, and Virginia Ranches area of Storey
County during the 2018-19 fiscal year. This is a continuation of the prior year contract
for this purpose.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Request from NDOT to accept the annual work program.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution 18-497 per the request by the Director of the State of Nevada
Department of Business and Industry that the County transfer the amount of
$215,227.18 in tax-exempt private activity bond volume cap allocated to the County
for year 2018 for the purpose of assisting in the financing or refinancing of a portion of
the costs of (i) improvements to and equipping of a facility to be used for converting
municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products located on an approximately 19.4
acre site located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, Storey
County, Nevada and/ or (ii) improvements to and equipping of a facility used for
preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located on an
approximately 10.0 acre site located at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County,
Nevada. The County may transfer such tax-exempt private activity bond volume cap
to the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry pursuant
to Section 348A.180 of the NAC.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possibly appoint Joe Curtis, Candace Wheeler, Cherie Nevin, Sierra Scott
and Marshall McBride to sit on the nonprofit board for Pipers Opera House.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Appointment of Tom Minkler to serve on the Canyon General Improvment District to
fill the unexpired term left vacant by the passing of Ralph Trotter.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Canvass of the Primary Election results held in and for Storey County, Nevada on
June 12, 2018.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD




18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Resolution 18-490 Transfer of funds from the 474 Fire District to the Storey County
Community Development Department in the amount of $195,000.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Resolution 18-496 Augment 474 Fire District Mutual Aide in the amount of $405,000.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of resolution 18-491, transfer of funds from the Storey County Contingency
Fund to the Piper's Opera House Fund in the amount of $67,000.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Resolution 18-492 Augment Storey County General Fund and transfer to Storey
County Capital Projects Fund in the amount of $2,000.000.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of a transfers of appropriation within General Fund Departments and
Special Revenue Funds pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in the amount of $633,300.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Resolution 18-493 Augmentation of the Storey County Justice Court Fund in the
amount of $7,000.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Resolution 18-494 Augmentation of the Storey County Indigent Fund in the amount of
$5,500.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Acceptance of a transfer of funds from the 474 Fire Distict to the Storey County
Development Department and distributions as recommended in the amount of
$195,000.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Resolution 18-495 Transfer of funds from the Storey County Contingency Fund to the
Virginia Divide Sewer in the amount of $208,300.




28.

29.

30.

3L

32.

33.

34.

35.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Acceptance of a transfer of funds from the Storey County Contingency Fund to the
Virginia Divide Sewer and distributions as recommended in the amount of $208,300.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Transfer of Appropriations in the Storey County Water Fund in the amount of
$52,000.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of first reading for On-Sale and Off-Sale liquor
licenses & Cabaret license for Bonanza Saloon, 27 N C St, Virginia City, NV
89440. Applicant is Vincent Malfitano.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of first reading for On-Sale and Off-Sale liquor
licenses & Cabaret license for Delta Saloon, 18 S. C St, Virginia City, NV
89440. Applicant is Vincent Malfitano.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Business License second readings:

A.JACKSON QUALITY DRYWALL - Contractor / 1560 Willow Cr Ln ~
Gardnerville, NV

B. APOLLO CONSTRUCTION, INC - Contractor / 1133 W. Columbia Dr ~
Kennewick, WA

C. EDGE COMMUNICATION INC - Contractor / 2955 Hwy 40 W. ~ Verdi, NV

D. HENKEL - General / 32100 Stephenson Hwy ~ Madison Heights, MI

E. CLIMATE PROS OF NORTHERN NV - Contractor / 10090 Orchard Hill De ~
Reno, NV '

F. RELEVATE, LLC - General / 2161 W. Enfield Way ~ Chandler, AZ

G. TIM BLAKELY IMAGING SOLUTIONS - Home Business / 2090 Lousetown Rd ~
VCH, NV

H. AIR TREATMENT CORP - General / 640 N. Puente St ~ Brea, CA

I. PRECISION MANHOLES, INC - Contractor / 770 E. Main St #321 ~ Lehi, UT

]. PACIFIC CONSOLIDATED OF NV INC - General / 2615 Branson Ave ~ Plano, TX




K. GQS - GLOBAL QUALITY SUPPLY LLC - General / 333 H. St Ste. 5024 ~ Chula
Vista, CA

L. RICKS AEC REPROGRAPHICS - General / 488 Kietzke Ln ~ Reno, NV

M. CRYSATL BARHAM - Handyman / 234 Prospector Rd ~ Dayton, NV

N. A & A TOWING, INC - General / 1395 E. 4th St ~ Reno, NV

O. MECHATECH INC- General / 435-1 Fuzinomori ~ Hikone-Shi, Japan

P. LELY TANK AND WASTE SOLUTIONS, LLC / General - 3033 Waltham ~ Sparks,
NV

Q. ARC HEALTH & WELLNESS CNT - General / 82 E. Glendale ~ Reno, NV

R. ARC WORK PLACE SVC, LLC- General / 82 E. Glendale ~ Reno, NV

S. ALFA LAVAL INC - General / 5400 International Trade Dr ~ Richmond, VA

T. APPLIED ENGINEERING INC - General / 3300 Fiechtner Dr ~ Fargo, ND

U. CENTURY PLASTICS LLC - General / 15030 23 Mi Rd ~ Shelby Twp, MI

V. CYBERTROL ENGINEERING LLC - General /2950 Xenium Ln ~ Mpls, MN

W. ELECTRICAL SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 2710 Valley View Dr ~ Reno, NV

X. MK NORTH AMERICA, INC - General / 105-125 Highland PK Dr ~ Bloomfield,
CT

Y. PFM INTEGRATORS INC- General / 2726 Autumn Woods Dr ~ Chaska, MN

Z. AMUNDSON ROOFING INC- Contractor / 8995 Terabyte Dr ~ Reno, NV
AA. SAFETY ON SITE - General / 316 California Ave ~ Reno, NV

BB. NAISBITT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 4 Hardy Dr ~ Sparks, NV

36. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
37. ADJOURNMENT
NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all




bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 6/14/2018; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By MM%MZL_—
Vanessa Stephens Cletk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1.

2.

Title: Approval of the Minutes for February 6, 2018.

Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775-847-0969

Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

_@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk
____ County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

#4




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2018 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman County
Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, District
Attorney Anne Langer, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Security
Director Melanie Keener, Recorder Jen Chapman, Planning Director/ Administrative Officer Austin
Osborne, IT Director James Deane, Project Manager Mike Northan, Tourism Director Deny Dotson

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for February 6, 2018

County Manager Whitten asked to have items 8,9, and 10 heard prior to item 6, Staff Reports, and to
move item 25 to follow item 17.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for February 6, 2018 with changes noted, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vaote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)




4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for December 5, 2017 .Public
Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Minutes for December 5, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

5. CONSENT AGENDA:

I For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $1,242,218.38 and accounts
payable claims in the amount of $1,767,129.48.

II For possible action, approval of First reading for General Business License - Silver Dollar
Saloon, 15 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Stephanie Collins.

III For possible action, LICENSING BOARD FIRST READINGS:

A. CALIFORNIA DRILLING & BLASTING CO, INC - Contractor / 525 Mission St ~

Pasadena, CA

B. SIERRA SHADING SOLUTION INC - Contractor / 685 Abbay Way ~ Reno, NV

C. INFINITY AUTOMATION - General / 561 Keystone Ave ~ Reno, NV

D. COPPER ENVIRONMENTAL CONSUTLING, INC - Professional / 406 E. Park Ave ~

Anaconda, Mt

E. TRANE US, INC - Contractor / 4145 Del Mar Ave ~ Rocklin, CA

F. VITAL SYSTEMS CORPORATION - General / 4999 Air center Cir ~ Reno, NV

G. LITTLE CITY PIZZERIA, LLC - 2632 Alessandro Ct ~ Sparks, NV

H. T E LARSON INC - General / 1696 S. Virginia St ~ Reno, NV

I. TEAM INDUSTRIAL SERVICES, INC - General / 13131 Dairy Ashford ~ Sugarland, TX

J. INDUSTRIEMONTAGE MEHNERT - General / 7 Bergstrabe ~ Muelsen, Germany

K. FOOD EVOULUTION: DBA - General / 1290 E. Plumb Ln ~ Reno, NV

L. LAPP USA INC - General / 6975 S. Decatur Blvd ~ Las Vegas, NV

M. CHARTWELL STAFFING SOLUTIONS - General / 5220 Longley Lane ~ Reno, NV

N.SAVAGE WELDING SUPPLY,DBA - General / 265 Pompe Way ~ Reno, NV

O. PLASMO USA LLC - General / 44160 Plymouth Blvd ~ Plymouth, MI

P. SIXCLEAR LIMITED LIABILITY CO - General / 500 E 4th St ~ Austin, TX

Q. HIGH CALIBER GLASS - Contractor / 1220 E. Greg St ~ Reno, NV

R. THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS COMPANY - General / 1286 Disk Dr ~ Sparks, NV

S. HD SUPPLY CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY, LTD / General / 501 West Church St ~ Orlando,

FL

T. EXPEDITORS BY LINDALE, INC - General / 638 N. Eckhoff St ~ Orange, CA

U. TENANT SALES AND SERVICE - General / 701 N. Lilac Dr ~ Minneapolis, MN

V. ORKIN - General / 9410 Prototype Dr ~ Reno, NV

W. THE RYAN COMPANY - Contractor / 15 Commerce Way ~ Norton, MA

X. PROAXIA CONSULTING K K. - General / Osaka, Japan

Y. CTOU INC - General / 5209 W. 700 S. ~ Salt Lake City, UT

Z. ELECTRIC BLUE ELEPHANT - General / 136 Moran ~ Reno, NV

Public Comment:
None




Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for February 6, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of Public Works Director resignation

District Attorney Anne Langer explained the Public Works Director has agreed to tender his
resignation in lieu of termination, in exchange for signing a full release of any and all legal or
administrative claims which could be brought against the County and payment to the Public Works
Director in the sum of $5,000.

Mr. Whitten: Staff recommends approval of this item.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ move to accept the Public Works Director’s resignation in lieu of termination as described
in paragraph 4 of the Staff Report, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of guidelines for
considering and approving special assessment district projects pursuant to NRS 271.700 through
271.730, including a special assessment district for the construction of an effluent pipeline to the
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.

Mr. Whitten explained the need to adopt the guidelines. Numbers were calculated in a way that
could not be found to meet the parameters in SB1. It is possible that a special assessment
improvement district be developed. This could be a good solution for that area - basically the
property tax owners would carry a special assessment on their parcels. Special counsel has drafted
guidelines that could be used for any special assessment district being considered.

Staff recommends adoption of these guidelines.

Public Comment:

Nicole Barde, Storey County resident: Clarified that under these guidelines, the County is not liable
for any default that might occur should something happen to the bond that is essentially backed by
the County.

Marty Johnson, JNA Consulting Group, explained the guidelines in response to Ms. Barde’s
statement:
o The guidelines do not require the County to take any action in the future.
e Security for the bonds will be the levied assessments and a reserve fund funded out of the
bond proceeds covering one year’s interest.




« The county does not intend to pledge the general fund or taxing authority for these types of
transactions.

e Only governmental projects allowable under NRS 271 can be financed.

o Assessment cannot exceed the amount of the benefit received by the parcel from the
completion of the project or the parcels market value.

e Appraised value of the parcel must be as least 3.5 times the assessment.

¢ Bond term will not exceed 20 years.

Ms. Barde: Does the County own the pipeline? Who else besides TRI would benefit from these
guidelines?

Chairman McBride: The GID (governmental agency) will own the pipeline. There would be
guidelines if (for example) a redevelopment district was wanted in Virginia City. This is a template
going forward.

Motion: 1, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, move to approve adoption of the Storey County Developer
Special Assessment Guidelines, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGulffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Interlocal Agreement for Traffic Signal
Maintenance between Storey County and Carson City.

Mr. Whitten explained that Carson City Public Works currently provides signal maintenance services
via inter-local agreement to Douglas County and Lyon County.

e Travel distance is 50 miles from Carson City Public Works.

e Carson City is willing to enter into an agreement to service the new traffic signal at USA
Parkway and Electric Avenue.

e This will be the first traffic light in Storey County.

e Carson City will provide labor, equipment, and materials and invoice Storey County at the
rates in effect at the time of service. The agreement is time and materials based. Preventative,
response and technical support services delivered will be under the direction and management
of Storey County.

e Services include preventative maintenance, response maintenance, and technical support.

e Storey County will maintain overall responsibility for the operation and maintenance of the
traffic signal, provide management of response maintenance and emergency incidents,
budgeting, purchasing and contract administration, planning and procedures, approve
configuration, timing and policy for operation of traffic control devices, provide traffic control
when required and perform utility line locations.

James Jacklett, Operations Manager for Control Systems, Carson City Public Works, reviewed Carson
City’ responsibilities under this contract.
o In the event of severe damage to the traffic signals, they will work with Storey County and
other agencies to restore order and reconstruction.
e Cameras will not be included at this time. NDOT is installing conduit that should eventually
enable cameras. It is NDOT's signal.




This is a stand-alone signal so the timing is very straight forward.

Mr. Jacklett discussed the configuration and timing of the signal.

This is a mast-arm signal with in-ground sensors.

Carson City Public Works is happy to partner with Storey County. They provide these services
to other counties.

Public Comment:

None

Mr. Whitten thanked Carson City Public Works and recommended approval of this interlocal
agreement.

Motion: I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey, move for approval of the Interlocal Agreement for Traffic
Signal Maintenance between Storey County and Carson City, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice

Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

6. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports:
IT Director James Deane:

The new data center and fiber is 100% operational.

Substantial progress has been made on both the encode and Eagle recorder software
installations.

SSL certificates are being done today.

BETA testing will be done in the next three weeks.

Recorder Jen Chapman:

They have been very busy. A project team has developed a project chart for ERP system
implementation, a big step to insure the system is user-friendly and that all departments
improve business processes.

IT has up-graded individual workstations.

This program requires all workstations to be on the domain.

Moving ahead with encode on the financial side.

Some training has begun, including video training.

A data pull is being done on the Eagle-Tyler side.

Mike Northan, Project Coordinator:

Clerk/ Treasurer’s Office has been moved to a temporary building located in the Courthouse
north parking lot.

Final estimate cost should be submitted to the insurance company this week for work in the
Clerk’s Office in the Courthouse.

A plaster-master has been contacted to work on damaged plaster in the Judge’s chambers.
One chimney is complete, the other two will be finished by the end of the week. The new
sheets of roofing will be installed beginning next Monday. Looking at two weeks for
completion of the roof.

A local contractor has submitted a proposal to address some of the work at the Highlands
mailboxes.




Community Chest/Library Director Eric Schoen:
o Elevators have been installed in the Community Center. Completion is expected in one to one
and a half months. There will be a soft opening with a grand opening to be held possibly on
June 1st,
e The 9t Annual Fundraising Concert will be April 13t at Pipers Opera House featuring
Grammy award winning, dobro master Jerry Douglas.

Wastewater Project Coordinator Mike Nevin:

e If weather holds, there is a chance of the project running ahead of schedule; as of Friday it is
over 32% complete.

e The project is through the Savage Mine Hoist site on E Street which required extensive
archaeological research. Once the final report is complete the goal is to share the information
with the public.

e Mr. Nevin gave an overview of the streets that have been completed to date. Some paving has
been completed. The rest of Washington should be finished this week.

o F Street will remain closed for the rest of the week - the project is crossing the second portion
of the railroad tracks.

¢ There have been very few issues and the public has been cooperative.

e Photos and information are on the website.

Austin Osborne, Planning Director/ Administrative Officer:

e This is the time for the health insurance renewal period. We are working with LP Insurance,
reviewing the numbers, the claims ratio, and other data - all of which shows the County is not
in very good condition with payout versus the premiums. Options are being discussed
including what would be a responsible, good plan under the current conditions with this
year’s upside-down claims ratio.

e A task force of employees, and others, will be formed to review findings, conditions and
possible solutions.

o Itislikely the County will remain on the HSA high deductible plan.

« Work is being done on staffing budget. A full-time study of positions in other counties is
being conducted for comparison. Information will be used to adjust positions, salaries, and
such, if necessary, in the next budget cycle.

Hugh Gallagher, Comptroller:
e Informed the Board that we will have to announce to the Department of Taxation by February
28t if we intend to change the Storey County tax rate. At this point, he recommends leaving
the tax rate where it is.

Manager Pat Whitten:
o+ New playground equipment for Louise Peri Park has arrived. Installation is being
coordinated.

e The County is working closely with Ames Construction. Ames is performing certain work
outside the contract because it makes sense.
o The District Court Judges have requested that the Justice Court have its own facility. The
logical option is to construct a building adjacent and on the north side of the Courthouse.
e The Court requires about 3,000 square feet. It has been recommended to build a two story
building even though the second floor may not be used at this time.
6




o Shaheen-Beauchamp, contractor for the Community Chest building, has quoted ball park
figures of $140/ square foot for construction of the “shell” building - just under $200 with
tenant improvements on the ground floor.

o The County’s architect, Pete Dube, will be working on a conceptual design acceptable to SHPO
and with Judge Herrington on ground-floor plans.

e The group Blockchains has purchased all property left in TRI. Mr. Whitten said he is very
anxious to be working with this group.

Justice of the Peace Eileen Herrington:
e Thank you to everyone who has worked on the relocation project.

7. BOARD COMMENT (No Action-No Public Comment):
Commissioner Gilman:
e This week will see the finalization of the Blockchains transaction, with a purchase of 67,125
acres. All started with the Google purchase.
e May see some construction at Google later this year.
» Will be attending a meeting this afternoon covering blockchain technology.
o This is a tremendous financial opportunity for Storey County. The County is now recognized
on the national stage as the epicenter of creative technology in the world.

Vice-Chairman McGuffey:
e Recently toured Thrive Markets facility in TRI. Returned items, in un-opened boxes, are going
to be donated to the Senior Center and Community Chest. Nature’s Way also donates.
e Thank you to Lance Gilman for donating $1,600 for the purchase of a wishing well to be used
for donations at the Fourth Ward School.

Chairman McBride:
o The March 6t Commission meeting will be cancelled. Commissioners will be attending the
NACO Conference in Washington DC.

Chairman McBride called for recess at 11:10 AM
Meeting reconvened at 11:17 AM

Chairman McBride noted there is a time restriction for today’s meeting. Staff recommends that Items
11, 13, and 14 be continued to February 20, 2018.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to continue Items 11, 13 and 14 to February 20, 2018, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Review of the 2nd Quarter 2018 Unaudited Budget to Actual

Continued to February 20, 2018.




12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of a business impact
statement, prepared pursuant to NRS 237.090, to address the proposed impact of an amendment of
Storey Co. code 3.60 clarifying the application of the transient lodging tax to transient lodging in
Storey County.

Tourism Director Deny Dotson: Looking at properties in TRI, there is a concern regarding the
extended-stay properties and that they may be exempt from the 28 day limit.

 This opens up issues of residency, voter registration, schools, eviction notices, etc.

o The District Attorney has suggested revising the lodging ordinance.

e A business impact study is required taking the Department of Taxation guidelines and

notifying all affected properties of the potential lodging change.

o New language has been submitted to all lodging properties.

e The Silverland Hotel suggested certain edits.

o The Tahoe House Hotel opposed any changes.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis:

« A business impact statement is used to determine a new rule’s impact on businesses.

« Proposed changes do not add or increase any fees or regulations but provides a path for
appeal of a transient lodging audit and clarifies what the transient lodging tax is with little
effect on businesses.

« The maximum length of stay is less than 30 days. Longer than that, the person becomes a
tenant subject to landlord-tenant laws.

+ A tenancy relationship is not allowed in an industrial zoned area.

o The ordinance impresses upon the lodging industry that the maximum length of stay is less
than 30 days.

« If someone wants to stay longer, they have to re-register and occupy a different room.

Public Comment:
Sam Toll, Gold Hill resident: Clarified the change that is being proposed and its application to
lodging taxes. If there is an extended stay, is the VCTC not getting the tax?

Mr. Loomis: They are getting the money. The problem is if there is an extended-stay hotel in TR,
and the person decides to stay (past the 29 days) without re-registering, this becomes a landlord-
tenant relationship. This is not authorized in the industrial zone.

Mr. Toll: This prevents the VCTC from getting the room tax.
Mr. Whitten: 30 days or longer there would be no tax.

Motion: Approve business impact statement prepared pursuant to NRS 237.090, to address the
proposed impact of an amendment of Storey County code 3.60 defining transient lodging tax with a
new rule ordinance, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Interlocal agreement providing the terms and conditions
for the use of Piper's Opera House by the Storey County School District and the display of historic
personal property within Pipers belonging to the School District.

8




Continued to February 20, 2018.

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Adoption of Resolution 18-482 setting forth a procedure
by which a business may object to the adoption of a "rule" by Storey County which impacts the
business.

Continued to February 20, 2018.
15. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading for On-Sale Liquor License - Silver Dollar
Saloon, 15 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Stephanie Collins.

Sheriff Antinoro: This is the first reading. Nothing has been disclosed to date that would preclude
applicant from getting this license. Approval is recommended.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve first reading for On-Sale Liquor License - Silver Dollar Saloon,
15 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Stephanie Collins, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=4)

17. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading for General Business License - CCW
Instructor. Applicant is James Wes Francis, owner of First Shot, 176 Ring Rd., Dayton NV.

Sheriff Antinoro stated the Mr. Francis has passed all of the necessary qualifications to receive the
license. Approval is recommended.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve the second reading for General Business License for CCW
Instructor James Wes Francis, owner of First Shot, 176 Ring Rd., Dayton NV 89403, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of Ordinance No. 18-279 amending Storey
County Code Title 16 Subdivisions to adopt new codes for land subdivisions, parcel maps, division of
land into large parcels, surety requirements, land readjustments, boundary line adjustments, and
reversions to acreage/lot consolidations. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person may
complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement supporting or opposing the

9




proposed amendments to the county code. Additional information may be obtained from the
Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

Austin Osborne presented this item, an update to Title 16 Subdivisions. A review was presented at
the First Reading. This is an ordinance regulating subdivisions of property. Anaddendum is
presented today regarding dedication of water to Water Resources of the State of Nevada.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: We're going to issue water rights to the Nevada Division of Water
Resources?

Mr. Osborne: Not quite. If a parcel is created, NRS requires that two acre feet of water is dedicated
for the created parcel. The water can be dedicated to Storey County who manages, watches, and
reports it to the Division of Water Resources each year - this can be difficult if the rules in the reports
are not followed. Or, it can be dedicated to the Division of Water Resources who does everything
with the State Engineer’s office. This is recommended as the County does not have the staff needed
to do this. There would be no benefit to the County or the citizens if the County took care of this.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey motion to approve Second Reading of Ordinance No. 18-279
amending Storey County Code Title 16 Subdivisions to adopt new codes for land subdivisions, parcel
maps, division of land into large parcels, surety requirements, land readjustments, boundary line
adjustments, and reversions to acreage/lot consolidations. Mr. Osborne added this finding: What
you are approving conforms to the existing Storey County Zoning Ordinance, the 2016 Storey County
Master Plan, the Planning Commission’s recommendation for approval with the addendum that is
outside the Planning Commission and the Nevada Revised Statutes, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second Reading of Ordinance No. 18-278 amending Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning, including Chapter 17.56 Planned Unit Developments to revise the
procedure for approval and standards of planned unit developments. In addition to provisions of the
NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement
supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance.
Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning
@storeycounty.org.

Mr. Osborne: This is essentially an ordinance exclusive to Planned Unit Development ordinance
17.56.

Public Comment:

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Asked if one of these ordinances is legalizing bestiality. This
is illegal with both the Feds and the State. Language in the ordinance talks about an adult
merchandise concern that allows for distribution of materials pertaining to such practices. If
approved, that particular ordinance with that definition would be against State and Federal law. Ms.

10




Barde does not recall which ordinance this is in but bestiality is in the definition of what is called
“adult merchandising” and it is illegal.

Mr. Osborne: This does not deal with this ordinance (18-278). This can be addressed when the
(actual) ordinance is addressed.

Commissioner Gilman leaves the meeting at 11:40 AM

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey motion to approve Second Reading of Ordinance No. 18-278 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning, including Chapter 17.56 Planned Unit Developments to revise
the procedure for approval and standards of planned unit developments. Mr. Osborne added the
finding: If approved it is not conforming or conflicting with existing Storey County Zoning
Ordinance, the 2016 Storey County Master Plan, the Planning Commission’s recommendation or the
Nevada Revised Statutes, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman
McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second Reading of Ordinance No. 18-280 amending Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning including chapters 17.03 Administrative Provisions, 17.10 Definitions,
17.12 General Provisions, 17.15 Public Zone, 17.24 Agriculture Zone, 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.30
Commercial-Residential Zone, 17.32 Forestry Zone, 17.34 Light Industrial Zone, 17.35 Heavy
Industrial Zone, 17.40 Estate Zone, 17.44 Special Planning Review Zone; and 17.84 Signs and
Billboards. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or
Planning Commission a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county
code and zoning ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department
at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

Mr. Osborne: A question was raised regarding adult material. There are no changes. All existing
adult material allowances, were reviewed by the District Attorney’s office and outside counsel Morris
to insure there is alignment with NRS and allowed uses. There is nothing about bestiality. If there is
an issue, adult related language will be addressed with the District Attorney’s Office to insure
compliance.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde: Read from the ordinance chapter regarding adult merchandising. Being in conflict
with State law, doesn’t it require change?

Mr. Osborne: That language is in the existing zoning and is not part of the changes. This will be
reviewed with the District Attorney’s Office and will be revisited if need be. Not aware that this is in

conflict with State law.

Chairman McBride: If this had been brought up before it could have been researched. If there is an
issue, this can come back and it can be changed.

Mr. Loomis: If State law makes bestiality illegal, County ordinance is not going to make it legal. Itis
illegal under State law regardless of what the County ordinance states.

11




Sam Toll, Gold Hill resident: To clarify - this ordinance does not change, alter, or modify any
existing qualifications, zoning, or delineations of any existing property. No properties are going to
change?

Mz, Osborne: Correct.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey motion to approve Second Reading of Ordinance No. 18-280 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including chapters 17.03 Administrative Provisions, 17.10
Definitions, 17.12 General Provisions, 17.15 Public Zone, 17.24 Agriculture Zone, 17.28 Commercial
Zone, 17.30 Commercial-Residential Zone, 17.32 Forestry Zone, 17.34 Light Industrial Zone, 17.35
Heavy Industrial Zone, 17.40 Estate Zone, 17.44 Special Planning Review Zone; and 17.84 Signs and
Billboards. Mr. Osborne read the finding: What is approved today does not conflict with Storey
County Zoning ordinance, the 2016 Storey County Master Plan, the Planning Commission’s
recommendation with modifications shown in the first reading, NRS. This item will be discussed
with the District Attorney to insure the item brought up in Public Comment is in conformance with
NRS, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman
McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

21. DISCUSSION//POSSIBLE ACTION: Second Reading of Ordinance No. 18-281 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.06 Nonconforming Uses pertaining to
legally nonconforming uses and adding language pertaining to substandard development. In
addition to provisions of the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning
Commission a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and
zoning ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-
847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

Mr. Osborne recommends approval of Ordinance No. 18-281.

Public Comment: ;
Sam Toll: Asked if any of the subsequent ordinance changes affect properties.

Mr. Osborne: There are no zone changes of land occurring in today’s meeting.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey motion to approve Second Reading of Ordinance No. 18-281,
amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.06 Nonconforming Uses
pertaining to legally nonconforming uses and adding language pertaining to substandard
development. Mr. Osborne added: what is being approved today conforms to the 2016 Storey
County Master Plan, the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commission’s recommendation, and NRS,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second Reading of Ordinance No. 18-282 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions to revise the
procedure for the expiration of development permits. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any
person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement supporting or

12




opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance. Additional
information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning
@storeycounty.org.

Austin Osborne recommends approval of Ordinance No. 18-282

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey motion to approve Second Reading of Ordinance No. 18-282 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions to revise the
procedure for the expiration of development permits. Mr. Osborne added: what is being approved
today conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan, the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning
Commission’s recommendation, and NRS Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second Reading of Ordinance No. 18-276 amending Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning, to provide for design criteria and improvement standards for certain
types of development and a design review process with review by the planning director with appeal
to the planning commission and board. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person may
complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement supporting or opposing the
proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance. Additional information may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

Austin Osborne recommends of approval of Ordinance No. 18-276.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner Jack McGuffey motion to approve Second Reading of Ordinance No. 18-276 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning, to provide for design criteria and improvement standards for
certain types of development and a design review process with review by the planning director with
appeal to the planning commission and board, Mr. Osborne added: what is being approved today
conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan, the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commission’s
recommendation, and NRS, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded
by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

24, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution No. 18-474 to the Board of County
Commissioners with recommendation by the Planning Commission adopting a design criteria and
improvement manual setting forth certain development and design standards and guidelines for
residential and non-residential planned unit developments, multi-family residential complexes, and
other uses. This item was continued at the 01/16/2018 board meeting.

Mr. Osborne recommends approval of Resolution No. 18-474.

13




Public Comment:
None

Motion: I, Commissioner Jack McGuffey motion to approve Resolution No. 18-474 adopting a design
criteria and improvement manual setting forth certain development and design standards and
guidelines for residential and non-residential planned unit developments, multi-family residential
complexes, and other uses, Mr. Osborne added: this approval conforms to the 2016 Storey County
Master Plan, the Planning Commission’s recommendation, and NRS, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Business Licenses Second Readings:

A. INTERNATIONL FLOW TECHNOLOGIES, INC - Contractor / 30230 Los Alamos Rd ~ Murrieta,
CA

B. CONCRETE NORTH, INC - Contractor / 10274 Iron Rock Way ~ Elk Grove, CA

C. ENCORE - Contractor / 14830 Kivett Ln ~ Reno, NV

D. FREMOUW ENVIRONMENT SERVICES, INC - Transportation / 6940 Tremont Rd ~ Dixon, CA
E. MIKE HICKEY CONSTRUCTION, DBA: 3M ROOFING / Contractor / 3046 Achilles Dr ~ Reno,
NV

F. THE JAMO TRUCK - General / 1416 Canyon Creek Rd ~ Reno, NV

County Manager Whitten said Community Development recommended approval of all items A.
through F.

Motion: Imove to approve Items A. through F, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

27. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Sam Toll, Gold Hill resident: Read the following statement:
On January 13t, I wrote a preamble to Nicole Barde’s VCTC Meeting report. In the preamble [ wrote
the following report:

“My sources tell me that Jolcover’s replacement was necessary because the Storey County
District Attorney’s office (finally) acted on the blatant conflict of interest that Mr. Jolcover’s seat on
the board of the VCTC represented. For the past three years, Jolcover has enjoyed a healthy payday
because the VCTC leases the land, where the camel races and the rodeo happen, from Jolcover. In
addition to the fat stacks that Scott got from the County in lease payments, he shrewdly renegotiated
his deal to include a .60(+/-) per ticket surcharge for everyone paying to set foot on his leased land. 1
guess they figured once they leased the land for a couple of years and paid to improve the land and
then buy the land from him at the new and improved price, somebody like me would holler.”

In this paragraph, I made reference to things that are factually incorrect. I stated that Mr. Jolcover is

enjoying a healthy payday and pocketing fat stacks from the land he is leasing to VCTC and the
county. This is not accurate.

14




Yesterday I spoke with Mr. Jolcover and he explained these properties are owned by two companies
in which he is a minority owner and a 50% owner in, respectively. These properties were purchased
in 1993. Mr. Jolcover’s companies have made material improvements to them over the years. Mr.
Jolcover and his partners made additional improvements to the properties when the county began
leasing them to make them more useful to the needs of the events.

Mr. Jolcover explained the companies negotiated a .60 per ticket surcharge to cover the cost of the
shortfall that exists because the lease payments received do not cover the property taxes that are
incurred due to the updated assessed value of the property. In this case, the fact that the county is in
negotiation for purchase of these properties and the fact that the purchase may result in a profit for
the companies that own the property, is completely appropriate.

Mr. Jolcover is a long time resident of Storey County and has been in the real estate business in
Nevada since 1975. He is a resident of Storey County for many years - actually lives in Carson City
County (I found out later) and his reputation is one of being a professional businessman with a love
of the history of the Comstock and a man who gives back to the community. He routinely conducts
tours of his operating stamp mill to school children at no charge to kindle the same love of history in
them that resides in him.

Those of you who read The Teller know my passion for writing about things that are controversial in
a style and manner that is at times both colorful and thought ire-provoking. Ihave done my best to
carefully research and document facts that form the basis of what I write. In this case, my remarks
and characterization of Mr. Jolcover were not factually accurate - in this case, I did not fully research
my statements before I pushed this piece. I did not contact Mr. Jolcover to confirm my source of this
information. This was both irresponsible and unprofessional.

As a practicing writer, community activist and aspiring journalist, it is necessary to be indifferent to
the impact of what you write. The fact that someone may not like what you write as it puts them in
the crosshairs of daylight and public opinion, cannot be a factor in striving for making the County a
better place for everyone. It is, however, unacceptable to be indifferent to the facts and the truth.

In this case, I caused Mr. Jolcover and his family attention that was unfair and undeserved, and for
that, I am sorry.

Mr. Toll reminded the Commissioners that the impact of his statement would (inaudible) if public
comment were held at the beginning of the meeting.

28. ADJOURNMENT
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 12:02 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

>

4

AN S )
,A AT e A
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer

15




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of Time Required: 0-15 min
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1.

2.

Title: Approval of the Minutes for May 15, 2018.

Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775-847-0969

Staff Summary: Attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

_@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk
__ County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, MAY 15, 2018 10:00 A.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
MINUTES

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, County
Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, District Attorney Anne Langer,
Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Administrative Officer/Planning Director
Austin Osborne, Fire Chief Jeff Nevin, Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo, Public Works Director Jason
Weizrbicki, Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin, Project Manager Mike Northan, Virginia
City Senior Center Director Stacey Gilbert, Community Chest Director Erik Schoen, Management
Analyst Jennifer McCain, Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis, Tourism Director Deny
Dotson, Wastewater Project Manager Mike Nevin

1. REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for May 15, 2018

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for May 15,2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)




4. CONSENT AGENDA:
I For possible action, approval of business licenses first readings:

A. SIERRA HOME SVC, LLC dba: MR.APPLIANCE - General / 795 Jacks Valley Rd ~
CC, NV
B. SA RECYCLING LLC - General / 2411 N. Glassell St ~ Orange, CA
C. MARVIN E. DAVIS & ASSOCIATES - General / 12000 Old Virginia Rd ~ Reno, NV
D. GRANT ROBINSON CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 5935 Quail Rock Ln ~ Reno,
NV
E. PRIME STORAGE LLC dba: PRIME TRAILER - General/ 10400 E. 102nd Ave ~
Henderson, NV
F. MARUISANGYO CO., LTD - General / 42 Enokise ~ Japan
G. HOSE & FITTINGS, ETC - General / 1811 Enterprise Blvd ~ West Sacramento, CA
H. VINCO, INC - Contractor / 18995 Forest Blvd ~ Forest Lake, MN
. MISUMI USA, INC - General / 1717 N. Penny Ln ~ Schaumburg, IL
J. CALIFORNIA HYDRONICS CORP - General / 2293 Tripaldi Way ~ Hayward, CA
K. CALNEVA TOWERS - General / 4690 Longley Ln ~ Reno, NV
L. FRAME ARCHITECTURE - General / 14308 Swift Creek Ct ~ Reno, NV
M. MECHATECH INC - General / 435-1 ~ Fuzinomori, Japan

I For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $901,827.05 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $1,270,359.76.

III For possible action, approval of treasurer's affidavit of mailing of past due notices for all
delinquent parcels.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve the Consent Agenda for May 15, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports:

Mr. Whitten introduced the key members present from the USDA, Farr West Engineering, and Ames
Construction.

Project Coordinator for the Wastewater Improvement project Mike Nevin gave a slide-show
presentation and update of this project. Mr. Nevin discussed a lot of the findings and showed photos
of discoveries made during construction. Historic discoveries are cataloged.

e Mr. Nevin reviewed additional work that will be done under a change order to the area north
of the fairgrounds over to and under highway to the Detention Center and in the surrounding
area.

e This is a massive project that is 60% complete.

e The project may finish ahead of schedule in September or October.




A lot of challenges have been created due to the way water and sewer lines had been installed
many years ago.

There is a company that will be leveling manhole covers throughout town today.

Thank you to Public Works Director Jason Weizrbicki and the Public Works team who
respond quickly to all situations.

Mr. Whitten noted that any time there is negative pressurization in water lines, a boil water notice is
required by NDEP and sent out to residents. The notice is cancelled after negative test results are
received.

Sheriff Antinoro:;

Two deputies are graduating from POST tomorrow.

Incinerators given to us by the State will hopefully be up and running shortly. Working with
the Canyon GID. State is paying for any associated costs.

The Sheriff’s Office is ready to move on the video arraignment system.

Warned the public of scam phone calls, professing to be a grandchild or friend that needs
money. Verify who you are talking to and don’t give out any information.

Community Chest/Library Director Erik Schoen:

Open House/Grand Opening for the Community Center/Library will be Friday June 1st, 5PM
to 7PM.

A report came out that identified Storey County as high risk for opioid abuse. This has not
been his experience with the County. Looking further into the report he discovered a couple
of indicators that skew the report. He has been discussing this with the State. The reportisn’t
accurate as to what we are actually seeing in the County.

Project Coordinator, Mike Northan:

Roof is 100% complete, there were no leaks during the last rain events.

Wall in Recorders office continues to dry out, looking to get scope of work for repairs.

Station 72 is getting under way.

Work will be performed in the DA’s office this weekend; paint crew will be doing touch up at
various locations.

Judge’s Chambers is moving forward.

Lockwood Senior Center is complete.

Mobile office will be removed in mid-June.

Station 71 repairs are scheduled to start May 215,

Tourism Director Deny Dotson:

The train will be opening on Memorial Day weekend.

The annual chili cookoff will be held this coming weekend. C Street will be closed from Union
to Sutton.

Up-coming events include the Reno-Tahoe Odyssey; Spring Street Vibrations-Spring Rally;
Taste of the Comstock; and Cowgirl Saloon Crawl. -

The Ferrari Hill Climb event will not be held this year in Storey County.




e The first of the mobile app beacons are being installed throughout Virginia City. People with
mobile apps on their phones will be able to access information regarding locations and historic
sites in town.

o Pipers Opera House now has a website, pipersoperahouse.com

Fire Marshal Martin Azevedo:
e The staff at Community Development are great. There are lots of new plans coming in.
e Fire Prevention Officer, Patty Blakely, was selected for a NFPA Star award scholarship - one of
only 12 given out in Canada and the U.S.

Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis:

¢ Recently participated in a training/conference on Cyber Security which is a big consideration
these days. Nevada is a big concern for Homeland Security for terrorism and other activity.

o County information technology is vital for day to day operations.

* Looking to put together a working task force addressing Cyber Security directed to County
government and private citizens.

o Will be working with the State on re-vamping and up-grade the evacuation plan for the entire
County that is currently in place. A lot will be directed to TRI concerns to insure safety and
protection of a major County asset.

Director of Planning/Human Resources Austin Osborne:
e AT&T has informed us that cell service in the Highlands will be broadband service and 4 or 5g

wireless. This should be live around October.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
e Wednesday at 10:30 Fulcrum BioEnergies will have a groundbreaking ceremony. This is a big
day.

o The new Justice Court will be built at the jail site. The project should go out to bid in June. A
3,500 square foot Justice Court with tenant improvements will be built. We hope to build an
additional 6,000 square feet of “shell” space.

o There will be no Ferrari Hill Climb event this year. It has been determined there is not much
benefit to the town from this event.

6. BOARD COMMENT (No Action-No Public Comment):
Commissioner Gilman:
e He was extended an invitation to attend a conference in Washington DC. He is unable to go so
Storey County lobbyist Bum Hess will attend on behalf of the County. Items to be discussed
include the Opportunity Zone and zip code issues.

Vice-Chairman McGuffey:
e The V&T Railway Mother’s Day train rides sold out on Sunday. Train whistles were passed

out.
« He will be attending the upcoming NACO Western Regional Conference to be held in Idaho.




Chairman McBride:
¢ Made a quick trip to Washington DC regarding action on the zip code, Lands Bill, and
Opportunity Zones - meeting with Congressman Amodei, Senator Heller’s staff, and Senator
Cortez-Masto and staff.
e The Porter Group is working diligently on the zip code issue.

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve Storey County Proclamation in support of Nevada
Wildfire Awareness Month - May 2018.

Patty Blakely, Fire Prevention Officer, requested approval of the Storey County Proclamation
declaring May 2018 as Nevada Wildfire Awareness Month.

Joseph Starnes read the proclamation into the record:
Whereas, wildfire significantly impacts Nevada’s environmental, economic and
Social well-being; and
Whereas, residents of Nevada’s fire-prone communities need to accept responsibility
for living in high fire-hazard areas; and
Whereas, residents must prepare to survive wildfire by ensuring proper management
of vegetation surrounding the home and appropriate home construction and
maintenance to resist ignition; and
Whereas, wildfires can occur during any month; and
Whereas, residents must stay continuously vigilant and prepared for wildfire
throughout the year.
Therefore, be it proclaimed that the Storey County Board of County Commissioners
supports the month of May 2018 as Nevada Wildfire Awareness Month and this
year’s theme: Prepare Now - Wildfire Knows No Season! as a means for
education and a call for residents of Storey County to take action now to reduce
wildfire threat and prepare their homes, families, and community for wildfire,
and stay prepared throughout the year.

Passed, approved and adopted this 15t day of May 2018, by Marshall McBride,
Storey County Commissioner and Chairman.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ move to approve Storey County Proclamation in support of Nevada Wildfire Awareness
Month - May 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of contract with Farr West Engineering for
design and construction administration for the Six Mile Canyon Drainage Improvement Project and
authorization for County Manager to sign all associated documentation. Proposed cost of the
agreement is $214,500.

Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin said Farr West Engineering had been requested to
submit a cost proposal for this project which includes replacement of culverts, shoulder widening,

5




and guard rail installation at certain locations along Six Mile Canyon road. There was widespread
damage in the canyon during last year’s storms. The County was successful in receiving funds to
make repairs and upgrades to selected existing storm water infrastructure. The County is required to
expend the money up-front and then will be reimbursed by Federal Highways - the timeline (for
reimbursement) is unknown based on the number of disasters last year. Storey County was the only
county in the State awarded funding from SHWA. Design plans must be submitted before moving
forward, that is what is being done today. There is a 5% match on this project.

Mr. Whitten commented this is work that needs to be done even though the County does not know
when it will receive reimbursement. Six Mile is an invaluable road.

Ms. Nevin: With approval today, a meeting will be held next week with NDOT and Federal
Highways for a project kickoff. Hopefully the project will be complete by September 2019. Work will
be done during summer months to minimize impact on people using the road.

Motion: I move to approve the contract with Farr West Engineering for design and construction
administration for the Six Mile Canyon Drainage Improvement Project and authorize the County
Manager to sign all associated documentation. Proposed cost of the agreement is $214,500,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve appointment of A. Perry, with St. Mary's Art
Center, to the vacant "Motel" seat on the Virginia City Tourism Commission effective May 15, 2018

Virginia City Tourism Commission Director Deny Dotson: The VCTC Advisory Board is made up of
five members. There was a vacant seat with one application received from A. Perry and staff
recommends approval of this appointment.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve appointment of A. Perry the Virginia City Tourism Commission’s motel
seat, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval and acceptance of Interior Historic Preservation
Grant (HPF) matching grant-in-aid award for $6,998.50 to assist in attendance at the 2018 National
Association of Preservation Commission Forum Conference.

Ms. Nevin presented the grant awarded to the County from the State Historic Preservation Office for
assistance to the County in sending five individuals to the 2018 National Association of Preservation
Commission Forum Conference. There is a required 40% match which is in the budget.

Public Comment:
None




Motion: I move to approve and accept Interior Historic Preservation Grant (HPF) matching grant-in-
aid award for $6,998.50 to assist in attendance at the 2018 National Association of Preservation
Commission Forum Conference and authorize Cherie Nevin to sign all associated grant
documentation, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the second reading to add on-sale to the
Virginia City RV Park, LLC, at 355 N F St., Virginia City, NV 89440.

Sheriff Antinoro stated this is the second reading and there is no reason to deny this on-sale addition
to the liquor license held by Virginia City RV Park, which has been licensed for off-sale.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve second reading to add on-sale liquor to the Virginia City RV Park, LLC,
at 355 N F St., Virginia City, NV 89440, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuiffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=4)

13. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY 474 FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT BOARD

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Action to approve the Storey County Fire Protection
District 2018 Operating Plan between the USDA, Forest Service Humbolt-Toiyabe National Forest
and USDI Bureau of Land Management Carson City District.

Fire Chief Jeff Nevin said this is an annual operating plan providing the ability to bill and call for
mutual aid, and go on mutual aid - in and out of state.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve the Operating Plan between Storey County Fire Protection
District and the USDA, Forest Service Humbolt-Toiyabe National Forest and USDI Bureau of Land
Management Carson City District, and authorize the Chairman and Fire Chief to sign, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Chairman McBride called for recess at 11:47 AM
Meeting reconvened at 11:57 PM

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and recommendations for possible action of the
2018-2019 474 Fire Protection District Tentative Budget. Approval of the final budget will be May 21,
2018.




Mr. Gallagher said that there may be additional revenue for the 474 Fire District. Expenses were
decreased approximately $110,000 after the tentative. The Fire District is projected to remain at a
negative operating balance for the upcoming year.

Mr. Whitten commented that as of present, Tesla will continue to be billed at the current rates
beginning July 1st if negotiations have not been finalized.

Mr. Gallagher discussed:
e Fire Emergency Fund - we would like to get this back up at some time. It will be left alone for
this year.
e Mutual Aid - remains the same. A portion of the ending fund balance may be augmented into
the 474 Operating Fund.
e Capital Projects Fund ~ There is a five year plan for this fund.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Where is the overage of $1.2 or 1.3 million going to come
from?

Mr. Gallagher explained (making up the overage) is in anticipation of the Government Services
Agreement with Tesla and if the full amount doesn’t come in, there is an ending fund balance to
support that - there would have to be adjustments. At this time, the amount of ad valorem is also
unknown.

Ms. Barde asked where the $1 million transfer to Capital Projects came from.
Mr. Gallagher: This was transferred in from the 474 Operating Fund several years ago.

Sam Toll, Gold Hill resident: It is rumored that the industrial park will need 1 or 2 fire stations in
the near future. Would funds come from - the 474 ad valorem money or raised at the park?

Mr. Whitten noted there are no provisions in next year’s budget because there have been no
negotiations as to which developer, or sub-developer, might build one or both of those stations.

Motion: I make a motion to approve the changes to the 474 Fire District budgets, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

16. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER/SEWER BOARD

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and recommendations for possible action of the
2018-2019 Water-Sewer Tentative Budget. Final approval of the budget will be May 21, 2018.

Mr. Gallagher stated there were no changes from the tentative to the final.

18. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS




22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2018-015 request to allow for the rear yard
setback for the construction of a two-car detached garage from the required 40-feet to 16-feet. The
applicant also requests a variance to the rear and side yard setbacks for an existing shipping
container and existing accessory horse shelter from the required rear yard 40-feet to 16-feet and
required side yard from 15-feet to 1-foot. The property is located at 2310 Lousetown Road, Virginia
City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-045-42.

Planner Kathy Canfield presented this variance to rear and side yard setbacks for construction of a
garage. An existing horse shelter and shipping container were discovered to be built in side yard
setbacks and are included as part of the variance. It has been determined that the shipping container
is consistent with code and variance is not required. This matter was discussed at length at the
Planning Commission. Neighbors to the north and west are in support. Neighbors to the south have
concern with a horse structure where the roof hangs over the the side yard setback about 2 feet. The
property is such that the owners are very limited on space for the requested structures. The
neighbor who is opposed has not developed their property. Staff recommends approval.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Are the concerned neighbors more focused on the horse corral? Would
applicant be okay with a 3 foot setback. One or two feet is not going to change anything.

Ms. Canfield reviewed how the setbacks affect the neighboring properties. The horse structure is not
permanent and could be moved in a couple of feet with the roof removed - it would be more visible
from the street. If moved there is concern that it may be near the leach field. The horse shelter and
proposed garage are well shielded from view from the street. Applicants are very limited as to where
to place the horse corral.

Miguel and Jacky Davila, property owners, explained factors considered when placing the horse
corral and structure on their property. The owners who are concerned are blocked from view of the
shelter by vegetation and their property is vacant, no structures.

We are actually 2 feet off the property line and have the ability to slide the wall in a little further.
Approval has been received from all other neighbors.

Public Comment:
None

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Personally does not have issue with what applicant is doing but does not
want to go against another neighbor. It would be better if they could work it out. If the neighbor
would go for 3 feet that probably would not impact applicant too much.

Mr. Davila said they would try and doesn’t know the (neighbors’) reasoning. These neighbors did
not like the 1 foot setback and didn’t specify if they would compromise with 3 or whatever.

Chairman McBride asked if the Planning Commission discussed the 3 feet versus 1 foot. The
Planning Commission recommended as presented - correct?

Ms. Canfield: The one foot was conservative estimate of how far they were. Going 3 feet would be
easy enough to do without (applicant) having to do a major overhaul. This variance is for this

9




accessory horse structure only - this can be made very clear in the approval. I believe the concerns
are just the setbacks, not directed at anything already existing.

Austin Osborne: From the letter submitted, it seems the neighbors are concerned with higher density
being allowed in the area and expressly had issue with the one foot setback. As a finding, this is not
being proposed because we want higher density in the Highlands. The property has steep
topography, there’s a well in the center of driveway, a leach field and septic system, and other
circumstances creating what code says is an unusual situation and hardship providing the reason for
considering this variance.

Chairman McBride: Sees this as a reasonable accommodation - we're just talking about a horse
shelter. Multiple small buildings could be put out there without any approval.

Vice Chair McGuffey: The standard setback is 15 feet - this is a big difference. Again he does not
have a personal issue, but feels the neighbors need to work it out.

Ms. Canfield: (Applicant) did go to the Homeowner’s Association who had no comments about the
horse shelter or shipping container, and no problems as long as the County approved the rear-yard
setback for the garage.

Vice Chair McGuffey doesn’t feel the Homeowner’s Association has any say in where you put things,
only in design.

Commissioner Gilman said he is inclined to approve the variance. It doesn’t appear to have any
impact on the area and understands (the objecting homeowners) do not live in the area and the lot
has nothing built on it.

Chair McBride: Is there any advantage to continuing this?

Ms. Canfield: Does not believe so. It appears the concerned property owners are opposed to a
variance altogether and have not mentioned any specific item or that they have a problem with the
horse shelter. They seem to be looking at the “big picture” not this individual location.

Chair McBride: Asked again for Public Comment (None). He is leaning same direction as
Commissioner Gilman.

Ms. Canfield read the Findings (affirmative):
The applicant requests a variance (Variance 2018-015) to the rear yard setback for the
construction of a two-car detached garage from the required 40-feet to 16-feet. The applicant
also requests a variance to the side yard setback for an existing accessory horse shelter from
the required 15-feet to 1-foot. The property is located at 2310 Lousetown Road, Virginia City
Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-045-42;

The subject property is located within E-1 VCH Estates zoning with an existing residence as a

primary use and the proposed garage, shipping container and horse shelter as an allowed
accessory use.

10




That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including shape, size,
topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the zoning ordinance would
deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under
identical zone classification.

That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights of the applicant.

That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
area of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the area of the subject property.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
regulations.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140 Variances, 17.40 E
Estates Zone and 17.12 General Provisions when all Conditions of Approval are met.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives and policies of
the 2016 Storey County Master Plan.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the
Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I, Lance
Gilman, move to approve Variance 2018-015 to allow the rear yard setback for the construction of a
two-car detached garage from the required 40 feet to 16 feet, the rear and side yard setbacks for an
existing shipping container and existing accessory horse shelter from the required rear yard 40-feet to
16-feet and required side yard from 15 feet to 1 foot. The property is located at 2310 Lousetown
Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-045-42,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2) Vice Chairman McGuffey abstained.

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Proposed amendments to the Storey County sign
ordinance, Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning, including Chapter 17.84 Signs and Billboards.
Additional information including, but not limited to, draft text may be obtained from the Planning
Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org, or viewed online at

http:/ /storeycounty.org/517/Updates. In addition to the provisions of the NRS, any person may
complete and return to the Board a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to
the county code and/ or zoning ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the
Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

Planner Kathy Canfield requested this item be continued to July 3, 2018.

Motion: I move to continue Item 21 to July 3, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffy, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

11




19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and recommendations for possible action of the
2018-2019 Storey County Funds Tentative Budget excluding the Sheriff's Department budget. Final
approval of the final budget will be May 21, 2018.

Mr. Gallagher said General revenue has not changed from the tentative. $1.2 million additional
revenue is anticipated through negotiations described by Mr. Whitten as well as possible increases in
permit fees based on new ordinance on property value.

Mr. Gallagher reviewed each department fund and any changes made to revenue and expenses. Mr.
Gallagher explained reasons for any expense increase in each department.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde: Asked how the Park Fund decreased from $120,000 to $1,800. What are each of the
Park Funds receiving for the $29,000?

Mr. Gallagher explained the money is there it is just not budgeted - it has not evaporated.

Sam Toll: Asked if the County Commissioner line item reflects Commissioners’ salaries, and is the
County Manager’s salary part of that?

Mr. Gallagher: It is not only the Commissioners, it is also part of the admin group, and County
Manager.

Mr. Toll questioned the role of inspections moving from Fire to Community Development and the
decrease in the amount of licensing and permit fees. The Community Development budget has gone
up. Itappears fees from the industrial park are falling and yet people are being added (at
Community Development).

Mr. Gallagher explained plan review, permit fees, and business licenses are now under one
department. Negotiations with Tesla are unknown.

Mr. Toll presumes numbers of licenses and permits will increase when negotiations or contract (with
Tesla) are set.

Mr. Gallagher is not comfortable increasing the numbers until there is resolution on how business
license and permits are calculated and with the additional contract with Tesla.

Mr. Toll: Looking at increases, the majority are salaries, wages, and benefits - up from year to year.
With unions constantly improving conditions of members - it works against taxpayers and the
County with having less money to run the County.

Mr. Gallagher indicated it is unknown what the effects of a new contract (with Tesla) will be and
there is a big problem not knowing how much overtime will be.

12




Mr. Toll asked, based on the fact that revenues are lower than 2015-16 and expenses are higher - is it
safe to say there is no money to write a check providing property tax relief to residents, or any other
method of re-distributing the wealth as suggested at previous meetings?

Mr. Gallagher indicated about 81% would go back into the industrial park. A residential reduction
would be minimal. He would like to look at 2024 when most abatements will be off and would
rather have something to fall back on in the event of a downturn like in 2008.

Mr. Toll: TRI line item payback is listed as $600,000. In review of past property taxes received, (the
County) could potentially receive about $5 million - is it 35% of that figure that has to be paid back to
vouchers that have been written?

Mr. Gallagher explained the 2012 stipulation agreement. Revenue received from the industrial park,
minus amounts agreed to in the agreement, is the figure that the 35% is based on.

Motion: Imove to approve the 2018-2019 Storey County Funds Tentative Budget excluding the
Sheriff's Department budget, the 474 Fire budget, and the Water/Sewer budget, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffy, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and recommendations for possible action of the
2018-2019 Storey County Sheriff's Department Tentative Budget. Final approval of the budget will be
May 21, 2018.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.

Mr. Gallagher reviewed the Sheriff’s Department Tentative Budget and explained adjustments that
have been made. Funds have been moved out of capital outlay to equipment acquisition. This is an
accounting move from one special revenue fund to another.

Public Comment:
Mr. Toll: Asked if moving these funds means there will be no new patrol vehicles.

Mr. Gallagher: This is an accounting move from one special revenue fund to another.

Mr. Gallagher summarized the Storey County Funds Tentative Budget. Salaries make up
approximately 49+ % of the total budget, employee benefits 28+%, and operations 18+%. Should
there not be revenue as forecast, there are several opportunities to reduce expenditures ~ which will
be presented to the Board if needed. This includes looking hard at capital outlay expenditures.

Motion: I move to approve the changes to the 2018-2019 Storey County Sheriff's Department

Tentative Budget, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffy, Seconded by:
Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

13




23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval Business License Second Readings:

A. ETCHEMENDY ENGINEERING, INC - General / 10597 Double R Blvd ~ Reno, NV

B. KJ]MJ ENTERPRISES - General / 145 S. C st ~ Carson City, NV

C. O&M INDUSTRIES - Contractor / 5901 Ericson Way ~ Arcata, CA

D. SWIFT TRANSPORTATION CO, OF AZ, LLC - General / 2200 S. 75th Ave ~ Phoenix, AZ
E. KOYO ELECTRIC INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD - General / 5-2-22 Fukushima ~ Osaka, JP

F. PDE HOLDINGS, LLC - Contractor / 90 Corporate Pk Dr ~ Henderson ,NV

G. HOK ARCHITECTS, INC - General / 10 South Broadway ~ St. Louis, MO

H. DEACON CONSRUCTION LLC - Contractor / 7745 Greenback Ln ~ Citrus Heights, CA
I. AQUATECK INTERNATIONAL LLC - General / 1 Four Coins Dr ~ Canonsburg, PA

J. PROCESS AUTOMATION SOLUTIONS, INC - General / 107 Mill Plain Rd ~ Danbury, CT
K. SHIMANE JIDOKI CO., LTD ~ General / 784 Sada Miyavehi ~ Shimane-Ken, JP

L. SLATER’S DING A WING - General / 2190 Olympic Cr ~ Reno, NV

M. PREMIER TRAILER LEASING, INC - General / 300 London Dr ~ McCarran, NV

County Manager Whitten, on behalf of Community Development, recommended approval of items A
through M.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve items A through M, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffy, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

24. PUBLIC COMMENT (No action):

Sam Toll: Again, he is disappointed that Public Comment is not at the beginning of the meeting.
And, also with Deny Dotson’s decision to prevent the Ferrari Hill Climb from coming back.

Mr. Toll read the following letter into the record:

Commissioner McBride took to the front page of the Chronicle last week accusing me of spreading
misinformation and lies. I went to the Bucket to ask him about his accusations, and an energetic
conversation ensued. During our conversation, Commissioner McBride shared his opinion of my
writing. However, he would not tell me specifically what he read on The Storey Teller was a lie.

I suspect he was referring to the article I wrote about the record $1.6 billion I taxable sales FY 2016-17.
According to the Nevada Department of Taxation, Storey County sales tax revenues actually fell in
2016-17 compared to FY2015-16 despite this record increase.

Unless the data provided inside audited annual reports from the Department of Taxation are in error,
this is an indisputable fact.

As the facts illustrate in both articles, C Street is not awash with TRIC cash as we have been lead to
believe. The tentative budget shows projected revenues are expected to be below 2014 levels while
expenses are projected to be up 32% over the same period.

If Commissioner McBride wants to take umbrage with my opinions, I encourage him to do so. If he
calls me a liar on the front page of the Chronicle and on the record, he’d better back it up with facts.

14




I recently wrote an article about Scott Jolcover that was inaccurate, upon learning of my mistake I ask
that he show me exactly where the numbers are inaccurate and where the inaccuracies were, and I'll
issue a retraction and an apology.

I ask McBride to provide me the same courtesy and prove I was wrong or issue an apology here and
on the record at the next Commissioners meeting. Thank you.

Nicole Barde: In the May 15t Commission meeting, Commissioner McBride said the following,
quoting from Pat Whitten's summary: Marshall encourages any and all residents, or others who
have any questions or concerns about County government to please contact the Commissioners, the
County Manager, or the County Comptroller. Phone numbers are available by contacting the County
Manager’s office at 775 847-0968 or visiting online. Recently a lot of misinformation is circulating and
being published. Please do not accept what is heard online as gospel.

He mentioned a couple of bloggers and a so called journalist and gave no specifics. The following
Thursday his charges of lying about numbers published appeared in the Chronicle, again with no
specifics.

I would like to know from Commissioner McBride exactly what I wrote that was a lie.

Here is the definition of a lie: A false statement made with deliberate intent to deceive; an intentional
untruth; a falsehood.

I publish reports of public meetings which I attend on bardeblog.com. I'have been doing this for
going onto 4 years. I provide a summary of what goes on, I provide an opinion on some of the items
which is noted as sidenote, so as to separate my opinion from the facts of the meeting. I provide links
to source documents so that my readers can see the actual data that I am basing my comments or
opinions on. It’s all public record. I also provide a link to the actual audio/video recording of the
meeting so that readers may see the proceedings if they wish. Even the county does not provide the
public a link to the audio/ video of the meetings.

Whatever numbers I report on are those provided in the agenda packets or reported in the course of
the meeting. Commissioner McBride can disagree with my opinion or interpretation of the numbers,
but I am entitled to an opinion that differs from his. However, the numbers are the numbers.... and
they are his numbers. If they are lies then he needs to look internally for the problem.

I await his specific examples of my “lies” so I can correct them or an apology for calling me a liar if
there are no specific lies that he can point to.

25. ADJOURNMENT:
The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 1:26 PM

Respectfully submitted,

Bymm%g@_@_
Vanessa Stephens Clérk-Treasurer

15




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1.

2.

Title: Approval of Minutes for May 21, 2018.

Recommended motion: Approve as submitted.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

@_ Department Head Department Name: Clerk
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

#o




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, MAY 21, 2018 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, Clerk &
Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, District Attorney Anne Langer, Sheriff
Gerald Antinoro, Management Analyst Jennifer McCain, Planning Director/ Administrative
Officer Austin Osborne, Public Works Director Jason Weizrbicki, Justice of the Peace Eileen
Herrington, Communications Director Dave Ballard

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for May 21, 2018.
Public Comment: None

Motion: Approve Agenda for May 21,2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for April 17, 2018.
Public Comment: None

Motion: Approve Minutes for April 17, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for May 1, 2018.

Public Comment: None




Motion: Approve Minutes for May 1, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

6. CONSENT AGENDA:
I For possible action, approval of accounts payable claims in the amount of $712,878.77.
I For possible action, approval of Treasurer’s Report for April 2018.

Public Comment: None

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for February 21, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action-No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
None

8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action-No Public Comment):
Vice-Chairman McGuffey:
e Reported on items discussed the recent NACO Board of Directors meeting, including:
1. Security and public access to county buildings, first amendment audits, and open and
concealed carry in public buildings, and affordable housing;
2. The US Communities.org program was also discussed;
3. NACO Board actions and NACO direction plan.
4. September 19t is the deadline for submittal of NACO Bill drafts requests.

Chairman McBride:
e One of the largest Chili Cook-off events was held over the weekend without incident. It was a
great event.

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Assignment of Contract form assigning the
current contract between DMV and Storey County Assessor to the Storey County Clerk Treasurer.

Clerk/ Treasurer Vanessa Stephens said this is the first official step in transferring DMV services from
the Assessor’s office to the Clerk/ Treasurer. The final move in the service should be late July/early
August. It is hoped that enough people will be trained so as not to close DMV service for lunch and
to be open from 8 to 5 which should ease waiting time.

Austin Osborne commended Ms. Stephens, and staff, for taking this on and for reaching out to help
the team with overall staffing and the big picture.

Chair McBride also thanked Ms. Stephens. This will take work and a lot of stress off of the Assessor’s
Office which has grown due to the expansion of the industrial park.

Motion: I move to approve the Assignment of Contract form assigning the current contract between
DMV and Storey County Assessor to the Storey County Clerk Treasurer, Action: Approve,




Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of revised contract for Storey County with
Aging and Disability Service Division.

Austin Osborne indicated the scope of work, attachment A in the packet, explains the Aging and
Disability Service Division which provides services for children under 18 for all types of issues and
disabilities. This contract helps pay for this - the State bills the County on a quarterly basis.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I make a motion to approve the revised contract for Storey County with Aging and
Disability Service Division, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded
by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and approve the 2018-2019 474 Fire District Final
Budget.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher presented and reviewed the final budget for the 474 Fire District. Mr.
Gallagher will keep an eye on the 474 Operating Fund.

Public Comment: None

Motion: [ make a motion to approve the 2018-2019 474 Fire District Final Budget and filing with the
Department of Taxation, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

13. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER/SEWER BOARD

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and approve the 2018-2019 Water/Sewer Final
Budget.

Mr. Gallagher said USDA called requesting the amount expected to be spent for the 5 Mile Waterline
project signed in 2016 which was not expected to start until 2019-20. A transfer of $2,126,000 was
made for this project. There are transfers throughout this budget - pretty much an “in and out”
account.

Chairman McBride: Reiterating, there is no intention to spend the $2,126,000 - the transfer was to
pacify the USDA and have it in the budget.

Mr. Gallagher: We anticipate taking this out of infrastructure - however, the plan has to be changed
to do that. There is plenty of time to do this.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Potential adjustments - is that to make sure the books balance to pay off
this 30 or 40 year loan?




Mr. Gallagher: Thinks the funding on the notes are okay, it's just the operational expenditures and
items of that nature.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde, Storey County resident: Asked for clarification regarding the commitment and loan
from the USDA. They want to see it in the books, so general fund money was put in and JV'd out...

Mr. Gallagher: There is a signed letter of intent - loan documents have not been signed. USDA
wants to see funds coming out of their special USDA account.

Ms. Barde: Funds have not been received yet - just a letter of intent. When does (the County) intend
to spend the money?

Mr. Gallagher estimates not until year end 2019-20. However (USDA) wants to see it in this year’s
budget. The County will receive the full amount when the project starts.

Motion: I make a motion to approve the 2018-2019 Storey County Water and Sewer Fund Final
Budget and filing with the Department of Taxation, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

15. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and approve the 2018-2019 Storey County Funds
Final Budget excluding the Sheriff's Department Budget.

Mr. Gallagher reviewed the 2018-19 Storey County Funds Final Budget by department ~ there are no
changes with the exception of administrative which will have a transfer to include the other side of
the $2,126,000.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde: Asked the status of the Tesla Service Agreement - we are “underwater” by $1.7
million. Tesla is assumably $1.2 million.

Chairman McBride: No new information - nothing to report since last week. Mr. Whitten will give
an update as soon as there is resolution.

Motion: I make a motion to approve the 2018-19 Storey County Funds Final Budget, excluding the
Storey County Sheriff's Office Final Budget, and filing with the Department of Taxation, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and approve the 2018-2019 Storey County Sheriff's
Department Final Budget.




Commissioner Gilman recused himself from this item due to ongoing litigation between himself and
the Sheriff.

Mr. Gallagher reported there are adjustments to the Sheriff's budget. A Memorandum of
Understanding has been signed regarding salary adjustments which have been put into the budget.
There are also PERS and Medicare adjustments.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I make a motion to approve the 2018-19 Storey County Sheriff’s Office Final Budget, and
filing with the Department of Taxation, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

Mr. Gallagher explained that we are currently at $11,797,842 negative bringing the ending fund
balance down to around $8 million. This is the first year where he has had doubts about revenue,

therefore the approach in revenue is very conservative. There are plans in place where the budget
can be adjusted.

Vice Chair McGuffey asked if this was contingent on Tesla. What is the timeframe?

Mr. Gallagher: This is contingent on Tesla. We are prepared if nothing happens. If there is no
agreement or the agreement changes, this (budget) takes effect July 1¢.

Vice Chair McGuffey: Has anything been heard regarding the fire truck and the additional height of
the new hotel?

Mr. Gallagher: Has not heard anything. This is part of that discussion with Tesla.

Mr. Osborne: There is incentive on the Tesla side. If the agreement becomes “null”, they don’t get
the staff needed to inspect that facility and it would not be able to move forward at any pace.

18. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
None

19. ADJOURNMENT
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 10:37 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

By: @MM@}LUA

Vanessa Stephens dlerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 06/19/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min,

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action, Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures including 032
Records Management; 004 Travel; 035 Grant Approval; and 036 Grant Administration.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the Storey County
Administrative Policies and Procedures, | [commissioner] motion to approve the amendments to Storey County
Administrative Policies including 032 Records Management; 004 Travel; 035 Grant Approval; and 036 Grant
Administration.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to establish
authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis. The Policies and
Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur every five years and
otherwise as needed.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosed markup policy updates including Policies 032, 004, 035, and 036.
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
partment Head Department Name: Human Resources and Comptroller
unty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued Agenda ltem No.

oy —
S ek

Page 1 of |

7T



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 036
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE :07-03-2012

REVISED: 06/19/18
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: __PAW
PAGE:10F1

SUBJECT: GRANT ADMINISTRATION

II.

IIL.

PURPOSE: To ensure that county departments are accountable for proper grant
documentation, administration, and activities.

POLICY: Grants must undergo a review process is intended to enhance record-keeping,
ensure the ability to monitor expenditures and timeliness of reimbursements, ensure
compliance with grant conditions and federal or state requirements and to manage cash
flow. The Beard—efCommissioners board recognizes the critical importance of
compliance with terms and conditions of grants and desires that the Administrative
Officer Community Relations Coordinator provide advisory services to departments in
these areas. Programmatic and day-to-day management of departmental grants remain
with the departments unless assistance is requested or assigned by the County Manager.

PROCEDURE:

A. GRANT APPLICATION:
Departments are responsible to write the grant applications. The Administrative
Officer Community Relations Coordinator will be available for consultation and
advice during the process, if desired. Upon award of the grant, department(s) will:

1. Submit the contract documents to the Administrative—Officer Community
Relations Coordinator (see section C ) and:

2. Coordinate with the Ceunty Comptroller if a budget amendment is required to
reflect new revenues and corresponding expenses

B. COMPLIANCE WITH GRANT REQUIREMENTS
County officials are responsible for compliance with all aspects of grant
requirements including monitoring to ensure that grant activities are properly
accomplished, grant accounting and tracking, and ensuring that requests for
reimbursement are accurate and submitted on schedule or as soon as possible after
completion of grant activities.

C. RESPONSIBILITY FOR MAINTENANCE OF FILE AND PUBLIC
DISCLOSURE
The original grant contract and any approved amendments are retained by the
Administrative—Officer—Commissioners’—office County Manager’s Office. The
official grant file including a copy of the signed contract and all documents
associated with the grant including, but not limited to, the contract and amendments,
applications, pre-application questionnaire, activity reports, requests for
reimbursement, fiscal reports, and other correspondence will be maintained by the
initiating department. Any destruction of these records will be in accordance with
the approved Nevada state required retention schedule in the appropriate
department. Public disclosure requests regarding grants will be referred to the
initiating department for coordination of public records gathering and release.

Storey County Administrative Policy and Procedure

Grant Administration
Page 1 of 3



GRANT REVENUES: Revenue accounts are to be established by County Manager
or his/her designee. All grant revenues will be deposited to revenue accounts specific
to the grant and grant year and separated into revenues for direct activities and
indirect costs. In addition, accruals will be deposited to separate revenue accounts.
The County Manager or his/her accounting staff will create and maintain revenue
numbers that ensure identification of grants by year, separate direct from indirect
costs, and provide for tracking of accruals.

DEPOSIT AND BUDGETING OF REVENUE FOR MULTI-YEAR GRANTS:
County officials must ensure that for reimbursement-based, multi-year grants, both
revenues and expenditures are budgeted in the year during which the grant activity
will be performed. Reimbursements for grant activities performed in one fiscal year
and not actually received until the next fiscal year are considered accruals and
deposited as such. Revenues for grants where funds are received by the county prior
to the grant activity (typically as a lump sum) are required to be deposited and
budgeted as follows:

e Special Grant Fund - When receiving revenue sufficient to cover current year
grant activities they shall be deposited in the Special Grant Fund. Revenue for
grant activities in future years is deposited to the Special Grant Fund Deferred
Revenue Account.

e County officials are responsible to ensure that grant revenues are properly
budgeted and that they are deposited into the proper revenue accounts
immediately upon receipt.

e Any grant that requires a county match other than in-kind shall be charged to the
appropriate county department’s budget that acquired the grant.

GRANT SIGNATURE AUTHORIZATION FORM:

Some grant applications require the completion and submittal of a signature
authorization form. For obtaining signatures of county commissioners’ or other
designated office personnel, signature authorization forms should be delivered to the
Administrative-Officer Community Relations Coordinator. Signature of the board
chair on authorization forms may be obtained without public meeting. The following
signature authorities should be included:

e Applications/revised applications — County official and the Ceunty-Administrator
Community Relations Coordinator.

e Contracts/contract modifications - Chair of the Board-of Commissioners board or
the county official depending on the grant requirement.

e Vouchers - The county official and his/her designee.

e Authorizing authority - Chair-efthe Board-of Commissioners. Chair of the board.

INDIRECT COSTS

1. It is the intent of the county that every grant shall pay its own way. To the extent
possible, this means that every grant shall pay for all services provided by the
county as an overhead allocation rate. For specific additional services, such as
audit costs, each grant application must identify this cost and include it as a part
of the grant requests.

Storey County Administrative Policy and Procedure

Grant Administration
Page 2 of 3



2. All grants must include the costs of audit as a part of the grant application. Under
the federal single audit act, all federally funded grants shall be subject to the same
level of audit as the host agency. For Storey County, this means that each grant
sh?ill be individually audited at the same time as the county is receiving its annual
audit.

III. RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Manager or his/her designee will
review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Storey County Administrative Policy and Procedure

Grant Administration
Page 3 of 3



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

NUMBER 032

EFFECTIVE DATE: 07-03-2012
REVISED: 06/19-18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: ___ PAW

SUBJECT: RECORDS MANAGEMENT

IL.

PURPOSE: To establish a policy regarding Records Management.

POLICY: Records are a significant government asset. They contain valuable
information used to support decision-making, sustain communications, control the
delivery of services, substantiate citizen entitlement and ensure accountability. All
government leaders and employees of Storey County have a responsibility to properly
manage records.

A. All Storey-CountyDepartments-and/orDivisions county departments and offices shall

follow the Nevada State Library and Archives Records Management Local
Government Records Retention Schedule.

1.

The State Library and Archives administrator have adopted regulations to carry
out a program to establish and approve minimum periods of retention for
records of local governments. The State Library and Archives publishes a
schedule for retention which can be accessed through their website.

The retention period, unless otherwise noted, applies only to official records as
distinct from convenience or working copies created for informational purposes.
If two or more record series listed in the schedule are filed or commingled
together, the combined records must be retained for the length of time of the
records series with the longest retention period.

The retention period for a record applies to the record regardless of the medium
in which it is maintained. Some records listed in this schedule are maintained
electronically in many offices, but electronically stored data used to create in
any manner of record or the functional equivalent of a record as described in the
schedule must be retained, along with the hardware and software necessary to
access the data, for the retention period assigned to the record, unless copies of
the data generated from electronic storage are retained in paper or on microfilm
for the full retention period.

Local government offices may retain any of their records beyond the retention
periods set by a schedule, as they deem necessary. A schedule establishes only a
minimum period of retention. Before retaining a record longer than the
minimum time required, however, the office should be certain that it has good
reason to do so. Unnecessary retention of obsolete records can be expensive in

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures

Record Retention
Page 1 of 2



space and filing equipment and may expose the office to costly litigation and
discovery requirements.

5. This schedule does not relieve local governments of retention requirements
mandated by other state and federal statutes and regulations. When such an
obligation does exist, then the longer retention period takes precedence.

6.  This schedule does not authorize destruction of records that could be deemed
relevant to current or pending litigation. All records deemed relevant are to be
placed on a legal hold and destruction is to be suspended until after the matter
has been wholly or partially resolved and the District Attorney releases the hold
and issues instruction to return to routine records destruction.

7. These schedules generally reflect audit requirements in its prescribed retention
periods, but audits are occasionally not completed in a timely fashion.
Therefore, any record required for an audit must be retained until completion of
that audit, regardless of its stated retention period in the schedule.

B. Elected—Officials—Appointed—Officials—or—Dept—Heads—Department _heads are

responsible and have the authority to develop and maintain the records management
program with their offices or divisions.

1.  Provide for the disposition of records, including destruction of records meeting
the minimum retention periods and the transferring of inactive records to
inactive storage.

2.  Only those records will be disposed of that do not have sufficient
administrative, fiscal, legal, or historical value to merit retention beyond
established legal minimum periods.

3.  Confidential records must be destroyed in such a manner that the information
can no longer be reconstructed. (PerNAE) Non-confidential records may be
discarded or recycled in accordance with established procedures.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Manager or his/her designee will review this
policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures

Record Retention
Page 2 of 2



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 004

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE: 9/18/07
REVISED: 02/20/18-06/19/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW_

SUBJECT: TRAVEL POLICY

L. PURPOSE: To establish uniform guidelines for payment of travel expenses incurred by
County employees while on County business.

II. DEFINITIONS

1. Employee: County employees including elected, appointed, unclassified,
classified, permanent, part-time, seasonal, hourly, and quasi-employees.

2. Quasi-employees: Members of boards, and commissions, and all other persons
providing services in an official capacity, to the county, with or without
compensation, including volunteers in the public safety sector. Expenses for
this category of employee must be pre-approved by the responsible
department head or County Manager.

3. Travel: Any trip outside the county by a county employee in the course of
performing their duties, and within the county’s TRI Center or Lockwood
area.

4. Per Diem: The amount of funds allowed to employees traveling as noted (#3)
while on County business to cover meals or other out-of-pocket expenses.

HI. POLICY

A. The county recognizes that certain travel and related expenses incurred on behalf
of the county by its employees are of benefit to the county. The county will pay
for employees reasonable and customary expenses associated with such travel.
Travel shall be at the most reasonable and economical cost to the county,
considering total cost of transportation, time spent in transit, and the availability
of county vehicles.

B. Employees should endeavor to attend training and conferences in the State of
Nevada whenever possible if such training or conference is of comparable value
to that offered out of state. Expenses incurred under this policy shall be consistent

with the best interest of the county and i#>s-its desire to minimize travel costs.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 1 of 10



IV.  CONDITIONS

A. All employees traveling on county business, including attendance at training
sessions, seminars, conventions, professional associations and any emergency
travel, must comply with the provisions of this policy. Abuse of this policy,
including falsification of travel expenses, will result in disciplinary action, up to
and including termination.

B. Any personal travel and associated expenses incurred in conjunction with
approved travel on county business must be separate and distinguishable from
official, reimbursable county travel expenses. While it is not the intent of the
county to pay for personal travel expenses, in the rare exception this should
happen, reimbursement is required within 5 business days after returning to work.

V. PROCEDURES

A. Authorization to Travel

1.

All employee travel must be approved by their department head. Employees
may travel within the continental United States as long as funds are available
within the applicable budget to cover travel costs. Travel by department heads
must be authorized by the County Manager and travel by elected officials is
self-authorized. There must be reserved funds in the department budget for the
travel.

2. Travel outside of the continental United States requires Board of
Commissioner approval when there is any cost incurred by the county.

3. During times of budgetary constraint, the Comptroller with concurrence by
the County Manager may place restrictions on out-of-state travel, long
distance travel, and travel necessitating overnight stay.

B. Travel Forms

1. Travel Expense Claims Form

A Travel Expense Claim Form (Form F004-A) must be submitted with the
employee’s timesheet for that period to the Comptroller’s office for all travel-

related advances or reimbursements. Approval—for—payment—requires—a

- The department
head must verify that the request conforms to this policy before it is submitted
to_the Comptroller’s office. This-The Travel Expense Request Form will be
processed through the Comptroller’s office. Applicable original receipts,
registration forms, brochures, and/or event agendas must be attached to the

Travel Expense Claim Form and submitted in-sufficient-timefor-the-normal

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 2 of 10



payrell—eyecle—for—employees 5 business days from return from travel.
Volunteers must submit a voucher with required backup. If there-are-not-such

doewments_these documents are not available, the employee/volunteer must
complete Form F004-B Unavailable Backup Documentation Form.

Unavailable Backup Documentation Form

An Unavailable Backup Documentation Form is required to detail travel when
no original documents are available. A narrative description of the event, the
name of the sponsor, the date(s) of the event, costs, location and purpose must
be attached to the Travel Expense Claim Form (Form F0044) described in
paragraph (1) above. The Travel Expense Claim Form (Form FO04A) must be
submitted no later than 10-3 business days after the end of the month.

Travel Advance

while-traveling: Travel costs for per diem typically include meals and ground
transportation. Hotel and air travel must be paid in advance using the
department’s purchase card in accordance with this policy, except when this

requirement is waived by the Comptroller under extenuating circumstances.

Advance for travel must be requested on the Travel Expense Claim Form
(Form F0044) and submitted by the employee to the department head. The
department _head. if approved by him/her, will submit the form to the
Comptroller for consideration.

Travel Advance requests are subject to_approval by the Comptroller. The
Comptroller _may approve travel advances when there are extenuating
circumstances warranting this_method of payment (e.g., when the employee
does not have a county purchase card and/or when the employee is unable to
pay for expenses before submitting a_request for reimbursement). The
Comptroller may for any reason_and without explanation deny any travel
advance request.

All money advanced to an employee to pay for travel expenses constitutes a
lien in favor of the county upon the accrued wages or_accrued benefit
payments of the employee to whom the advance was made. NRS 245.062(4).

ki

Requests for _advance funds must be submitted to the
Comptroller’s office no less than 10 business days before travel to assure
timely accounts payable processing. The amount allowed is subject to review
and approval by the department head or County Manager.

Otherthan-per-diem;—reeeipts Receipts accounting for all travel expenses in
excess—of-the—amount—advaneed for which per-diem was made must be

e to

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 3 of 10



presented to the Comptroller’s office on a travel-claim—form Travel Expense
Claim Form (Form F004A4) within 5 business days after the employee’s return
to-work from travel. Failure to submit the request for reimbursement within $
weorking 5 business days may result in the denial of reimbursement for these
expenses: expenses exceeding the amount provided in the travel advance, and
may result in the employee forfeiting funds provided to the employee for the
travel advance (see subsection 3 above).

6. Advances not expended from the travel advance must be deposited with the
Treasurer’s office within 5 business days of returning te-weslk from travel and
a copy of the Treasurer’s Receipt must be submitted to the Comptroller’s
office with all backup documentation attached.

V1. ELIGIBLE& INELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES:

A. Generally, eligible expenditures are those actual travel-related costs incurred by
an employee as a result of performing county business. Travel costs typically
include meals, transportation, sleeping accommodations, event registration and

fees, elc.

B. Registration Fees

Fees to attend a conference, seminar, convention, training, etc. may be paid in
advance by regular voucher through accounts payable process or paid on-site with
procurement a county purchase card. Request for payment after-the-fact must be
submitted to the Comptroller’s office for payment with documentation no later
than 3 business days from the return from travel or the function.

C. Transportation Costs

Actual costs of transportation, such as air travel, bus travel, train travel, taxi,
Uber, car rentals, and parking fees, are eligible under this policy.

1. Airline Travel - All air travel shall be by coach class except under
extenuating circumstances that_are _approved by the Comptroller
and/or County Manager. Efforts should be made to book air travel at
least two—weeks—ormere 30 days in advance to take advantage of
lower rates.

2. Other Transportation — The employee must use economically
oriented transportation _as _practicable. _Alternative _means _of
personal transportation such as Zip Cars, E-Bikes, and other urban
ride-share _modes _of _transportation_are also eligible under_this
policy. Limousines, private air _and other luxury transportation
modes are 1o be avoided except under extenuating circumstances

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 4 of 10



that are approved by the Comptroller and/or the County Manager.
Rental of exotic vehicles (e.g.. Hummer, Bentley, Lotus, Ferrari, and
similar class of vehicle.) is not eligible under this policy.

Lodging Costs

The actual costs of hotel or motel accommodations are eligible per this policy.
Prepayment 30 days or more in advance should be made whenever possible.

for-the-amount-over-that-of-a-single-accommodation: Costs such as phone calls,
food, drink, and other costs not related to business charged to the room should be
paid separately by the employee upon check-out as to better differentiate business
and non-business expenses. These Non-business related costs are not
reimbursable. No reimbursement will be made without receipts. The hotel receipt
received at check-out must be turned into the Comptroller’s office within 5
business days of the travel. Lodging expense is payable on a vouchers payable
form.

If a family member or guest accompanies the employee, the employee is
responsible for payment for the amount over that of a single accommodation.

Meals and Food Related Expenses:
1. General Meal Expenses

a. The employee will be reimbursed for meal expenses in accordance with
this section. No per diem meal allowance will be allowed for any meals
that are provided by some other entity, person or group while the
employee is on travel status—TFhis—includes ,including, for instance,
sponsor or event provided meals and airline meals as designated on the
airline ticket. Event schedule should and may be required to be submitted
for verification. The _Comptroller may require the employee to submit
receipts for meals regardless of whether they are paid _thorough travel
advance, reimbursement, or with a purchase card.

b. Option A: Standard Per Diem Reimbursement Rate: The following
standard reimbursement rates are maximums, not allowances. The
employee may, instead, follow the steps in paragraph (c) to calculate the
per diem when traveling. The employee may use Option A or B per diem
amount whether or not Option B shows to be a lower or higher amount.

Breakfast $15.00
Lunch $16.00
Dinner $28.00
Gratuity Up to 20 percent per meal.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 50of 10



TOTAL 59.00 + gratuity (20% max.)

c. Option B: General Services Agency Per Diem Reimbursement
Schedule: The following standard reimbursement rates are maximums,
not allowances. The employee may, instead, choose to follow the standard
per diem rates shown in paragraph (b). The employee may use Option A
or Option B per diem amounts whether or not the other option shows a
higher or lower amount.

The steps to find the GSA per diem rate are as follows:

i. Visit www.gsa.gov/perdiem and navigate to Meals and Incidental
Expenses (M&IE) Breakdown.

ii. On the provided map, click the location where you will be
traveling.

iii. Find the total “M&IE” in the chart for the city/region where you
will be traveling.

iv. Using that “M&IE” amount and using the table provided below,
find the exact or closest listed M&IE amount in the first column.
The corresponding row is the total per diem amount for each meal
and for the daily total.

Table 4.1

M&IE Breakdown

$54 $12 $13 $24 $5 $40.50
$59 $13 $15 $26 $5 $44.25
$64 $15 $16 $28 $5 $48.00
$69 $16 $17 $31 $5 $51.75
$74 $17 $18 $34 $5 $55.50

2. Business-Related Meals:

a. A meal for the employee and one or more employees or non-employees
is reimbursable as a business-related meal when the principal purpose of
the combined business and meal was the active conduct of business and
when all members of the party receiving the county-paid meal were

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 6 of 10



actively engaged in business and business-related discussion,
negotiations, or other business transactions during a majority of the meal
period, and when that business and business-related discussion generated
specific business benefit to the county. If the business discussion is only
incidental to the meal, the expense is not eligible.

A meal for the employee and one or more employees or non-employees
is also reimbursable as a business-related meal when the meal was
associated with the active conduct of county business, such as when the
meal occurred directly before or directly after a substantial business
discussion that resulted in specific business benefit to the county.
Among the facts to consider is the place, date, and duration of the
business discussion, and the reasons that the meal did not take place on
the same day of the business discussion. For example, when a group of
business associates arrive from out-of-county to hold a substantial
business discussion and the county employee takes them to dinner on the
evening before the business discussion, or on the evening of the day
following the business discussion, the meal expense is generally
considered to be held directly before or after the discussion and the
expense meets the test.

Business-related meals are not subject to the per diem limitations above,
but limits may be imposed by the County Manager.

Business-related meals may only be reimbursed for county department
heads, the County Manager, and elected officials, unless specific
approval is provided by the department head and the County Manager.

3. Other Food Related Expenses

a.

Provided funds are available, reasonable costs for food items in the
following situations are allowable expenses as approved by the
department head and County Manager.

e Scheduled executive meal time meetings as departmental budget
allows.

e  Refreshments for county or business-related meetings.
e Food for appropriate county ceremonies and celebrations.

e Refreshments for county employees and attendees at training
sessions or staff meetings.

e Food and beverages for emergency response crews as approved by
department head.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 7 of 10



b. A voucher must be submitted for payment with the date and description
of the activity, name of the event, and for whom food was provided
with receipts and invoices applicable.

F. Ineligible Expenses

1.

Include, but are not limited to, the following:

Airline club membership;

Childcare, babysitting, house-sitting, and pet-sitting/kennel charges.
Commuting between home and the primary work location;

Vehicle expense for commuting between home and the event, airport, etc.,
except that which exceeds the miles of the employee s normal home-to-
work commute, including return home, in his/her personal vehicle,

Cost incurred by traveler’s failure to cancel travel or hotel reservations in
a timely fashion, unless the needed cancellation was beyond the control of
the employee;

Passports, vaccinations, and visas when not required as a specific and
necessary condition of the travel assignment;

Personal entertainment expenses including in-flight movies, headsets,
health club facilities, hotel pay-per-view movies, in-theater movies, social
activities, and related incidental costs;

Travel accident insurance premiums or purchase of additional travel
insurance;

Alcoholic beverages except as related to a business-related meal expense
pursuant to Section (E)(2) in this policy and approved by the County
Manager;

Tobacco and vaping related products;

Laundry and cleaning;

Valet services except when no reasonable alternative vehicle parking
exists and when approved by the department head, Comptroller, or
County Manager;

Personal telephone calls;

Business-class and first-class travel accommodations when coach-class is
available;

Meals and lodging if included in registration fee or otherwise provided;
Clothing;

Fines, forfeitures or penalties;

Rental vehicles for local business trips/meetings;

Rental vehicle for personal use while on county business;

Expenses of a spouse or other non-employee;

Loss or damage to personal property;

Barber, beauty parlor, shoe shine or toiletries;

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 8 of 10



e Telephone deposits;
e Other personal or non-business related expenses.

Use of Personal Vehicle

Reimbursement will be at the IRS allowed mileage rate in effect January 1 of each
year.

1.

2.

Mileage to the Reno-Tahoe Airport will be reimbursed based on 30 miles
(from Virginia City to the Airport).

Mileage will be reimbursed for business related trips to Carson City and
Reno, based on 17 miles from Virginia City to Carson City, and 32 miles from
Virginia City to Reno.

County vehicles should be used, when available, before the use of private
vehicles. When using a personal vehicle for county business, the employee’s
personal insurance provides primary coverage. The county’s insurance
provides no coverage on the employee’s vehicle. If a personal vehicle is used
as personal preference when a county vehicle is available, mileage will be
reimbursed at 50%, per state statute number 281.160 (3).

Reimbursement is to be requested on the Travel Expense Claim Form. (Form
F004-A). The claim form should be filled out as completely as possible, with
back-up information. Odometer readings are not required.

Only meals and mileage are reimbursable on a Travel Expense Claim Form
(Form F004-A).

Use of County Vehicles

1.

Unless otherwise authorized by the County Manager or department head, only
County employees are authorized to drive county-owned vehicles.

Use of Rental Vehicles

1.

The expense of a rental vehicle will be reimbursed when rented for business
necessity, not personal convenience. Payment for rental vehicles must be
made using a County issued credit or procurement card whenever possible for
insurance purposes. If use of a personal credit card is approved on an
exception basis, the rental agreement must clearly be signed “on behalf of
Storey County”. Failure to do so may expose an employee to added personal
liability in the event of accidents.

Local Travel/Business Expenses

1.

An employee may obtain reimbursement for actual expenses incurred in
conducting business within the County at the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center,
and Lockwood area.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 9 of 10



VIL

2.

1.

A person seeking reimbursement under this section shall submit a Travel
Expense Claim form along with receipts, meeting information, etc. and
authorized signatures.

Use of County Credit and Procurement Cards

Employees may use County credit or procurement cards to pay for necessary
travel expenses. Use of a credit card is to be authorized by the department
head, elected official or County Manager.

Cash advances on these cards are prohibited.

Each Department Head/Elected Official is responsible for the use of cards
issued to their employees. Each department will be responsible for paying
from their budget the expenses so incurred.

Employees using cards must retain and submit, by standard claim form,
receipts for all expenses charged to the card within five business days
following return to work. Any disallowed charges are the responsibility of the
employee and shall immediately be paid to the County.

On occasion, vendors will charge the card before services are actually
received. To avoid payment of finance charges, when ordering by card, the
vendor should be asked when the charge will be assessed to the card and if it
is before the receipt of services, the charge should be submitted to the
Auditor’s Office for payment.

The use of a credit/procurement card is a privilege, not a right. Abuse of the
use of these cards may result in disciplinary action up to and including
termination. Attached form (C) must be read and signed before card is issued
to an employee/department head.

L. Use of Personal Credit Cards

1.

Use of personal credit cards to pay for county expenditures is not acceptable.
To the extent possible, travel should be paid for in advance by procurement
card or by a requested travel advance.

M. EXCEPTIONS:

The County Commission may authorize an exception to any provision of this
policy so long as it does not conflict with any Federal, State or County law.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: This policy will be reviewed every 5 years or a
necessary by the County Manager’s Office.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 10 of 10



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1.

Title: For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $497,623.87 and .
accounts payable claims in the amount of $922,993.52.

Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: Attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: O

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

@ Department Head Department Name: Treasurer
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ 1 Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

B




abea

Ead

0D SNI J4IT TYNOILYN NTODNIT 09°L 81/€2/¢ 91T S609€0 ZIP9ED
suweN x03donpag Junowy ajed # pad # Ad8yd # 08D
Teutbrap juawaoeTday
:paoeTdal ussq SeY YOaUDd I03oNpap Butmorroz eyl
19318169y juswanerday Ydayd LE0S'6 81/80/90 :uny

WILSXAS TIO¥AYd ALNNOD XFAUOLS ¥E9Z90u4d :3day



AHINSYIAL

YHATTOALINWOD

YANOISS IWNOD UANOISSIWWOD NYWAIVHO

81/L2/S0

AYVNINITEId

S

abeg

:SIQUOTSSTWWO) JO pieodg Ajuno) Asiols ayl Aq psaoaddy

LZ°919'L6Y :pasangsTg Te30L
LO"60% ST :1030Npag 03 Isjsuell I9sn TeIOL
€V 26€ LT 19714 dog 11Q uo pasgx spad a2ko1dwg TEIOL
6€£°606 'ELT :3150dsg 3031Tg 93AoTdwg Te30L
LI ZEE'T :g30ayD @9Akordug Te3lOL
9L79CT 2T :§30aYyD I03dnpad Te3ol
Sy 9vVv LY 189d1L4d I0J aajsuel] IS Telor
Junowy sakeqd 4 paa # a4
/# dwd  /308yD
6 8 L 9 S v € gz 1T :sdnoxap T110xked
:93eJ pus-potiad 8T/T0/90 :93eg YOaUD aeTnbay :adAl 110aAed
EERERSER S BEL o) T0:2%:€T 81/0€/S0 ‘uny
WHILSAS TTOYAVd ALNOD ATAOCLS v0TS0dd :3day



00°0L (2421 81/80/9 SHTYELIVE 1T Zv¥80981d-05¢€
21 8L0°T (2421 81/80/9 ANMAINI ¥ILId HOIVASIA 607Z2ZT0V6T
$9°0S€ (242" 81/80/9 SHMAININd NONVD AHAWOD L89¥%60
92°95¢ 2420 81/80/9 INDI SOIHAVAD NONVD ¥a £¥09%0
8L SST'T vevl 81/80/9 VIINI VAT HSAOHIANOD 071969610
S6°6€ET [ 2420 8T/80/9 ID NOS¥VD LINN FOVNOLS 0000-8TT00000-YBZEQD
S6°LT 9Z¥T 81/80/9 SAWNLSOD AYTd NOZVWY €M
00°6% 9zl 81/80/9 UIVHD EDIAJL0 NOZYWY €M
L8 ¥ET 0E¥T 81/80/9 SHITAdNS EDIAAO0 22/S0 ILIAYAId L
1€° %S 0E¥T 81/80/9 TYER /ONINIVHL LT/S0 ILLANAIA L
88°92 1evT 81/80/9 ALT FINVISNN SHNYYLS
00° %02 €EVT 81/80/9 SUAANTL TL-L ONQAH HDIW VILIAAS
0% ¥E €EVT 8T/80/9 NOLINE HSNd HOIVT SL-L ANO-H VLLANAS
6L°29 zevT 81/80/9 NEAYOS ALIANDHS
9L°29 0E¥T 81/80/9 L 1S 0€/50 NOIXIQ'S
LE TIT (442 81/80/9 THLOH YOLDEASONd
66°62 zZvl 81/80/9 ADOLS QUYDILSOd
08°9%Z (4421 81/80/9 ONIHLIOTD ILSOd
187022 E4A 81/80/9 SISIM YAATNOHS HAATIL 10dHEQ FDILA0
00°S¥ zZevl 81/80/9 NVOIN MUITD 04 DNIONIVAIL AAVION
ov €T TEPT 81/80/9 MIT FONVISAN avan
00" 7T 1421 81/80/9 NOILINNWWY MNVTH T NEIA
99°658 Lzvl 81/80/9 MWAINAD LISIA A04 SNEA INI¥d WYQAELISWY aX
82° 0TS €21 81/80/9 ODVN 4400 TIVA NNS WD
LY oL (X421 81/80/9 0D¥YN ONZY AIAIAYW WL
0S° 1% €2V 81/80/9 OD¥N ONIE AIUIAVW WL
¥L"0S €21 81/80/9 ODVN OHVAI NOJEATHD WL
00°0€ (421 8T1/80/9 ONILIATW LSVANVIANE HNAL WAHNN A0
00°0%9 (X421 8T/80/9 WYX" JH4S IDHH 40
00°8€ET EEPT 81/80/9 AAALLVE NAVd M1 \SEMOT HAIAL
L6°6T €EVT 81/80/9 SINVd ¥IMYAA TO0d aH H4JEL
zz L €EVI 81/80/9 ¥M ® SIAN -SIHDIT IS D QH H44dr
S2°8S CEVT 81/80/9 a0 INDIEZUIIM AWA MNOSYL
95°%ST 0E¥T 81/80/9  SUNGWIZY OL FAAOTIWI 82/S0 ZITddS' L
-6V € 0EVT 81/80/9 SUNEWIHTY XYL %2/S0 HONOTINDDW' L
887665 ZEVT 81/80/9 61Ad ELINS ¥MIIS TLOAY 85T669606# ANI
6622 ZEVT 81/80/9 ay0D YILNAWOD BE98LSE " "# ANI
00°99T SZYT 81/80/9 183D HITYEH TIVL g ‘YaNIAYD
£€9-z2 LZvl 81/80/9 Savy ITIHD plelol:icio) £
ZS 61E TEVI 81/80/9 ¥DIAJI0 YHENSVIAL/NUATO SHITAANS NOILOATH
00°089°T SZY1 81/80/9 ao0d HIVWNI OONIM 1 ‘NISOd
00°S6S SZYT 81/80/9 NIV¥L ISNI HDITY ZI1N0d 1 ‘NISoa
00° 02 82ST 81/80/9 HSNIIXT 1IN TEAVEL QTITANYD
80°62T 82ST 8T/80/9 81/82/S WANNIQ TIAVEL QTHIANYD
00°0S (142 81/80/9 ¥D AdH AIHSYIAWAN DJYN DdYN-NIAEN D
0Z2°€80°¢2 62T 81/80/9 dH SIL¥ND IHOIT WOAOA L1SAMHLNOS ' -NIATN'D
00°096 62Z¥1 81/80/9 V¥D 4dH DEN 8102 WNAOI DdYN -NIAZN'D
SL'€8 621 81/80/9 ¥AHAd ONILIAW d0H TE/S0 F4YD HSIA -NIAEN'D
08°102 62¥%1 8T/80/9 dH YNOJAA IHOITA WNIOA Y1T3a -NIAEN'D
18°SL 6Z¥1 8T/80/9 LAFILS S ZLE LANJAINI LIV -NIAEN'D
86" TL €EVT 81/80/9 AVED QEVNDAAIT IATINO0 WIMS Adud
16°0T SZYT 81/80/9 SIADAVL ¥Od QAOOM £ 'SyAMOE
€ 8TT (44 an 81/80/9 WNOJINQ AJITIVE
90" 2¢ [X42¢ 81/80/9 ONILIIW OVANIS NOTIVd ODVXAL OV
€1°T0T SZYT 8T/80/9 WOOd 3 ONINIVIL WOSAN 9 ‘OUONILINY
INFWAYd Q¥VD TYIDYAWAOD INO STIEM LET
TYLIOL INNOWY #SNWAL aIva NOILAI¥DSEA # EDIOANI IdZd-aNnd FOANIA FIFWAN

adavd od
YALSIODIY q¥YD ISVYHO¥NG 8T/L0/90 S3eq uny

abeq ALNNOD AJ¥OLS 1S08¥%G€d :oN 3Ixodey



0T:8T:0T

T

sbeg

LO"T99°%T

99°12¢‘6

IYLOL

¢ 2WTL uny

LO"T99°¥T

00" %02
€€ €CS
S6°99
62°288
00°S6Z°¢€
65°60¢€
S2°'8S
99°12¢’6

SQAYD ASYHNING

00" 00" 00"
00" 00" 00°
00" 00" 00°
00" 00" 00~
00" 00° 00°
00" 00" 00"
00" 00" 00°
00" 00" 00"
00" 00" 00"

SAD DINCULDIATH SYISNVEL LOFTI SADIHD

L¥0dad AUYWWNS aNNd
ONILNNODOV 13ADANd 2IT8nd
ALNNIOD AFIOLS

00°
00"

SADHAHO dAAJAL

TY.LOL

aIiv IYNINW 04T

LY LOIYLSIA H¥Id 0ST
ASNOH Y¥ddO0 S¥HdId TET
NOISSIWWOD WSIANOL DA O0€T
SINVYD ALVLS/TVIIQEd 902
daNnNd 1L3N0D FADILSNL  L8T
Savod 0co

IVIINED TO0O

NOIL4AI¥DSIa ANNJ

8T/L0/90 : ®3ed U
00EvEd ‘O 33043y



z

LOT99'¥T

LO T99°%T

IYLOL
aavo

obeg

6L°96
26°58
L6 06
9098

LNNOWY

YANOISSIWWOD

YINOISSIWWOD
NVWIIVHD
AFANSVHAL
ATTTOALANOD
qLva NOTIVZIACOHLAVY (ONY MAIAHY A0 LNAWNIDTHTMONMIOV
*»TBI0L PIED«
1444 8T/80/9 VYILNI TSA €NS AOOMIDOT AZZHEOS6MANLBAS
12441 8T/80/9 I3LV LANJAINI "1SA VLIS ZTEWZODEMAWLEBAS
vyl 81/80/9 I3LV LANJALNI ISA OSDA WNEZWZOO6MAWLBAS
[4A A 81/80/9 WOD " T¥DILOVL TI S
#SNVAL [ChA-{a8 NOILATY¥DSHA # ADIOANI 1ddd-AaNNJ

YALSIDIY qa¥D ASYHOUNA
ALNNOD AHAIOLS

JoaNIa ATTNON

od
8T/L0/90 @ ©3eQ UM
1508%S€d :ON a1o0dsy



AFNYOLLY IDI¥LSIA

YINOISSTWHWOD
JIANOISS IWWOD
NVWAIVHD
AFTINSVILL
YATIOLLANWOD
dIVa NOILVZIYOHLAV ANV MAIAHA 40 LNIAWIODATTMONADVY
00°000°9 Te30L S}OaYD
00°000°9
00°000°9 SZ 81/80/9 SHOIAYAS TVNQISSHAOUd 9-05-8T ANI
OTT dNO¥D JYIILAOH Lz
10301 Junowy #19yonop a3eq uot3idraosaq aDTOAUT Iopusaa Zaquny
oaud yoauyDd
81/80/9 S309YD OTUOIIDSTH I03F I93ISTHdY 81/L0/90 ajeq uny

T abedq ALNNOD AHIOLS HO08ETEd :ON 3x0d3Y¥



T

0S5 6€%

00°09
00°0S¢E
00°52s
00°0S
00°s¢
00°8Z¢
00°000°S
00°¥SE'TT
00°€gE’'8

09°LLT

LB"ZTT
00°L9T'¥
veE"19S
28 82t
0T°SST'T

£€°8¢€2

Z6°680°1

SL°09

00°000°8
00°000°0T
Z9°0LE’0T
81°226'9
TYLOL
MDEHD

abeg

00°LZ
05°21¥
00°09
00°0S¢€
00°g2s
00°0s
00-se
00°s22
00°000°S
00°%SE’TT
00°€€€’8
0565
00" %L

0T v¥%
L8°CTT
00°L9T'V
vE°19S
Z8°8¢C¢t
0T"§ST'T
e PL
0S° 9%
ve'vL
85702
LL'8
08°€1
Z6°680°1
SLTTIT
00°6%
00°000°8
00°000°0T
Z9°0LE'OT
81°226°9
LNOOWY

STLY8
STLY8

969%8
Sy9vs
£%9¥8
Z9L%8
00L?8
1 AYA 4]
oT9v8
S09v8
8€9¥%8
1L9v8
L9798
TL9%8
voLV8
6€9V8
0TLY8
T99%8
LLLY8
029v8
029%8
0298
099%8
09978
099%8
¥Y¥o¥8

619798
61978

€298
ovove
Se9¥8

¥0LP8

H#SNVAL

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T/L0/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

8T1/80/9

dLva

81/80/9

81/0€/S - 8T/LT/S
NOILVALSINIWAY OITdNd
LSTZ AVW dWNd OJILddS

dWNd JILddS

ININdINDH

d34 SSUNLIM - 41290871
81/0€-L1/S A¥ATHE NI SIvVL
J400¥ ZL NIS 1DQ3d SNI

LHOISYIAO dOTIAZA WWOD

SAITddNS ONITTIE €NV
SHITddNS ONITIIE 8RNV
34 ONITIA WIVTID

¥X SSHTIIM

YIANIVLIY dd 8TO0C AV
JIINFID LISIA ¥OJ SA0C0H
TYOISAHd MOINANY °S

1S I 0€C AMAMA ITVYHASY
dOHS

HD

dOHS

AJANNVT SL LS

AYANAVYT CL LS

AYANNVYT TL LS

ADYNDIS NOILVOOT

A3¥
gONJ ¥00d -d0r

LOELO¥d dWI YIALVMALSYM
JTNAOW ONILAMOIL
d TYMENIY FDONVANSNI 61/8T1

TYMANTY IONWINSNI

NOILAI¥DSEd ADIOANI

JALSIOIY ADIHD
ALNOOD AHIOLS

avo

SIMAT LILODS 'TIavnNg

a TIISSNY ‘' NOONWIg

MAYID SHWVYL ‘VINE0H

MAVTID SAWYL “VINdOoH
SHSTYJHYALNT Ad¥EL

JTYq ‘' LLINNIE

HYJ0Hg3IQ ‘JYIANIE

‘ONI ‘dNo¥d ¥sSn ¥od1ad

dS ONILTIASNOD NYOd HILLVYE

INIVIE ‘JEONEJS-TINANEYE

QLT ILNIRdOTIAHA SAVY
OT1 ITI ALITIHOW L3IV
QLT ‘SYINIAVA WOAINIDIY
ONI ONIHSITENd VIAVodv
SSANTIAM ONY HIIVEH DYV

NOILDOAYILSNOD SHWY

ONI O0DSTVY

ONI SNDIS HANIJTVY

ONI D071 ANIJTV

OTT ADOLSWOD TTI¥

OTT ‘SIEADIL ALIAILDY
ONI ‘HDNVAASNI H ANV ¥
ONI ‘dIDONVMASNI H aNV ¥
JOANIA

8T/L0/90
S1€1€d

6L0C6

8L02C6
LLOCe
9L0C6
SLOZ6
vLO0C6
€£L0C6
2L026
1L0C6
oLoze

69026

89026
L9026
99026
59026
75026

£€9026

9026

19026

09026
65026
850¢C6
LS0Z6
95026
YIGWON
ADHHD

@3eq uny
:oN 3aoday



4

VL 68T
00°0SE’€E
60°6¥8

SE" 697

00°S9%
00°%88°T
007021
vZ 01

05" ¢1

667666 %1

8L B6S

ze'z99'’e

00-0¢
9€°68

09°L9T1°¥%

ST"8LT

66°02%

v°88
00°20¢
00°SL

TYIO0L
ADEHD

abeg

00°L96°9
VL 681
00°0S€‘€
60°67%8
s8-8
S6°S2
S6°S¢
06°1S
S6°0¢€

56 °9¢
S6°0¢€
S6°EL
S6°¥S
G6° VS
00°59v
00°¥88°T
00°02T

¥Z2°0T

66°6VL VT
007082

8L°86S

2S5 ¥68°1
08 L9L

00702
9£°68

00°zZvz’1
09°526°C

86 ETT
LT %9

99°08¢
£E'0PT

iv°88
00°zo2Z
00°S¢L

LNOOWY

LYLY8
0LLY8
LE9YB
£vLY8
v99¥98
09L%8
6697V8
vZovs
vLov8
vi9v8
vLSY8
vLov8
vL9V8
vLov8
869%8
[4:24:]
9LLY8
S89%8

91Ly8
9T1L?8

LS9%8
8T9%8

299%8

22998
[44°3 2]

bSLv8
SL9P8

cL9ve
2L9%8

€99%8
£99%8

189%8
189%8

T29v8
9€eLY8
Sv9¥8

H#SNYAL

81/80/9
8T1/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T1/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T/80/9
81/80/9
81/90/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
8T/80/9
8T/80/9

JLYa

81/80/9

ALYadN dod

NIVHEL TVINONYNI dIA HWIFY
ONILIMNOIL ¥ LOVALNOD AVNW
SAITAdNS ONILOA

TIVL -IOIA¥ES ¥ALYM
TVINTA dTLEM

dALYM-HO

YILYM SL IS

JALYM vL IS

UIALYM 1L 1S

YILYM CTL 1S

XD XD AVdE¥ SL IS
XD MO AvVdId YL IS
0§/0S LITdS 1IADIL

SHHONNT NIV3L dIA

NOILVIIYdUHILINT

8T/0€/S - 8T1/LT/S

1¥0ddNs WY¥D0¥d 8T0Z INAL

JasdNgsIa LNIWNHSINIYO

SHIIL ¥ vE€99¥d
SHYIL ¥ TT8TS¥A

SdEJ 1IN0D ONIA 0D AFAOLS

¥ALYM 8T/€/S - 8T/%/¥%

YIUANS
ANVTET/HLIWNS /d3TANS

¥3Idvd LITIOL
TI0Y TTIMOL

IZA T30 dDI440
1I3A TTED 401440

S6SV-9€T SAVOY
Ld0ddns iA1nr
TOUINOD IS3d ATHLNOW AVKW

NOILAT¥OSAd FDIOANI

YALSIDAY ADIHO
ALNNOD AZYOLS

ONI C"ANA ANV ADOTOD3
T AQNVD ‘NYONNA
T AANVYD ‘NVYDNNQA

I SWELSAS ONILOA NOINIWOQ

ONI ¥SN SHOI¥A

‘W 1¥F90d ‘3TANZD

D17 'LNWONW INIOd NMOYD
HSUTHWNIW HTVSITOHM ODLSOD

OAS NOILYISNVIL JIVAOJE0D

077 TIIW dT09 XDOLSHWOD

ONI LSHFHD ALINAWWOD

AIN 40 IDIAYIS NOILOHATIOO

ONI JIIL OWD
TANSYIAL NOSAVYD J0 ALID

ALID NOSAVD 40 ALID

A¥ES ODNIJJIYLS TTIMLIYHD

ATddNS AYVLINVS TVAINID

dIHSYEANLIYE ODTTED
dy0D INIAWAINDE NYWHSVYO

ONI JTTISVD

JOaNIA

81/L0/90
STETHd

66026
86026
L6026

96026

S6026
V6026
£60¢26
26026

16026

06026

68026

880C6

L8026
98026

S80C6

¥8026

£8026

28026
18026
08026
ATENON
ADIHD

: 93eg uny
:ON 2Jxoday



00°26 599v8 81/80/9 AIAAVA /NOSNVYE -quVYD Snd

SNOISSHMAWI HAILYAONNI 91126
PZT €92'91 $8°89T L0978 81/80/9 £€5000-T%060091
19 L69°'% L09¥8 81/80/9 £5000-T%06009T
86°96€°TT LO9V8 81/80/9 €5000-T%06009T
HLIVAH NMOLIWOH ST12Z6
68°0Z€ 99" L ¥59%8 81/80/9 dIN0E TIVLISNI WYD MO
SY ETZ 8Z9v8 8T1/80/9 ALIAINOD
8L 66 8Z9¥8 81/80/9 SNMOQ HIL -MAL dWNA
FOIA¥IS IIAEED LOdEd FWOH ¥T1126
0S°S€T 05622 LTILDS 81/80/9 8T/0€/S - 8T/LT/S
009 LILY8 8T/80/9
OHDS Q¥¥M HI¥NOA DIVQLSIH £1126
T0°152°t TE€E°6LO’T 8L97v8 81/80/9 SEITddNS €Y
0L TLT 8L9V8 81/80/9 SAITIANS HWY
NIZHDS AJNZIH Z1126
LE SSE LESSE 6vLY8 81/80/9 L3S ININOTHD AU -YALYM
QL1 INIVW T1IDVA X1ddNS aH 11126
Tr-2z1’e SZ°6SH'T LZ9%8 81/80/9 savoy
0S5 €2€°T L29%8 81/80/9 Savoyd
9€°6€€ LZ9%8 81/80/9 Savoyd
ai1 ‘IvH 01126
90°0T¥ 90°0LE 98978 81/80/9 INZY ¥VEd ANOd
00°0% 98978 81/80/9 SATLITILN
D17 SINAWLSHANI 419D 60126
007092 00°S9 9L9%8 81/80/9 FDIAYIS TL IS
00° 59 9L9%8 81/80/9 ADIA¥AS ZL IS
00°59 9L9V8 81/80/9 HOIA¥ES vL 1S
00°§9 9,978 81/80/9 FOIAYIAS SL IS
S3d ¥ ALINIIL NISVE LVAAD 80126
00°6L9 05295 £LLYS 81/80/9 S¥$ X S¥H §°ZT
05211 €LLY8 81/80/9 S¥$ X S¥H §°¢C
HOL ‘AdIESNVAD L0126
v¥1°222°€ [AREA YA 9Z9¥8 81/80/9 0%T IS OTE NN MT
20°610°C 9Z9¥8 81/80/9 ZZ¢ T1SA BEV TINN-IUL
WAFTO¥LEd LIS/ALYD NIATOD 90126
PO S6L L Y0°G6L L ZyLv8 81/80/9 ¥HQ¥O ¥Id
NAIDS TYIILATYNY DISNIAOL S0TZ6
£€1°2ee £€1°22¢C ¥19%8 81/80/9 8T ANNL NOISIA TAAILAEY
0D SNI F4IT DdS ALITAAIA ¥01Z6
16°26€°T T6°C26E°T £69%8 81/80/9 dSNOH d0 S¥HdId TEO0L6DEIT
dT1 SYDTIEVNIA €0126
9L 2SL 88°88S 99L¥8 81/80/9 HD
88°€9T LSLY8 8T1/80/9 €0/S0 96¥6SCIOTTANI ZL-1IS
dT SYOTIANYRd z01Z6
9T 69 9169 £59%8 81/80/9 AOOMADOT -IHII0D
0D SOo¥E YAWAVI 10126
6%°89T°T 9L°991 529%8 81/80/9 N4 ' XEd YOLVIAVY -Z1ZZT90S
8€°6S S29%8 81/80/9 SAV¥d -AZAWOD
SL*89 SZ9¥8 81/80/9 Savd HMVAHE $855909
[ 22N 2°34 szZ9ve 81/80/9 YOLVIAVYE ZT1Z2290S
ZE'S6 SZ9v8 81/80/9 HSOH YOLDANNOD vH8TSUd
2T 1Y 5Z9%8 81/80/9 FTUWII YMZ SCTEBPOS
8v BET 5Z9v8 81/80/9 DAS91Id PH8TSHL
ST %02 5z9%8 81/80/9 SEAVEE - AZAWOD
ONI X1ddNS OLOY 1LOITIZ 00tTZ6
00°L96'9
TYLOL LNOOWY HSNWVUL qALYA # o/d NOILdI¥DSEA IDIOANI HOANIA HAEWNN
MOFHD MDHEHD
81/80/9 ¥ALSIDAA MDHHD 8T/L0/90 : 93eq uny

€ obeg ALNNOD AHAOLS §T€TEd (ON 3xoday



14

00°008°T
00°S6

00°0G89°T

19°2sL

9€°6LZ'8
95709
L9°999°1T

087998

00°000°9
00°000°T
Y0 VIV E
86°¥8€°¢€
00" 8L
00°00¢
00007
LSTLT

v¥ 2st

0e"CTY

00°00S

LT L9S

00°26
TYLOL
ADEHD

abedq

28 LLE
15°2¥%¢

007008°T
00° 56

00°0S8
00°008

25°8S
LY"ST
VAR A4
¥8°06

¥ L9
21 12
aL'Le
2106

8% %4
9€°6LZ°'8
95°09
L9°999'T

00°90S
05°6S

00°000°9
00°000°T
PO VIV'E
86°¥8€°€E
00°8L

go ooz
00°00%
LS LT

¥ ZST

08°8
0S €0%

00°00S
057981

8E°¥6
62 98¢

LNNOWVY

65LYV8
6SLY8

T0LV8
S69%8

L9978
L99%8

£9L¥8
£9L%8
689%8
€9L78
ovLvs
L6978
L6978
L6978
L6978
€097%8
8v9¥8
659v8

8TLY8
8TLY8

0ELYS
62ZLV8
8ZL%8
LTLY8
6L97%8
089%8
69LY8
909%8
ST9%8

££978
£E978

859%8
959¥8

969¥8
LLI9V8

#SNVAL

81/806/9
8T/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

HLYd

81/80/9

# 0/4

SHAQOTD
LTYS AONH ZL 18

LNIWILVLS AVKW

LSHA AVINMOTO
LSEA WWVH

‘HdVYL ‘¥3IVd

YANIJO ALT ASVAA AAA
YIYHD MEN

SHJOTIANT

SHITddNS ONITIOd

SdITddns

SdI1ddns

SHITddns

NAWSSHSSY HOLVW INV¥D AdH
QDVN

L¥0ddNS Wvddodd 810Z dANAL

81/0¢€/S - 8I/LT/S

LADANG TMYED TIIDMOD

JANVE TMYED TIIDMOD
OISSIWWOD ¥ALHONVA/VFHIVA
NOISSIWWOD MWD TIAAA
SdITddNS €WV

SENA JIHSUIEGWINW 8102
SHDIAYAS DNILINSNOD AV

ADNVANSNI H4I7

NIVd AVHdS XOVTd -WVHLIVM
SNOIS 1AHILS

YEOIL4A0 HLIVAH 8T0Z ANAL
YALAVAY LI0d IAVADAN SWIY

dOLAVT ¥IDAYHD VYD Md
LINYAHIE YHLNI¥d dTTAL

NOILJI¥DSHA dOIOANI

JALSIOEY ADFHO
ALNNOD XJAOLS

ANTYA ANJL ISAOH ONNOW
1 1¥3€90¥ ‘STUUOW

HDA¥E ‘YAOLNOW

WNOAINN ¥ SLAAOVL SUHATIIN

NI SNOILNTOS ADIAA0 OJLIW
ONI DOSSVY ¥ NAIZYD NAATIHNW
ADYL ' RFIINDOW

ALD ALINNWWOD NIVML XAV

NOISNVW AVDOVIW

0171 SINAAT INTE dINOIT
017 SINIAT 3NTE AINOIT
D11 SINIAZ dANTd aAIndIg
OT1 SINIAT dNTH AINOIT
ONI LSISSY-34IT

HYI4 TYNOIDHEY FOHVLI HIVT
W FI0S ¥ ¥A0A T HLINNIA
0D SNI dAIT ALID SYSNYA

NOSNHOL ¥ qdvMmdd gpanp

21T ddr

DdanW NYNNATOW O SHWYL

D711 EDANOS T.LI
JOaANIA

8T/L0/90
s1e€Tdad

LETZE
9€1Z6

SETZ6

velde

EETZH
ZeT1ee
1€TZ6

0€1Ce

62126
8C1Z6
L2126
9c126
SClce
144843
[ A4S
zzrze
12126

02126

61126

BT1Z6

LTTZ6

JTENNN
ADEHD
o3eq uny
ON 3xoday



S

00" %2

00°L1E

00°STT1
§5°6T1

00°ST¢

oo-cLee

88 %11

ST°86¢C
6L°0SS
00°00T
00°0%

Sy z85’'€e

vS v8L
69°128°'1
96°GST‘T

LT Z8L L

6 1ET
21°668
TY.LOL
ADEHD

abea

00°02T
057001

00°v2
05°8%2
00°L
0Ss°19
00°STT
§S5°6TT

00706
00°s¢t

oo0-Lee

8079
88°68
86" ¥

v6' €T
ST°'86¢C
6L°0SS
00°00T
00° 0%
TT°619°1T
8L°89€°¢€
00°000°S
SZ°S61°¢
00°000°S
00°S¥T’'Z
052101
T8°1vC’'€E
¥5°v8L
69°128°1
96°SST'T
L9°698°S
05°888
00°¥%0L
00°0¢e
00°00T
¥6°TET

TL°0%
80°8€T1

LNNOWY

TTILY8
TIL¥8

0cCLv8
6TLY8
6T1LYE
6TLV8
L89V8
169%8

€TLY8
1448 %]

9%L¥8

62978
629v8
629¥8
629v8

1€9v8
SSL¥8
T9Lv8
91978
Z19%8
Z19v8
219%8
219%8
c19v8
219v8
c19v8
z19v8
0SL¥8
TELYS
8GL7v8
LT9¥8
LI9%8
LT9%8
L1978
LT9%8
E9¥8

Z5L%8
Z5L%8

#SNVIL

81/80/3
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T1/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

J1IVa

81/80/9

# o0/4a

LOdIJHD LSHL ¥OLINOW d¥Id
SATAALLVE ~L3A IMONWS

81/0€/S ~ B8T/LT/S
81/0€/S - 81/L1/S
8T1/S2/S WO¥d INIWAVIIHANO
NOILDEASNI TYNNNY
LOVALNOD JOLVAETH SUHAIA

AdINS ATINL HIV
ANO¥d INVED S713Nd

SONIMS -MT

JILTII TIO 0PE9SAUL
TI0 ¥VED P¥BISHA
AAVTd FAINM -dOHS
TYES THM ¥¥81S5¥4
NOISSTIWWOD ODNINNVYIJ
JaLOATIO0 Sd3L

IOVIOLS TY.IA0d

T0-9S€S0-LT-E¥Cd# TO
QIVYMHLY TO-€0€SO0-LT-€%Zd#
T0-S9T1G0-LTI-€E¥Zd# IO
T0-ZESTO-LTI-E¥ZAd# TO
T0-8S0S0-LT-€PEd#T
T0-L86V0-9T-€¥2d# 1O
T0-€v9%0-9T-€¥2d# 1D
T0-8T6 T0-6T8V0LIEYCA# 1D

NOILDNAIA STANA
HOLVW AINNOD TIdd4V

AQ/¥3AYODHY TW

fedcs

S1L¥0ddns -TLTIA

SAEA ¥YIWWYIS
SONILLIJ-MO1d

NOILJI¥DSAA IADIOANI

YALSIDIY ADFHD
AINNOD AHYOLS

ONI SHDIAEd NOILDALOYd

dSN0H Yd3dO §.¥dAdId

a OTIONV 'ININIId
NOILDHLOYd d¥Id AVAHIAAO

ANYAWOD dOLVAITH SILO

IS 3 SOIHAVYD HJIS FHL NO

¥ @IVHDI¥ ‘SYAITO

SASINAYAINAT OLOV ATIIHA¥.O
ONI VINNOJITYD 40 TALXAN
ONI HOIAYHES TYDIAT YAYAIN

(ON¥) QLT ANTd YAVAIN

ATINSVHIL AIN

1d SNI ADNIDVY OITHNd AIN
AYLSHYO0A 40 AIA AN
SHOYNOSHY NVWNH I43d AIN

YITTOILAWOD AHN

YATTOYLANWOD AEIN

SIYYd AONAL ¥ OLAV VAYN

JOANIA

81/L0/90
STETEd

S9126

¥S126

£5126
25126

15126

05126

[ A%4)

8%1Z6
LY1Z26
9%T26
ERARA

lAA%A

€¥1Z6
Zv1c6
1S A543

0vice

6€1%6

BETE6

AITWON

ADHHD
¢ 83eqg uny
:oN 3xoday



9

2L E0T
00" €T
09°68%
zZg8-"sLe
0o0-ozL’‘z
00°S52¢
66 66L
00°261
00" €ELE
00°098°T
98°S1¢C
SLTPT
85 0¥8°L
00°006°T
00°0SL'2
05°G6¢C
TYLOL
ADAHD
obea

09°68%

08°2LT
2e€° €01

0o-ozL'T
00°see
66°66L
00°2C6T
00°€LE
00°09S°1
98°S1C
SL° YT
85°0%6°1
00-sce
00°000°'2
00°000'2
00°008
00°SLE
00°00s
00°006°T
00°0SL°T
00°SL

LNNOWY

899v8

TLLY8
TLLYS
TLLY8
TLLYS
TLLY8
TLL?8
TLLYS
TLLYS
TLLY8
TLLY8
TLLY8
TLLvs
TLLY8
TLLY8
TLLYS
TLLY8

TZL%8
TZL%8

LOLYB

v897%8
78978

v09¥8
CELYB
999%8
60LV8
[4%54:1
£8978
L9LY8
§59%8
95L¥8
£T978
£T9v8
£19¥8
£€19¥v8
£19v8
£19%8
SYLY8
11998
889%8

HSNVAL

81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
§1/80/9
81/80/9
8T/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

JLYa

81/80/9

ONINIVAL FAVA ONIDAOT

WOD WSI¥NOL ALID VINIDIIA
NOILVILSININGAY
OA-LdEd J¥II
HANOISSIWWOD
AINMOLIY LOI¥LSIA
OA-HOLVASIA "TYIINID
JOSSISSY

dOTIATA WWOD

Y14

AATHIHS

HOVAd FHL 40 dFOILsar
JSAOHLINOD -4 IYIHS
SAJOM DITaNd

OA-1d3Ad FUId
ptcler{omicy.

A¥ATO

81/0¢€/S - B8T/LT/S

SHESSVID HINIM

SHITA4NS €WV
SHITA4ANS HWY

SHOIAYAS TV¥DAT AWK
ONINNL ONVId

LSEA NITHWVH

SAQIYD 1S0d

LNIVW INOC

HONVNALIVA INIATAL
g0aN1S AVA

SADYVHD NONVD dOOMADOT
SLSVT8dX

8T0Z AV - AYWNNYL
DIMW TVYIDO0S

HOVEYLNO ‘VYIAAW TYIDOS
YIQIW D0S ‘SNOILVIHNA €nd
ASVEVLIVYA

OIMW ‘SNOILVTHY dNnd
LOOV¥ €699T09T

IVANN WOLSND WNESAW
ONIMOLINOW dSNOH Linod

NOILAI¥OSHA JDIOANI

dILSIDAY ADIHD
ALNNOD XFYOLS

AWAVH YAGIOIHDS

QT NI SADIAMES TIVEOTD DS

ONI ¥IALNIOLYY SAIVW INIVS

SOIHAVED ¥ d3M qIVNDIIVS

ONI Odddnd

dT1 ‘SATVH ¥ MO

AYYYT ‘NNVWADIA

“OTT TYDILDVL S¥DAA SY1
ONI ALTIVIDHAAS HOHVI ONHY
NI ONIdVDOSANVT NIFID ONIX
HOIAYES IVOIQAWOIE MANIH
ONI 'HESNJEY

(¥D) DONI OD NVDMOW AVd

ONI SHIDALVALS Vi
ddM0d ISVYHDIAN

OTT 1¥V SYHYdIS VAIA vdnd

YOANIA

81/L0/90
STETHEd

TLIZ6

oLIZe

69126

89126

LI9TZ6
99126
S591¢6
¥91¢26
€9126
29126
T9126
09126

6ST¢C6

8GTZ6
LS1Z6
95126
HIEWAN
MOFHO

a3eq uny
iON 3xoday



L

05" %02
00°000°‘2
ZS 699’V
00° 52T
65 86E°€ES
LY €SP
00°L2ZT'Y
00°SS
TL 9LS
00" €8¢
00°6
00°vecc
00°08L
IYIOL
MDHEHD
abeqg

00°000°'Z

LB OLT
L8 OLT
657821
98° 18T
657821
65°82T
L9°0%T
SL°2ST
Lo'toz
6S°821
00752t
65°86€'EES
LY ESY
00" LT’V
00°9S

0L 26T
I¥° 0S¢

00°S0T
00°8%T

00°ZTT
00°21T

LNOOWY

0gE9vs
0g9ove
0E9v8
0E9YS
0€9%8
0g9vs

80L%8
SLL?8

€0LY8
059v8
059¥8
059%8
069%8
059%8
059%8
069%8
059%8
059¥8
059%8
059%8
069¥8
059v8
059v8
059%8
059%8
059%8
059%8
059%8
€0LY8
059%8

90LY8
TSLY8
26978
S0LP8
CTLY8
9€3¥8
9€E9%8

9£9%8

67998
6v97v8

zeLY8
693978

699798

#SNVIL

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T1/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
8T/80/9
81/80/9

daiva

81/80/9

8T/6T/90 - 02/S0 MUMd IAL
8T/61/9-02/S0 WWOD
8T/61/9-02/S0 NIWAV
81/61/90-81/0Z/S0 TL HYIL
8T/61/90 - 8/02/S0 TIVL
61/90- 02/S0 €/¢ 214 OS

INIWANIOE OIaNY

WILSAS dI¥d

J § 2Lt

LS NOINN

S¥AdId
g5 0T

SAVE TLT

HSNIDIT SNg 61/8T
JIATADHY XYL ALIIA0Ud
SHTIVS HOYEW AINANOL
YIND LISIA ¥Od NID WHD
TO¥LNOD LS3Ed LOdddHD
T4 ONIJIS HLVDLSVYE 0S9%
a4 NVHINIT OvT

aad¥mMd 0S5 AMH SN & 0TO0T

WIOJITOD M¥OHd
SAITOS dsSnS 1LL‘Hd ‘S5-dod

81/0€/S - 81/L1/S
ATIW JLVANI

ATIN JLVYWNI

NOILdI¥OSHI EDIOANI

YILSIODIY MDIHD
AILNNOD AHYOLS

‘SNOILVYDINNWWOD AVISZYVIS
ONI ’'0OIGNV ANNOSAVLS

L13¥E ‘SEIAVIS

WILSAS ¥ILYM OD IS
A4TIIHS 0D LIS

LOIJLSIA TOOHDS 0D LS
LOI¥LSIA TOCHDS OO0 LS

S % INIM SYIZVID NIYIAHLNOS

ONI TOYINOD 1Sdd VHAAIS

0D ¥IAMOd DIJAIOVd WJIEIS

TYLNINNCIIANA YHHAIS

NATIY NVI¥H ‘JdVOHS

ONI SHOILNGIALSIA AUVWAAHS
JOANIA

81/L0/90
STETEd

v81¢C6
€8TZ6

Z81¢6

18126
08126
6LTC6
8L1C6
LLTCE

9LTZ6

SLTC6

viTZe

€LTITE

cLIZe

UIEWON

ADHHD
: 93eg uny
roN 3xoday



8

8L LEC'LY

00°6L6°CT

00°00T
007002

Ty S8Z’C

g6°9€€°9¢

S6°67

LY 61%

veE“¥S

€6°00L°2

¥9° 182

00°960°T

S5 18€°T

06°999

00°S€T’'T

TL°828°1
TYLOL
ADHHD

abeg

BL LEE LY

00°T00°T
00°T6
00°009°TT
00°2s
007691
00°09
00°9
00°00T
00°002
TL'2PTT
60°T2T'T
[4° B4
Sv'96%°¢
05°L89
00°S0T
00°000°9T
00°8%0°9
S6'6%

Le ree
0T 261

ve"$S

88'¥8S
S0°9T1'2

v9° 152

89LV8

SCLY8
SZLYB
Tv9v8
SZLY8
SCLY8
SCLY8
STLY8

76978
LELYSB

6097%8
BLLY8
8LLY8

CLLYS
cLLYB
CLLY8
cTLLY8
cLLY8

€£L978

SELYB
SELYB

20Lv8

vELYS
veELYB

oLsv8

veLys
vZLY8
vTLY8
veLys
veLvs
YLLY8

ZeEL¥8
ZELYS
ZELYS

1598
15998
159798
159v8

€CTLYB
€CTLY8

H#SNYAL

81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T1/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
8T/80/9

81/80/9
8T/L0/9
81/L0/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9

81/80/9
8T/80/9

81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T/80/9
81/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
8T/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9

8T/80/9
81/80/9

ChA-{e}

81/80/9

LT'21-§ JIVAAN 8T ANIONI
81/0€/S - 8T/LT/S

WYALS LZ 3 9C AWVNW

aNNdZAd MOHS HNOSITANG

81/9 TVINIQ IHFIILTA
0¥¥16 MD dH¥ 8T/€ IINA 1d
YILYM 8T/€ TVINIA LIA

YIATOO0D JYILVM TOOMADOT

YII- NIEd SOLT
S/M- NIAd SOLT

SZT "1SA / T8 HIA HOA
SET 1ISa / 009 S Md

ATLFTY ATIN JAIVdEA

81/0€/S - 8T/LT/S

IML a¥ 82 LTI0Z/%/0T-12/6
DTVYD 'O¥QAHO1Id€ QOS‘ THOTHD
ddd 9 -ANIYOTHO

¢ dda

STIVINALYN VIVAEY ¥FLTIL
STIVIYHLVN JYIVddY ¥HLIIL

HAYMMDOHS ' ¥ENOILIANOD
ISdLl’SIV0Td ' SHLVED ' SONTd

8T/0€/S - 8T/LT/S

NOILAT¥DSEA ADIOANI

dALSIDIY ¥DFHD
ALNNOD AFJOLS

ONI S¥NO0L ALID VINIDIIA

0D ¥¥ JEAONUL ¥ VINIDUIA

0D ¥ JEADNAL 3 VINIDEIA
SYYM NDIFAOA 40 SNYAHLIA

(OA)  FDIJAJIO0LSOd SN

00 SNI FYVYOHLIVAHAALINO

ONI ‘SHAIDOTONHDHL AHTAL

SAS ¥ILVM SMOQVAW IJAADNUL

LNAWIAOYAWI TYAIANID IdL

‘ATIA  ONOALSWAY  TYANNOHL

01T WNATOALId SYWOHL

dNILVWITHL

SA0EMOD INOLSHWOL HHL

ANYdWOD ¥HHOILVHL

S1L2N1A0¥dd T00d Y0OI¥AANS

SHASTYAIALNT MV¥Id NAS
JOANIA

81/L0/90
STETEd

0o0cee

66126

86126
L61C6

96126

S6126

¥6126

£6126

Z61C6

16126

06126

68126

88126

LB1Z6

98126

S81Z6

YILENNN
MDHHD
ajeq uny
:oN 3zc0day



6

Sy ze9’sses

0% 9TT'T

05°89¢€°€

08-gce
00°0%L
00°¥%62
00°26
TY.LOL
MOHEHD

abeg

AYLOL SADEHD
ST €81
LB €S9
8L 6LT
0Z €15°'2C
00°LZZ
oL 0LE
09°LsT
09°¢€22
00°07%L
00°%62

00°8
00°v8

LNNOWY

8vLY8
8vLY8
8vL¥8
S9LY8
S9Lv8
soLve
S9LY8
6ELYB
BELYS
£5L%8

9TLY8
9¢L?8

H#SNVAL

81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T/80/9
81/80/9
81/80/9
8T/80/9

81/80/9
81/80/9

HIVA

81/80/9

asve -IW

HSYE-LN

A5VYd - LA

dd HNIAVA SAIT 'SXd JILIW
SHVYL ANIN¥OTHD

L£O¥d ONIAVA-SHXOH ATLIW
O¥d ONIAV4-SAIT X0d dALVM
INYND ATV’ ITODL-0%ZAN
"STI¥D ME DILJIS HOD

ST6°9LT SUN ONILSAL ¥NA

81/0€/6 - 81/L1/S

NOILAI¥DSHAd HADIOANI

HALSIOIE ADIHD
ALNNOD ATAOLS

ONI dLIYONOD dg

0D K'1ddN1S VAVAIN NIILSEM
YT TVINIWNOYIANT NAALSHM
¥dd AS JNVLI DILdAS SYALVM

YAYAAN ‘ALNAOD HAOHSVM

JOANIA

81/L0/90
STETdEd

§0¢2é6

vocee
£0226
[ 4ok 44

10226

FIEWNN

MDFHD
¢ @3edg uny
oN 3xodsy



YINOISSINWWOD

YANOISSIWNWOD
NYWIIVHD
ATANSYIAL
JYITTOALAWOD
CAR-(ed NOILVZIYOHINY ONV MAIATY 40 LNIWIDATTMONADY
00°00L'9T TV¥LOL SYDHHD d3adAlL
81/10/9 00°00L°9T INTIWNGINOH LSEM IASIOH vS0¢26
G8T€007TZXZ8%0LENY NIA HHATIVAL A0EMOT 2002 L9°995’§ SZL6 8T0C
S8TE00TCXZBYOLENY NIA AATIVIL AO0EMOT 200¢C L9°99S°S SZLe 8102
S8TE€0071ZXZ8Y0LENY NIA dIATIVAL AOHMOT 2002 99°998°S SZLe 8102
NOILAT¥DSHA #IDIOANI JI¥a TYLOL LNOOWY HWYN dOONIA #AMODAY ¥VIAXA JYAGWAN
MOIHD  ADEHD TYOSIA ADHAHD 7
YALSIODHY SADAHD JIJAL 8T/T0/90 ¢ 9383 uny

1 sbed ALNNOD AHIOLS 06£T8d :oN 3xoday



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 6/19/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for General Business License — U.S. Security Associates, 1320 Freeport
Blvd., Sparks NV 89434. Security Guard Service Provider.

2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading for
General Business License — U.S. Security Associates, 1320 Freeport Blvd., Sparks NV 89434,
Security Guard Service Provider.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: First reading for General Business License — U.S. Security Associates, 1320
Freeport Blvd., Sparks NV 89434. Security Guard Service Provider.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro

| G

ﬂ_ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

L Wannne |
—_

Agenda Item No.

#TL A



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 6/19/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for General Business License — Bonanza Saloon — Vincent Malfitano, 27 N
C St, Virginia City, NV 89440.

2. Recommended motion: [ motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading for
General Business License — Bonanza Saloon — Vincent Malfitano, 27 N C St, Virginia City, NV
89440.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: First reading for General Business License — Bonanza Saloon — Vincent
Malfitano, 27 N C St, Virginia City, NV 89440.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter
6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
~ X Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro

T

g (./"'
Qﬂlﬂunty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
[ E—

Agenda Item No.

A



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 6/19/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for General Business License — Delta Saloon — Vincent Malfitano, 18 S C
St, Virginia City, NV 89440.

2. Recommended motion: [ motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading for
General Business License — Delta Saloon — Vincent Malfitano, 18 S C St, Virginia City, NV
89440.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: First reading for General Business License — Delta Saloon — Vincent
Malfitano, 18 S C St, Virginia City, NV 89440.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
X __ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro

//E\(unty Manager Other agency review:

R

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

~—
[ —)

Agenda Item No.

¥ C



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 6-19-18 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title; Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

S. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal iingact:

Funds Available: Fund: . Comptroller

7. Lepal review required:

District Attorney

Department Name:

Other agency review: i

9. Board action:
(]  Approved

(1] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [1]

Continued

Agenda Item No.

L e



Storey County Community Bevelopment
Buginess §

P O Box 526  Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847-0966 » Fax (775) 847-0935 mfield@storeycounty.org

B Licensging

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office ‘ June 11, 2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr. Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the June 19, 2018, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
LICENSING BOARD

FIRST READINGS:

ADVANCED SYSTEMS LCL - General / 1020 W. 14 Mile Rd ~ Clawson, M1
AMERICAN POWER SOLUTIONS, LLC — General / 2995 Mill St ~ Reno, NV
KEN MORGAN - Contractor / 325 Neilson Rd ~ Reno, NV

MARIO LEPROVOST - Contractor / 1946 Wilder St ~ Reno, NV

PARLEVEL SYSTEMS INC - General / 114 E. Cevallos St ~ San Antonio, TX
VINEBURG MACHINING - General / 26 Stokes Dr ~ Carson City, NV
BENCH TEK SOLUTIONS, LLC - General / 525 Aldo Ave ~ Santa Clara, CA

oEmmTAws

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office



Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool
201 S. Roop Street, Suite 102

Carson City, NV 89701-4779

Toll Free Phone (877) 883-7665
Telephone (775) 885-7475
Facsimile (7751 883-7398

MEMORANDUM

DATE: May 17, 2018 Sent VIA Fax: (775) 847-0921
TO: Clerk's Office

Storey Co.
FROM: Wayne Carlson, MBA, CPCU, ARM

Executive Director
RE: POOL Renewal Proposal Presentation

We are planning our June renewal presentation schedule and would appreciate your scheduling the
following item on your JUNE agenda. Stephen Romero, Marshall Smith, Mike Rebaleati or I will
present the renewal in conjunction with your local agent. Due to multiple board meetings on some
days, scheduling us at or near the requested time will facilitate travel between meeting locations.
Your cooperation is appreciated.

DATE: 6/19/2018 at 10:00:00 AM
The requested item should be listed as an action item and worded similar to the following:

Action Item: Acceptance of renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL) and
approval for payment from fiscal year 2018 - 2019 funds.

Please confirm the meeting date and time by faxing your response to (775) 883-7398. 1 need a
response no later than Friday, May 25, 2018. Because renewal program presentation materials
are still being prepared, your board packet information may be delayed. We appreciate your
understanding and will get them to you as soon as we can. If you should have any questions feel free
to call our office. Thanks for your assistance.

FAX TO: Wayne Carlson (775) 883-7398 or E-Mail zariahanses@poolpact.com

RE: Board Meeting Schedule

O The item will be placed on the agenda as requested
Q Please note these changes:

#10



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 06/19/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Authorize the County Manager to approve a contract
with the United States Geological Survey (USGS) up to $30,000 for the voluntary and limited
monitoring of groundwater levels and quality, aquifer conditions, and other geotechnical matters in
the Virginia City Highlands, Highland Ranches, and Virginia Ranches arca of Storey County
during the 2018-19 fiscal year. This is a continuation of the prior year contract for this purpose.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I [county commissioner]
authorize the County Manager to approve a contract with the United States Geological Survey
(USGS) up to $30,000 for the voluntary and limited monitoring of groundwater levels and quality,
aquifer conditions, and other geotechnical matters in the Virginia City Highlands, Highland
Ranches, and Virginia Ranches area of Storey County during the 2018-19 fiscal year.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: This is a continuation of the ongoing USGS underground water study taking
place in the Highlands area of Storey County. Study objectives: 1) monitor and estimate water-
level trends in the Highlands; 2) develop a water-table and water-level change map to quantify
spatial and temporal water-levcl change; 3) characterize the fractured volcanic rock aquifer(s)
hydraulic properties; and 4) estimate localized recharge potential from Lousetown Creek. Well
monitoring will occur on a voluntary basis only. The study will benefit residents and county
officials by collecting data needed to understand the properties of groundwater and aid in future
water management planning in the Highlands area in accordance with the 2016 Storey County
Master Plan. Refer to Enclosure A Project Proposal for additional details.

6. Supporting materials: Enclosures: (A) Project Proposal; (B) Draft Contract
7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:
District Attorney

9. Reviewed by: :
~Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

ey
PO —

Agenda Item No. l l

Page 1 of 1



United States Department of the Interior
U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

Nevada Water Science Center
2730 N. Deer Run Road
Carson City, Nevada 89701
Phone: 775-887-7600; Fax: 775-887-7629
Website: http://www.usgs.gov/

June 7,2018

Mr. Austin Osborne

County of Storey, Nevada
Planning Director

P.O. Box 176

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Dear Mr. Osborne:

Attached is a modification to our joint funding agreement 17WSNV00146 between the County of Storey and
the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) for the Virginia City Highlands Groundwater Project.

This modification extends the period of performance to June 30, 2019 and adds funds for the 2019 work. As
requested in the planning meeting on May 9™, the water-level change map task will be completed in 2019.
The aquifer test task is planned to be completed in 2021. The total cost for the period of July 1, 2018 to June
30, 2019 is $51,400. Storey County will provide $25,700 in funds. Pending availability of USGS
Cooperative Matching Funds, the USGS will provide $25,700 towards this program.

Below is the funding detail by year:

2018 2019 Total
Storey Coun $26,000 $25,700  $51,700

Total Funding $52,000  $51,400 $103,400

If you approve of this work and the funding required, please sign the attached modification and return itto
Helen Houston at NVFinance@usgs.gov. Funds are not required at this time. A signed agreement is not a
bill, only an agreement to pay for the work that will be done.

If you have questions please refer to the contact list on Enclosure 1.
Sincerely,

4

David L. Berger, Director
USGS, Nevada Water Science Center

Enclosures

cc:  Kip Allander, David Smith, USGS



Enclosure 1

JFA#: 17TWSNV00146_01

USGS Nevada Water Science Center Storey County

2730 N. Deer Run Road
Carson City, NV 89701
Phone: 775-887-7600
Fax: 775-887-7629
DUNS: 178930541

Technical Contact
David Smith

Phone: 775-887-7616
dwsmith@usgs.gov

Executive Contact
David L. Berger, Director
Phone: 775-887-7658
dlberger@usgs.gov

Billing Contact

Helen Houston, Budget Analyst
Phone: 775-887-7605
hhouston@usgs.gov

P.O.Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440
Las Vegas, NV 89106-4511
Phone: 775-847-1144
Fax: 775-847-0949
TIN: 88-6000134
DUNS: 073794968

Technical Contact

Austin Osborn

Phone: 775-847-1144
aosborme@storeycounty.org

Executive Contact

Pat Whitten, County Manager
Phone: 775-847-0968
pwhitten@storeycounty.org

Billing Contact

Austin Osborn, Planning Director
Phone: 775-847-1144
aosborne@storeycounty.org

Any updates to contact information can be submitted to NV finance@usgs.gov.



Page 1 of 2

Form 9-1366 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR  Customer #: 6000005935
(May 2018) GEOLOGICAL SURVEY Agreement #.  17WSNV(00146_01
Project #: 2J00GSG
JOINT FUNDING AGREEMENT TIN #: 886000134
.Fixed Cost

Agreement YES
FOR
WATER RESOURCES INVESTIGATIONS

THIS AGREEMENT Is entered into as of the, 7th day of June, 2018 by the U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY, UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, party of the first part, and the County of Storey, Nevada, party of the second part.

1. The parties hereto agree that subject to avaitability of appropriations and in accordance with their respective
authorities there shall be maintained in cooperation with the VC Highlands Groundwater Evaluation
herein called the program. The USGS legal authority is 43 USC 36C; 43 USC 50; and 43 USC 50b.

2. The following amounts shall be contributed to cover all of the cost of the necessary field and analytica!
work directly related to this program. 2(b) includes In-Kind Services in the amount of $0.00

(a) by the party of the first part during the period

Amount Date to Date
$51,700.00 July 1, 2017 June 30, 2019
{b) by the party of the second part during the period
Amount Date to Date
$51,700.00 July 1, 2017 June 30, 2019

() Contributions are provided by the party of the first part through other USGS regional or national
programs, in the amount of:

Description of the USGS regional/national program:

(d) Additional or reduced amounts by each party during the above period or succeeding periods as may
be determined by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters between the parties.

() The performance period may be changed by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of
letters between the parties.

3. The costs of this program may be paid by either party in conformity with the laws and regulations
respectively governing each party.

4. The field and analytical work pertaining to this program shall be under the direction of or subject to
periodic review by an authorized representative of the party of the first part.

5. The areas to be included in the program shall be determined by mutual agreement between the parties
hereto or their authorized representatives. The methods employed in the field and office shall be those
adopted by the party of the first part to insure the required standards of accuracy subject to modification
by mutual agreement.

6. During the course of this program, all field and analytical work of either party pertaining to this program
shall be open to the inspection of the other party, and if the work is not being carried on in a mutually
satisfactory manner, either party may terminate this agreement upon 60 days written notice to the other

party.



Page 2 of 2

9-1366 {Continuation) Customer #: 6000005935 Agreement #: 17WSNV00146_01
7. The original records resulting from this program will be deposited in the office of origin of those

records. Upon request, copies of the original records will be provided to the office of the other party.

The maps, records or reports resulting from this program shall be made available to the public as
promptly as possible. The maps, records or reports normally will be published by the party of the first
part. However, the party of the second part reserves the right to publish the results of this program, and
if already published by the party of the first part shall, upon request, be furnished by the party of the
first part, at cost, impressions suitable for purposes of reproduction similar to that for which the original
copy was prepared. The maps, records or reports published by either party shall contain a statement of
the cooperative relations between the parties.

The Parties acknowledge that scientific information and data developed as a result of the Scope of Work
(SOW) are subject to applicable USGS review, approval, and release requirements,

which are available on the USGS Fundamental Science Practices website (https://www2.usgs.gov/fsp/).

Billing for this agreement will be rendered.

QUARTERLY

Invoices not paid within 60 days from the billing date will bear Interest, Penalties, and Administrative
cost at the annual rate pursuant the Debt Collection Act of 1982, (codified at 31 US.C. § 3717)
established by the U.S. Treasury.

Name:
Address:

U.S. Geological Survey County of Storey, Nevada
United States
Department of the Interior
USGS Point of Contact Customer Point of Conta
David Smith Name: Austin Osborne

2730 N. Deer Run Road Address: 26 5. B Street. P.O. Box 176
Carson City, NV 89701 Virginia City, NV 8944

Telephone:  775.887-7616 Telephone:  775.847-0968

Email:

dwsmith@usgs.gov Email: aosborne@ storeycounty.org

Signatures and Date

Signature: Date: Signature: Date:

Name:
Title:

G/g/2u §

vid L. Berghr Name: Pat Whitten

Director Title: County Manager




Project Proposal NV17-XX and Data Management Plan

Evaluation of water-level decline and aquifer properties in the
Virginia City Highlands and Highland Ranches Volcanic Rock
aquifer system, Storey County, Nevada

David W, Smith & Kip K. Allander
U.S. Geological Survey
Nevada Water Science Center

BACKGROUND

The Virginia City Highlands and Highland Ranches (VC Highlands) is a rural housing
development established along the ridge of the Virginia Range in Storey County, Nevada (fig.
1). The surface topography of the highlands area is variable, with property parcels developed
over a 1,000 ft range of altitude in an 18 square-mile area. Paired with the varying topo graphy is
a large range of domestic well depths, from 75 to 1,175 ft of total depth below land surface.
Approximately 1,400 residents exclusively rely on domestic wells for water supply and driller
reports indicate wells are completed within fractures of volcanic rock.

PROBLEM

The U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) currently monitors water levels annually in two domestic
wells in the VC Highlands (fig. 1). Recent analysis of water levels indicates a rapid and
substantial decline in the water-table at these two sites. Between 1997 and 2016, water levels
declined approximately 50 and 165 ft near the center of development in the VC Highlands. Due
to the limited measurement frequency and close proximity of the monitoring well locations, the
extent of the declining water-table is unknown. However, analysis of the State of Nevada
Division of Water Resources (NDWR) well log database indicates 103 of 623 domestic wells (17
percent) have been deepened or replaced, indicating water-level declines are more widespread
and represent a significant cost burden to homeowners in the area (fig. 1).

Well logs from NDWR indicate recently completed wells depths are deepening through time,
likely in response to the declining water table. For example, domestic wells completed prior to
1997 had an average depth of 225 ft, and wells completed after 1997 have increased to an
average depth of 375 ft. Verbal communication with residents in the VC highlands has indicated
that deepening or replacement of domestic wells for some residents may be financially
unrealistic and have opted to contract with private water-services for the delivery of potable
water. The condition of domestic wells must be disclosed in real-estate sales in Nevada,
potentially impacting property values for residents with dry wells.

The fractured volcanic rock aquifer in the VC Highlands represents the least understood aquifer
system in Nevada and the Basin and Range physiographic province (Planert and Williams,
1995). Communities within the Basin and Range province generally rely on groundwater from
basin-fill or carbonate aquifers for domestic supply. Currently, there is limited knowledge on
properties and conditions of volcanic aquifers, the role they play within context of other aquifer
systems, or their characteristics as domestic water supply throughout the Basin and Range

NV17-XX 1



province. This project will assist the VC Highlands community and Storey County officials by
monitoring and determining the properties of the fractured volcanic aquifer system.

OBJECTIVE

The objectives of this study are to: 1) monitor and estimate the water-level trends in the VC
Highlands, 2) develop a water-table and water-level change map to quantify spatial and temporal
water-level change, 3) characterize the fractured volcanic rock aquifer(s) hydraulic properties,
and 4), estimate localized recharge potential from Lousetown Creek. These objectives will
benefit Storey County officials and residents by collecting data necessary to understand the
properties of groundwater and provide information that will aid in future management decisions
in the VC Highlands and will help to improve our understanding of volcanic rock aquifer
systems within the Basin and Range physiographic province.

RELEVANCE AND BENEFITS

This study will contribute to the USGS mission by increasing understanding of surface-
water/groundwater interactions and their effect on water availability in a common hydrographic
setting. The study is consistent with the USGS core mission of a Water Census of the United
States (U.S. Geological Survey, 2007). Specifically, this study meets 3 of 5 strategic science
directions of the Water Census mission. This study will contribute to: a better understanding of
the status of freshwater resources and how they are changing; a more precise determination of
water use for meeting future human, environmental, and wildlife needs; and, identifying how
freshwater availability is related to natural storage and movement of water. This study will also
provide the data necessary for county managers, stakeholders, and residence to assess the effects
of water-resources management and planning decisions in the VC Highlands. Knowledge
obtained from this study will contribute to better understanding of properties and nature of
volcanic rock aquifer systems and their relation to water resources and ecologic systems within
the Basin and Range aquifer physiographic province.

APPROACH

A five-year project is proposed to monitor VC Highlands groundwater, surface water, and
precipitation during potentially variable climate conditions. In the first year of the project, a
water-level monitoring network (network) will be established with willing residences in the VC
Highlands. Subsequent years will focus on collecting aquifer properties and creating water-level
change maps. Results of the study will be published in a USGS Scientific Investigations Report
(SIR) at the end of the study period. The project approach to accomplishing the listed objectives
are provided below:

Water-level Network

The network will be designed to represent groundwater conditions in the volcanic rock aquifer
underlying the VC highlands both spatially and by well depth open to varying fracture zones.
The network will consist of a combination of discrete and continuous measurements in the study
area. Storey County has already obtained permission from approximately 30 residents for the
USGS to monitor water-levels for the discrete network. Water-level measurements will be made
at a monthly frequency from July to October, 2018 to identify static water-level conditions and
wells suitable for longer-term monitoring, and will then be transitioned to a quarterly basis for
the duration of the project. The discrete network will be scaled to efficiently monitor fractured
rock aquifer(s) in the VC Highlands. The continuous network will consist of multiple

NV17-XX 2



observation wells (2-5), preferably not being used for domestic supply, instrumented with
pressure transducers. Pressure transducers will record water-level change at 15 minute frequency
intervals. The data will be quality assured with bi-monthly measurements and downloads.
Transducer data will be published to the web and aid in community outreach of the project. All
water-level data will be available to the public via the USGS NWISweb.

Accurate water-level altitudes are necessary for the comparison of water-level measurements in
varying topography, and are required for the development of a water-table map. Accurate
altitudes of wells in the groundwater network will be surveyed using a differential GPS system
according to USGS guidelines (Rydlund and Densmore, 2012).

Water-Level Change Map

Water-table and water-level change maps will be documented and published in the SIR. The
water-level change maps will be developed in a geographic information system (GIS), with the
use of geo-statistical interpolation techniques (Hutchinson and others, 2011). Additional water-
level change over time will be estimated by comparing measured water-levels with historic water
levels measured by the USGS and reported in drillers logs.

A water-level potentiometric map completed by (Koltermann, 1984) will be digitized and
georectified to difference the water-level maps from 1983 and 2018 to quantify water-level
change for the past 35 years. Interpolated water-level surfaces will be differenced to estimate
change in the water-table and aquifer storage. Water-level change in areas of 1, 10, and 40 acre
parcels with domestic wells will be evaluated to characterize water level trends by parcel size.

Aquifer Properties

Aquifer properties and characteristics will be evaluated to provide understanding of the
properties controlling groundwater movement and storage. On an opportunistic basis, borehole
geophysics will be collected with a Mount Sopris Matrix System ®, and MGXII data logger
provided by the USGS Office of Geophysics. The project will use available volunteer well(s), no
wells or boreholes will be drilled by this project. Geophysical data will be collected from
replacement domestic well(s) by lowering the Mount Sopris Matrix System down the open well
borehole. The geophysical sensor will be configured with multiple sensors to provide detailed
information of aquifer properties (table 1). The geophysical data will be used to characterize
fracture networks and estimate local aquifer properties. Aquifer properties over a larger area will
be evaluated with 3-5 aquifer tests and made available on the USGS Nevada Water Science
Centers Aquifer Test webpage. The estimate of aquifer hydraulic properties will be made from
either single or multi-well drawdown tests. Single well aquifer tests will be analyzed using the
Cooper-Jacob method (Cooper and Jacob, 1946) programmed in the aquifer-test analysis
spreadsheet developed by Halford and Kuniansky (2002).

NV17-XX 3



Table 1. Description of sensors on the Mount Sopris borehole geophysical instrument.

Method Description

Acoustic Tele-viewer (ATV) Provide orientation (strike and dip) of bedrock fractures and lithologic contacts.
Caliper Measures changes in bedrock wall diameter and constrictions in lithology
EM Induction Delineates changes in rock type, and fluids in rock formation
Flowmeter Provides rate and direction of vertical flow
Gamma Identification of rock type
IP and Normal Resistivity ~Used to determine lithology, saturation and/or porosity, and estimate fracture density.
OTV  Photography of borehole wall

Surface-Water and Spring Monitoring

Lousetown Creek is the main ephemeral stream flowing through the central VC Highlands
during winter and spring precipitation and runoff (fig. 1). Sharp (1974) concluded the Comstock
fault may be the controlling influence on the location of Lousetown Creek and seepage from
Lousetown Creek may contribute the majority of groundwater recharge through fractured areas
(Koltermann, 1984). Lousetown Creek will be monitored with two flume installations for the
duration of the project. The flumes will be used for differential gaging to identify loss in flow
between gage locations. Loss in flow indicates seepage or infiltration that may reach the water-
table as recharge. Additionally, precipitation event based measurements will be made in
drainages to quantify the runoff in the area. Discrete discharge measurements at spring locations
will be completed on a bi-annual basis.

Precipitation

Precipitation is currently collected at two weather stations located on the western side of the VC
highlands (fig. 1). Due to potential rain shadow effects and precipitation gradient with altitude
and possible limitations associated with measurement of snow precipitation, additional
precipitation measurements sites will be expanded to the central and eastern side of the study
area at two to four locations. Precipitation will be measured at varying elevations using bulk
precipitation gages. The gages will be located at volunteer residences for the duration of the
project. Weather station and bulk precipitation gage data will be used to estimate the total annual
precipitation in the VC Highlands for each of the years of the study.

QUALITY ASSURANCE

All field data collected as part of this project will be managed according to USGS Nevada Water
Science Center Data Management plan (USGS, 2010). Water level data will be collected and
processed in accordance with Nevada Water Science Center (NVWSC) and USGS quality
assurance/quality control protocols, plans, and policies. Aquifer-test analysis will receive
colleague review and approval by the NVWSC groundwater specialist prior to being submitted
for bureau approval. Aquifer tests analysis reporting will be done according to USGS Office of
Groundwater technical memo 2009.01 (https.//water.usgs.gov/admin/memo/GW/gw09.01. html).
The Scientific Investigation Report will be peer-reviewed and will follow USGS fundamental
science practices. The project will undergo a minimum of annual review by Nevada Water
Science Center management and technical specialists. Additionally, the USGS will provide

NV17-XX 4



quarterly progress reports to Storey County and will provide a project update at least once
annually to stakeholders through public meetings.

DATA MANAGEMENT PLAN

Explicit data management and quality assurance activities are described throughout this
proposal. In accordance with the NVWSC data management plan (USGS, 2010) and USGS
fundamental science practices, all data associated with the project will be stored in appropriate,
publically accessible, USGS databases and clearinghouses, including the USGS NWIS database.
Reviewed and approved data and relevant GIS datasets and metadata not released through USGS
NWIS will be made available online through ScienceBase or other appropriate USGS geospatial
data clearinghouses.

PRODUCTS

The project will produce quality-assured/quality-controlled data available through the USGS
NWIS database and/or as data releases through ScienceBase. The data will be accessible to the
cooperating agencies and the public on the USGS Water Data for the Nation website (USGS,
1998 and 2012). Approved aquifer tests will be published on the NVWSC Aquifer Test website
https.//nevada.usgs.gov/water/AquiferTests/. A Scientific Investigations Report (SIR) will be
made available to the public through the USGS Publication Warehouse
(https://pubs.er.usgs.gov/).

PROJECT SCHEDULE

The 5 year study is planned to start in July, 2017 and be completed by the end of June, 2022.
Quarterly progress reports will be sent to Storey County and annual stakeholder presentations
will be given in the VC Highlands community. Table 1 below provides a general timeline for the
major tasks of the study.

Table 2. Project schedule for completion of major study tasks.

[Quarters are based on State Fiscal Year. 1 quarter is Jul-Sep, 2 quarter is Oct-Dec, 3 quarter is Jan-Mar, and 4th quarter is Apr-Jun]

State Fiscal Year
Task FY18 FY19 FY20 Fy21 FY22
] 1 2 3 4 1 3 4 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4
Quarterly Updates| x X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
Annual Presentations X X X X X
Monitor Groundwater| x X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
GPS Survey | x X
Monitor Surface Water X X X X X X X
Monitor Precipitation] x X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
Aquifer tests and analysis x I x| x
Geophysics and analysis X X X
Create Water-level Change Map| X X X | x| x i x| x
Write/Publish Report
Federal Fiscal YearlFY17 FY18 FY20

PERSONNEL

The USGS component of this project will be managed and conducted by a GS-11 hydrologist.
The field work component of this project will also require a GS- 9 hydrologic technician. The

NV17-XX 5



NVWSC Groundwater Specialist will assist in the data review and quality assurance. The USGS
NVWSC currently has the staff available for this work.

BUDGET

The overall cost for this project is approximately $254,300. This agreement will be renewed on a
year-by-year basis with Storey County. Table 3 summarizes the cost for USGS and Storey
County, respectively, by major category, fiscal year, and cost share.

Table 3. Project major category and fiscal year costs

Cost Category FY18 FY19 FY20 Fy21 Fy22 Total
Labor S 51,830 $ 51,400 S 51,400 § 49,800 S 39,900 S 244,330
Equipment and Supplies $ 170 $ 170
Report Processing S 9,800 § 9,800
Total S 52,000 S 51,400 S 51,400 S 49,800 S 49,700 § 254,300

Funding FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 Total
USGS Funding (50.0%)* S 26,000 $ 25,700 S 25,700 $ 24,900 S 24,850 S 127,150
(sstg'rgz/;)co”"ty Funding $ 26000 $ 25700 $ 25700 $ 24900 $ 24,850 $ 127,150
Total S 52,000 § 51,400 § 51,400 $ 49,800 § 49,700 § 254,300

Project Task FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 Total
Groundwater Network S 19,003 § 9,330 S 10,547 S 10,414 S 1,872 § 51,167
Surface Water Monitoring $ 16661 $ 8482 S 958 $ 9,468 S - S 44,199
Precipitation Monitoring $ 2,795 ¢ 1,357 S 1,53 $ 1515 $ - $ 7201
Spring Monitoring $ 1001 $ 1357 $ 153 $ 1515 $ - $ 5407
Project management S 2,153 § 2,036 S 2,301 $ 2,272 S 6,552 $§ 15,314
Differential GPS $ 538 § - S - S - $ -5 5,382
Aquifer test and analysis $ - § 22053 § -8 - $ - § 22,053
Geophysics analysis $ - 8 - $ 22059 $ -8 - $ 22,059
Water-level change analysis - S -3 - $ 20829 $ - $ 20829
Report and analysis S 5,005 $ 6,785 $ 3,835 § 3,787 $ 25272 S 44,684
Report publishing $ - $ - $ - 8 - $§ 16005 $ 16,005
Total S 52,000 $ 51,400 S 51,400 S 49,800 S 49,700 § 254,300

1. USGS will provide up to 50% funding match based on availability of funds from the cooperative water
program. The USGS currently anticipates matching 50% through the life of this project. Availability of
matching funds is dependent on US government budget appropriation. In the unlikely event that USGS
cooperative funds become unavailable; project plans, details, and costs may be renegotiated with
Storey County.

NV17-XX 6



REFERENCES

Cooper, H.H., and C.E. Jacob. 1946, A generalized graphical method for evaluating formation
constants and summarizing well field history: American Geophysical Union Transactions 27:
526-534.

Halford, K.J., and Kuniansky, E.L., 2002, Spreadsheets for the analysis of aquifer-test and slug-
test data, version 1.1: U.S. Geological Survey Open-File Report 02-197, 51
p., http://water.usgs.gov/pubs/of/ofr02197/

Hutchinson, M.F., Xu, T. and Stein, J.A. 2011, Recent Progress in the ANUDEM Elevation
Gridding Procedure, Geomorphometry 2011, edited by T. Hengel, L.S. Evans, J.P. Wilson and
M. Gould, pp. 19-22. Redlands, California, USA.
http://geomorphometry.org/HutchinsonXu2011.

Koltermann, H.H., 1984, Hydrogeochemical and Environmental Isotope Investigation of
Groundwater Recharge Mechanisms in the Virginia City Highlands, Nevada, University of
Nevada-Reno Masters Thesis, 149 p.

Planert, M., and Williams, J.S., 1995, Ground Water Atlas of the United States: California,
Nevada, U.S. Geological Survey, HA-730-B;

Rydlund, P.H., Jr., and Densmore, B.K., 2012, Methods of practice and guidelines for using
survey-grade global navigation satellite systems (GNSS) to establish vertical datum in the
United States Geological Survey: U.S. Geological Survey Techniques and Methods, book 11,
chap. D1, 102 p. with appendixes.

Sharp, J.V.A., 1968 Water Supply Appraisal, Virginia City Hifhlands, Unit 2, Hydro-Search,
Inc., Reno, Nevada.

Taylor, Charles J., and Alley, William M. 2001, Ground-water-level monitoring and the
importance of long-term water-level data, U.S. Geological Survey circular; 1217.

U.S. Geological Survey,>l998, National Water Information System (NWIS): U.S. Geological
Survey Fact Sheet 027-98, accessed from http://pubs.er.usgs.gov/publication/fs02798 on Aug.
30, 2013.

U.S. Geological Survey, 2007, Facing tomorrow’s challenges—U.S. Geological Survey science
in the decade 2007-2017: U.S. Geological Survey Circular 1309, x + 70 p.

U.S. Geological Survey, 2010, Nevada Water Science Center Policy Memorandum No. 11.01.

U.S. Geological Survey, 2012, National Water Information System data available on the World
Wide Web (USGS Water Data for the Nation), accessed from http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/
on Aug. 30, 2013.

NV17-XX 7



pED

i lg

20024 |

322

EXPLANATION

USGS annual monitoring wells
goag b . Approximate locations
e “  of deepend domestic wells

Figire 1. Location of monitoring and deepenad domestic wells near Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada.

NV17-XX 8



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
i Agenda Action Report
w
MeetinJg“date: Estimate of Time Required: 0-15 min

Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1. Title: Request from NDOT to accept the annual work program.

2. Recommended motion: None provided.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4. Staff Summary: Report is attached.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: Unknown

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




EVADA

SAFE AND CONNECTED

2018

Storey County
Transportation Report




EVADA

SAFE AND CONNECTED

NDOT Mission, Vision, Core Values, and Goals

Our Vision:

To be a leader and partner in delivering effective transportation solutions for a safe and
connected Nevada.

Our Mission:

Provide and preserve a transportation system that enhances safety, quality of life and
economic development through innovation, environmental stewardship and a dedicated
workforce.

Core Values:

* Respect — Treat others with dignity and value their contributions

* Integrity — Do the right thing

» Accountability — Take pride in our work and be accountable for our actions
« Communication — Communicate with transparency and responsiveness

+ Teamwork — Foster collaborative and effective partnerships

+ Flexibility — Be responsive to changing conditions and open to new ideas

Our Goals:
» Safety first

Cultivate environmental stewardship

Efficiently operate and maintain the transportation system in Nevada

Promote internal and external customer service

Enhance organization and workforce development




EVADA

SAFE AND CONNECTED

Board of Directors

Mark Hutchison Brian Sandoval Ron Knecht
Lt Governor Governor State Controller

Frank Martin Virginia Valentine Len Savage Emil “B.J” Almberg
District 1 District 1 District 2 District 3

Senior Staff

-

Bill Hoffman Rudy Maifabon Tracy Larkin-Thomason Dave Gaskin
Deputy Director Director Deputy Director Deputy Director

Robert Nellis Sondra Rosenberg Reid Kaiser Sean Sever Cole Mortensen
Administration Planning Operations Communications Engineering

Mary Martini Thor Dyson Boyd Ratliff
District 1 District 2 District 3




EVADA

SAFE AND CONNECTED

Meeting Agenda

Welcome / Introductions
NDOT Update
 Wildlife Vehicle Collisions
* One Nevada Plan
* |Interstate 11
County Concerns
Infographics
« Snapshot
« Financials
* Projects
Annual Work Program
» Highlights

« Acceptance







EVADA

SAFE AND CONNECTED

2018 Storey County Concerns

Top Concerns:

o Traffic Signal on USA Pkwy at Electric Ave (STIP # ST20170001)

o Safety concerns on [-80 at the Lockwood interchange

Potential Project Pipeline:

¢ Wild horse management along SR 341 and SR 342
e Waltham Way at Patrick interchange redesign (I-80 current corridor study)
¢ No truck signage needed prior to 6 Mile Canyon

e Speed indicator signage coming into Virginia City on SR 341




Safety



2016 Crash Totals
Property Damage Only Crashes 89
Injury Crashes 26
Fatal Crashes 2
Total Crashes 117
Persons Killed 2
Persons Injured 37

0.2% of Nevada's Total Crashes
occurred in Storey.

0
0.7 A) of Nevada’s Fatal Crashes
occurred in Storey.

0. 1% of Nevada’s Injury Crashes
occurred in Storey.

High Crash Density

Low Crash Density

TOTAL CRASHES IN STOREY

ANNUALLY

2007 | 45
2cos N <2

2005 | 52

o0 N -
corr | 5

o2 | 5o

cors | oo

oo | <o

2015

EVADA
STOREY T
1

corc N ::7

2016 Storey Crash Density Map




sl

20:.

S ~
AR

®

N 2

In 2016 the majority of Storey County crashes occurred

between the time of 3:00 PM and 6:00 PM.

Monday and Wednesday saw the most crashes attributing

to 37% of total crashes.

October saw the highest amount of crashes in 2016 with
13, May the least with 3.

On average Storey County experienced a fatal crash once

every 183 days.

CRASH HOUR RANGE

12:C0AM

ozssav [ 5
— R

03:00AM

D6:00AM - 08:534M

09:00AM - 11:53AM

K
12:00PM - 52:59PM
03:008M - 05:59PM
06:00PM - 08:59PM

09:00PM - 11:59PM

0 5 10

[*}

JIAN

10 8

8

[

L

2

. B
EVADA JAN

DOT

LBy

I
I 0
P
I o

15 20 25

Weather, Time, and Day

CRASHES BY DAY OF THE WEEK
SUN

16
14%

THU
14
12%

CRASHES BY WEATHER TYPE

CLEAR

35

FATAL CRASHES BY MONTH

FEB  MAR APR  MAY

1

JUN UL AUG SEP

® Fatal Crash

11

CLouDY

1

ocT

INJURY AND PDO CRASHES BY MONTH

10 10
8 8 8
7 7 .
5 5 .
4
3 3
2 1 2 | I
m i1l i
FEB  MAR APR  MAY JUN  JUL  AUG SEP  OCT  NOV

M injury Crash

o Property Damage Only

7

RAIN

NOV

5
SNOW
BLOWING
SAND, SOIL,
DIRT, SNOW
DEC
11
1
n
DEC




TOP DRIVER FACTORS

W APPARENTLY NORMAL - 80%
B HAD BEEN DRINKING - 5%
BINATTENTION/DISTRACTED - 2%

& OTHER IMPROPER DRIVING - 8%
W EELL ASLEEP, FAINTED, FATIGUED, ETC. - 2%
® DRUG INVOLVEMENT - 2%

12% of Storey crashes involved a
Motorcycle.

60% of Storey crashes involved a
Lane Departure.

)
43 A) of Storey crashes occurred at
an Intersection.

DRIVER AGE RANGE

11
9
2
1
m® .°

25

20

10

1
, m°

16-20

21-25 26-35 36-45

s

B Male

FARURE TO CEE?  UNSAFE LANE DRIVING TOO  RAN OFF ROAD DROVE LEFT OF FARED TQ YIELD
INOROPER LANE CHANGE FAST FOR CENTER RIGHT OF WAY
CONDITIONS

Drivers and Vehicles

DRIVER DISTRACTIONS

UNKNOWN

CELL PHONE

0 1

TOP CONTRIBUTING FACTORS

19
13
10

2

46-55 56-65 66-75 76-85 Unknown

@ Female




8 ﬁ Non-Motorists

No Non-Motorist crashes reported for this county.




Traffic Counts



(620) L2301
ArD eruIsipA

0052~ dLY
oLH

STITIN

5| Page

£1unon) L3101

. uopels Buipi0oay oyjes) JusuewIdd - Y1V 9(dind
o JaquinN Uone)s JuauBwIad - 10 anig

sjuno) el Ajleg jenuuy abelaay - Jaquinp anig
uonels dyes) Arerodwa] - 1oQq pay




6 | Page

uonels Buipioosy oygel| Jusuewsad - y1 v 9jding
lequun UoHe)S JUsURWIR - Jo( anjg

ey} Ajeq jenuuy abeloAy - Joaquiny anig

SJUNOY Y
uonelg oyjes] Aesodwa) -10Q pey

Ay d VSN 87 JPued

Nixgys
Y Fo3V

is

LL00
00009

1 PAIH BISTA

¢z Suelsny 7Z PoomdoT

(1€0) 0ysem sagueydIau] 9 91€1SIU]



J9t10| oooez
i

wov

¢p de prueikq 0b 300y parured
Y1I0MSPeA\

z180
000'¥Z

uone}s Buipioday oiyjel) Jusuewsdd - ¥iv aiding
JaquWINN UOREIS JuauBWiIad - Jo( anig

Sjunoo) syjel) Ajeq jenuuy abessay - JaquinN anig
uone)s ayes| Kiesodwsy -10g pay

9¢ PIEY2IQ 9¢ we( AqIdQ-3qsIy L,

(1£0) 0ysem sagueyoInu] B 91e1SIU]

7 | Page



Infographics



(U

SAFE AND CONNECTED

Tk &k W&k '

popuLation . 4,128 REGISTERED VEMICLES

1,284 ©

Under 30 30-50 Over 50

OUTFLOW ¢ INTERNAL o _ _ INFLOW AGE OF DRIVER (years)

COMMUTE COMMUTE COMMUTE

30, 214, 921 n/a

O O

ARNUAL VEHICLE MILES TRAVELED TOTAL TRANRSIT RIDERS

14

PAVEMENT ROAD
CONDITION AVG. SMOOTHNESS AVG. BRIDGES

3.17 psi

363

days of

$500x $450k

R
[l s ||
s
i‘
| s
H
:

s s u

o | [T ZEro
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Fatalities
MAINTENANCE FUNDS Br;;eSafe}Veva;ia

ROAD MILES: 20.72 l LANE MILES: 27 .27



T

RIS
dpubargts T
RS

A

YAl bodgetng allccaton i an estmation 1z
zubject 8o changs, and Ructustes year to year.




i <=
svmd Ratono s s palo.xd say v o @ ODesO EEwEled 0 > N a0} BuAois 2204 IR iSiﬁugﬂn EIR
- ~ N

Bupuaand Yaiod
aguniaawﬂniaa# e 3y o owkond L. e g S e & M 005 2
o POSRIaADY cana ¢ Appamsesardd sy ssa00ud sy MIADY
nm./u« plo 01337 e 12B1U0D) ‘g “ssacoxt At 10 1y s nasp o -
; i pusy aanboe G P ) 0ok Eemuonauy % ;Q\,‘,,,,
BM JO BRI 9 3 s oo e ot o o
i o

" L Ponasdde aie Dabid KO o 2GS Bo
P TIED WY VDS S OSIIEAT ME SNG4

UORINIISUOD ‘1T

ssa001d

Tloxd 2 0 opu sy o st 5 uamc WE& p o] gw—.wwm, L ) Sl e RIS SBTIEAS SATAIRUCO (] . UmHOH ﬁ .H
ﬁvﬂﬁﬁuﬁmﬁw ,M..‘m udmﬁﬂoﬁwa%wwmwmnvw H. . m MUHM m .mu . m

; udisaq dais 1



Work Program



Storey County FFY2019 Work Program

e

5%

Prepared by: EVADA This Map is for display purposes only.
Nevada Department of Transportation No liability is assumed for the information

May, 2018 displayed hereon.



| Jo | abey abuey9 o1 109(gns 151 8L0Z/LLIS

000'000'G$ qviol
Buipuny [ejo) j0afoid sjoym

oy} Juasaldal J,usaop pue AUnoD AFHOLS 104 Ajuo si Buipuny eyl ,

31VLS Bupuny

HNSOY/qeYsy/suoday py :adA)

0l e spus

0 1e suibaq )sodajiiy 01 (8)iw) aoUe}SIg JO BNUBAY J11J08|] JBSN

ior Aemyled ySn 0} Jnogepunoy Aemyred yS Wold (uoneso

lieJ Ja1eq 9)8105u09 29e|da) pue

J1e1 2jqeD uBlPaW JO UOIOaS PBAIND Bupsixe aaoway :uopduosaq
000°000'S$ NOD Itey Jalueg ade|day pue aroway 6SY ¥S OML  L0008L0ZLS
92IN0S puN4 - (aSBYd) UodLIISa(/uoEeo0T ardiLs
1H0d3H WWHO0Ud MHOM 6102 L4vHA ALNNOD AFHOLS A3S0d0Hd 6102 ¥V3A TvOSId

LHOdIY NVHOO0Ud MUOM 6102 14Via ALNNOD AFUOLS 03S0d0¥d




EVADA

SAFE AND CONNECTED

Thank you for allowing the Nevada Department
of Transportation to engage with your
commissioners, county staff and citizens.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 19, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 18-497 providing for the
transfer of the County’s 2018 Private Activity Bond Volume Cap to the Director of the State of
Nevada Department of Business and Industry of the State of Nevada.

2. Recommended motion: I, (Commissioner), move for approval of Resolution 18-497
providing for the transfer of the County’s 2018 Private Activity Bond Volume Cap to the Director
of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry of the State of Nevada.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: Please see Page 2

5. Supporting materials:  Draft Resolution 18-497
Draft Certificate of Transfer Notification
Draft Certificate of Transfer
Email chain with the Nevada Rural Housing Authority

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: N/A Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: Yes

KL  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

(Z)uw Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
Q«u\/County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

= —
[ —

Agenda Item No.

13



4. Staff summary: The Nevada Department of Business and Industry continues to work with
Fulcrum in financing both their Biorefinery located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center as well as their Feedstock Processing Facility located at 350 Saddle Court in the
Lockwood/Mustang area adjacent to the Waste Management Landfill. As part of that process, the
Business and Industry Director has requested that Storey County transfer our 2018 Private Activity
Bond Cap to the Department in support of their continued efforts to see this project thru to
completion. The amount of the volume cap eligible for transfer is $215,277.18 and comes at no
obligation to Storey County as provided for in Section 7 of the draft resolution. In previous years,
Storey County has transferred the unused portion of our bond volume cap to the Nevada Rural
Housing Authority in a similar fashion. NRHA has also requested transfer but has graciously
understood and accepted the fact that staff is recommending transfer to Business & Industry in
support of their pending project. Staff recommends approval of Resolution 18-497.




[INSERT STOREY COUNTY LETTERHEAD]

June , 2018

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS AND EMAIL TO:

C.J. Manthe, Director

Nevada Department of Business and Industry
1830 E. College Parkway, Suite 200

Carson City, NV 89706
cjmanthe@business.nv.gov

Re:  Certificate of Transfer of Storey County, Nevada’s 2018 Private Activity Bond Cap
Dear Ms. Manthe:

On June 19, 2018, Storey County, Nevada passed Resolution [ ], attached as Exhibit
A, and incorporated herein by this reference. Resolution [ ] transferred Storey County’s 2018
private activity bond cap to your office for assistance in financing a green energy municipal solid
waste project described in the Certificate of Transfer which is attached as Exhibit B. As you know,
NAC 348A.260(2) confirms:

NAC 348A.260 Certificates: Issuance of bonds; transfer of volume cap. (NRS
348A.040)

2. A local government shall or the Director will, within 5 days after transferring
any portion of the volume cap of the local government or the allocation of the state
ceiling under the control of the Director, file a certificate with the Office of Business
Finance and Planning indicating that the transfer was made. The transfer becomes
effective on the date on which the certificate is filed with the Office of Business
Finance and Planning.

As always, please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely,



EXHIBIT A



RESOLUTION NO. 18-497

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY
OF STOREY, NEVADA PROVIDING FOR THE TRANSFER OF THE COUNTY’S
2018 PRIVATE ACTIVITY BOND VOLUME CAP TO THE DIRECTOR OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 348A of the Nevada Revised Statutes
(“NRS”) and Chapter 348A of the Nevada Administrative Code (“NAC”), there has been allocated
to the County of Storey, Nevada (the “County” and “State,” respectively), the amount of
$215,227.18 in tax-exempt private activity bond volume cap for year 2018 (the “2018 Bond Cap”);
and

WHEREAS, the Director of the State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the
“Director”), has requested that the County transfer the 2018 Bond Cap to the Director for the
purpose of assisting in the financing or refinancing a portion of the costs of (i) improvements to
and equipping of a facility to be used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel
products located on an approximately 19.4-acre site located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada (the “Biorefinery”) and/or (ii) improvements to and
equipping of a facility used for preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located
on an approximately 10.0-acre site located at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County, Nevada
(the “Feedstock Processing Facility” and, together with the Biorefinery, the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the County is a “local government” as defined by NAC 348A.070; and

WHEREAS, Section 348A.180 of the NAC provides a procedure whereby the County may,
by resolution, transfer to the Director, the 2018 Bond Cap to assist in the financing of an eligible
project; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County has the responsibility for
allocating private activity bond volume cap available to the County, including the 2018 Bond Cap.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of County Commissioners of the County do hereby find,
resolve, determine and order us follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals set forth herein above are true and correct in all respects.

Section 2. Transfer of Private Activity Bond Volume Cap. Pursuant to NAC 348A.180, the
County hereby transfers the 2018 Bond Cap to the Director for the Project, to be undertaken by
Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC (“Fulcrum Holdings”).

Section 3. Use of 2018 Bond Cap. The Director will use the 2018 Bond Cap for the Project
in calendar year 2018, or carry forward any remaining amount according to the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, for such purposes.



Section 4. Support of County. The Board of County Commissioners of the County do
hereby endorse and support Fulcrum Holdings’ efforts to obtain bonding and funding support for
the Project through the Nevada Department of Business and Industry.

Section 5. Representative of County. Pursuant to NAC 348A.180(1), the Director may
contact Pat Whitten regarding this Resolution at (775) 847-0968 or in writing at 26 S. B Street,
P.O. Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

Section 6. Additional Action. The Board of County Commissioners of the County are
hereby authorized and directed to take all actions as necessary to effectuate the transfer of the 2018
Bond Cap, and carry out the duties of the County hereunder, including the execution of all
certificates pertaining to the transfer as required by NAC Ch. 348A. The Clerk-Treasurer of the
Board of County Commissioners is hereby authorized and directed to mail a certified copy of this
Resolution to the Director.

Section 7. Obligation of the County: This Resolution is not to be construed as a pledge of
the faith and credit of or by the County, or of any agency, instrumentality, or subdivision of the
County. Nothing in this Resolution obligates or authorizes the County to issue bonds for any
project or to grant approvals for a project or constitutes a representation that such bonds will be
issued.

Section 8. Enforceability. If any section, paragraph. clause or provision of this Resolution
shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of
such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this
Resolution. This Resolution shall go into effect immediately upon its passage.

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 19th day of June, 2018.

COUNTY OF STOREY, NEVADA

By:
Its:

ATTEST:

By:
Title:




EXHIBIT B



CERTIFICATE OF TRANSFER OF VOLUME CAP

L ], am the duly chosen and qualified
[ ] of the County of Storey, Nevada (the “County”) and in the
performance of my duties as [ ] do hereby certify to the Office of Business

Finance and Planning in accordance with Section 348A.260 of the Nevada Administrative Code
(“NAC”), that the private activity bond volume cap allocated to the County for the year 2018 in
the amount of $215,227.18 has been transferred as follows:

$215,227.18 has been transferred pursuant to NAC 348A.180 from the County, a “local
government” as defined by NAC 348A.070, to the Director of the State of Nevada
Department of Business and Industry for the purpose of assisting in the financing or
refinancing a portion of the costs of (i) improvements to and equipping of a facility to be
used for converting municipal solid waste into renewable fuel products located on an
approximately 19.4-acre site located at 3600 Peru Drive in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, Storey County, Nevada and/or (ii) improvements to and equipping of a facility used
for preliminary sorting and processing of municipal solid waste located on an
approximately 10.0-acre site located at 350 Saddle Court in Mustang, Storey County,
Nevada, to be undertaken by Fulcrum Sierra Holdings, LLC.

This certificate is being filed within five (5) days of the transfer being made in accordance
with NAC 348.260.

COUNY OF STOREY, NEVADA

By:
Its:




Pat Whitten

From: Bill Brewer <wbrewer@nvrural.org>

Sent: Thursday, June 7, 2018 8:19 AM

To: Pat Whitten

Cc: Diane Arvizo; Lourdes Zufliga Perez; Jessica Stainaker

Subject: FW: Storey County PABC Request - Board of Commissioners Meeting - july 17, 2018

Good morning, Pat—

Thank you for your kind response to our request. We’ve always said that if you have a use for your bond cap, we
encourage you to use it. | don’t know what B&aI is asking of the County, but | assume it is your entire allocation. If they
are only asking for a part, you could transfer a part to them and a part to NRHA, but we certainly support your local
decision. Thanks so much, Pat, for all your support over the years!

Bill

William L. Brewer

Deputy Director

Nevada Rural Housing Authority
3695 Desatoya Drive

Carson City, NV 89701

Phone: (775) 887-1784

Fax: (775) 283-0110
www.nvrural.org

N
PO s

——

SECOND PLACE

From: Pat Whitten <pwhitten@storeycounty.org>

Sent: Wednesday, June 6, 2018 1:52 PM

To: Jessica Stalnaker <jess@nvrural.org>; Jack McGuffey <jmcguffey @storeycounty.org>; Lance Gilman
<lgilman@storeycounty.org>; Marshall McBride <mmcbride @storeycounty.org>; clerk <clerk@storeycounty.org>
Cc: Diane Arvizo <Diane@nvrural.org>; Lourdes Zufiiga Perez <lourdes@nvrural.org>; Bill Brewer
<wbrewer@nvrural.org>; Melanie Evans <mevans@nvrural.org>; Sherry Wood <swood@nvrural.org>

Subject: RE: Storey County PABC Request - Board of Commissioners Meeting - July 17, 2018

Hi Jessica



Please be advised that our Commission meeting for July 17t" has been cancelled as both our Chairman, Vice-Chairman
and Staff will be traveling back from the annual NACO Conference in Nashville on that date. While | would like to offer
alternative dates, I also must advise that there is also another issue pertaining to any potential transfer. Prior to
receiving your request, C. J. Manthe and Terry Reynolds had requested that we transfer to the Department of Business
& Industry. Subject to Commission approval, | have committed to transfer to B&I since they have and are continuing to
provide substantial funding for one of our major companies in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. Unless | am mistaken, |
believe we can only transfer to either B&I or NRHA but if | am wrong, please let me know ASAP so | can verify and get
you on a subsequent agenda. Sorry to be the bearer of bad news but | hope you understand our situation. If you or Bill
have any questions, please don’t hesitate to get in touch with me. Many thanks...

Pat

Pat Whitten
County Manager
.. Storey County

i

From:
Jessica

v (775) 847-0968 (Office) Stalnaker

2 (775) 721-7001 (Cell)
g PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org

Storey County is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

[mailto:jess@nvrural.org]

Sent: Monday, June 4, 2018 1:14 PM

To: Jack McGuffey <jmcguffey@storeycounty.org>; Lance Gilman <Igilman@storeycounty.org>; Marshall McBride
<mmcbride@storeycounty.org>; Pat Whitten <pwhitten@storeycounty.org>; clerk <clerk@storeycounty.org>

Cc: Diane Arvizo <Diane@nvrural.org>; Lourdes Zuniga Perez <lourdes@nvrural.org>; Bill Brewer
<whrewer@nvrural.org>; Melanie Evans <xmevans@nvrural.org>; Sherry Wood <swood@nvrural.org>

Subject: Storey County PABC Request - Board of Commissioners Meeting - July 17, 2018

Good afternoon,

Nevada Rural Housing Authority (NRHA) respectfully requests to be added to the Agenda at the next Board of
Commissioners Meeting on July 17, 2018 at 10am. A complete agenda request packet is attached, to include a Word
version of the resolution in case changes need to be made, and documentation in support of our request to transfer the
2018 private activity bond cap to NRHA.

Bill Brewer, NRHA Deputy Director will be attending the meeting in person to provide a brief presentation on the NRHA
program in support of our request and to answer any questions the board may have. If you prefer that he arrive at a
specific time, please let us know, otherwise he will arrive at the start of the meeting.

Please feel free to contact me if you require any additional information. Please confirm that we have been added to the

Agenda for the Board of Commissioners meeting and thank you for being a great partner to NRHA, which allows us to
serve so many homebuyers across rural Nevada!

Thank you!

Jess Stalnaker

Management Assistant

Nevada Rural Housing Authority
3695 Desatoya Drive

Carson City, NV 89701

Direct: 775-886-7911

Mobile: 775-720-3416

Jess@NVrural.org
HomeAtLastNV.org




HOME N‘e‘:ada} Rural

AT LAST  Housing Authority
D rameAra Ny

Our mission is to promote, provide, and finance affordable housing opportunities for all rural Nevadans!



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 19 June 2018 Estimate of time required: 5-10 min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title:
Review and possibly appoint Joe Curtis, Candace Wheeler, Cherie Nevin, Sierra Scott and
Marshall McBride to sit on the nonprofit board for Pipers Opera House.

2. Recommended motion:
To approve the appointment of Joe Curtis, Candace Wheeler, Cherie Nevin, Sierra Scott
and Marshall McBride to sit on the nonprofit board for Pipers Opera House.
3. Prepared by: Deny Dotson '
Department: VCTC / Pipers Telephone: 775-847-7500
4. Staff summary:
Now that Storey County has purchased and will operate Pipers Opera House as a

preforming arts center, a new board must be established to maintain non-profit status and
grant compliance.

5. Supporting materials: attached

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: Yes
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
X artment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Q% County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

— r——
(S S

Agenda Item No.

14



B A AR A R A AL R R S R A B L R R L L !

SERE R AR ATFRRIEFE G S I IFIREPIEGEGIREF 202

2

S g S

=~
bl
N
S
g

o

FIAFE IR PSS,

f

SFEEEE

FEEFFTISR L FFFESEREFITIESFEFIISG 0TI 850




Piper’s Opera House Programs
Nonprofit Board

~ >

Marshall McBride County Commissioner
Local Business Owner

Joe Curtis Comstock Historic District Board Member
Local Historian

Candace Wheeler Comstock Historic District Board Member
Comstock Cemetery Foundation

Cherie Nevin Storey County Community Relations
Experience Grant Writer — Federal and State

Sierra Scott Nevada Arts Council
Grant Administrator

The above residents, business owners and community allies are
proposed board members for Piper’s Opera House Programs, a
non-profit entity that will assist with grants, marketing,
management and the overall well-being of Piper’s Opera House.




Piper’s Opera House Programs
Nonprofit Board

~CH

Board members are the fiduciaries who steer the organization towards a
sustainable future by adopting sound, ethical, and legal governance and
financial management policies, as well as by making sure the nonprofit has
adequate resources to advance its mission. At a minimum, an annual meeting
must occur with all board members present. Board member positions are not
permanent.

Just as for any corporation, the board of directors has three primary legal duties

known as the “duty of care,” “duty of loyalty,” and “duty of obedience.”

* Duty of Care: Take care of the nonprofit by ensuring prudent use of all assets

 Duty of Loyalty: Ensure that the nonprofit's activities and transactions are,
first and foremost, advancing its mission; Recognize and disclose conflicts of
interest; Make decisions that are in the best interest of the nonprofit
corporation; not in the best interest of the individual board member (or any
other individual or for-profit entity).

* Duty of Obedience: Ensure that the nonprofit obeys applicable laws and
regulations; follows its own bylaws; and that the nonprofit adheres to its
stated corporate purposes/mission.

The goal was to find individuals within the community and region who have
passion and experience that aligns with Piper’s Opera House Programs mission.




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
b /- 3
Meeting date: Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min

Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1. Title: Appointment of Tom Minkler to serve on the Canyon General Improvment District
to fill the unexpired term left vacant by the passing of Ralph Trotter.

2. Recommended motion: Approve the appointment of Tom Minkler as recommended by
the Canyon GID Board.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775-847-0969

4. Staff Summary: Documents from Mitch Andrini are attached.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0
7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Vanessa Steehens

From: Canyon GID <canyongid@att.net>
Sent: Thursday, May 31, 2018 9:32 AM
To: Vanessa Stephens

Subject: Canyon GID Tom Minkler
Attachments: 2018-05-17.doc

Good morning Vanessa.

Mr. Tom Minkler was unanimously approved at the Canyon GID May 17%" Board of Directors meeting to recommend to
the Storey County Commissioners to replace Mr. Ralph Trotter who passed away last month. (See attached agenda item
number 12.) As you Know Mr. Minkler is the only person to run for the Lockwood Community Corporation’s
representative on the Canyon GID Board of Directors. He is a twenty year resident of Lockwood.

We would like to place him on a future SC Agenda and sworn in if the commissioners approve.

Please let me know if there is anything else you need from us, i.e. resume, etc.

Thanks, Mitch.



CANYON GENERAL IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT

Meeting Of The Board Of Trustees
Thursday, May 17, 2018

AGENDA

Time: 6:00 p.m.
Location: Rainbow Bend Clubhouse

12)

13)
14)
15)
16)
17)
18)
19)
20)
21)
22)
23)

Note: Comments during items on the Agenda
May be limited at the discretion of the Chairman of the Board.

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Roll Call :

Discussion/Action -- Approval of Agenda for May 17, 2018.

Discussion/Action — Approval of Minutes for March 21, 2018.

Public Comments for Agenda items only. (These comments have a three-minute time limit per person.)
Discussion/Action — Approval of the Treasurer’s report.

Update — Delinquencies

Discussion/Action — Doug Kyler from Charter Communications will be discussing possible
installation of internet cable in the neighborhood.

Discussion —~ Cercle de la Cerese Bridge update.

Discussion/Action — Edna Cudworth updates the progress on the road design to Lockwood
Community Corp. addresses 44 through 48.

Discussion/Action — Board members vote to recommend Mr. Tom Minkler to replace Mr. Ralph
Trotter’s position on the CGID Board of Directors to the Storey County Commissioners.
Discussion/Action — Purchase new gate for sewer plant.

Begin Final Budget Hearing

Public Comments regarding the final budget for Fiscal Year 2018/2019.

Discussion/ Action — Board votes to approve budget for Fiscal Year 2018/2019.

End Final Budget Hearing

Discussion/Action — Correspondence written to Board Members.

Staff Report — Management & staff will give report on status of daily operations.

Public Comments (These comments have a three-minute time limit per person.)

Board Comments

Update - Next regular meeting date is June 20, 2018.

Action — Adjournment.

NOTE: The Board may from time to time due to prevailing circumstances rearrange and or delete items on the
Agenda during their discussion to approve the Agenda.

NOTE: This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

NOTE: Persons with disabilities who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting should
notify Mitch Andreini at the Canyon G.1.D. at 342-2850.

NOTICE: This notice is posted per NRS 241 at the Largomarsino Fire Station, Rainbow Bend Clubhouse,
Lockwood Community Corp. Office, Lockwood Market and Hillside Elem. School. Copies are also available at
the CGID office at 800 Peri Ranch Rd.




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
- Yy 3™
Meeting date: Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min

Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1.

Title: Canvass of the Primary Election resuits held in and for Storey County, Nevada on
June 12, 2018.

Recommended motion: Approve results as submitted.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: Results will be made availble following the tally on June 12, 2018.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

. Reviewed by:

_@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied : [ ] Continued

# 1




ABSTRACT OF THE VOTE
OF STOREY COUNTY,
STATE OF NEVADA
POLLED AT THE PRIMARY
ELECTION HELD JUNE 12, 2018

Relating to votes cast for Primary Election.

FILED June 13, 2018

STATE OF NEVADA )

) SS.
COUNTY OF STOREY )
I, Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk of said County, do hereby certify the attached to be a
full and correct Statement of the votes cast of said County, polled at the Primary Election
held June 12, 2018. I hereby certify that the whole number of votes cast in said County,
and the whole number of votes for the primary is set forth as the total of each of the
respective columns, as said statements appear entered in the Record of the Proceedings of

the Board of County Commissioners of said County, now in my custody.

Witness by my hand and Official Seal this 13" day of June, 2018.

2AA

Vanessa A. Stephens
Storey County Clerk




Page: 1 of 7 6/12/2018 8:30:55 PM

Storey County Unofficial ALL PRECINCTS- Primary 2018-

Precincts Reported: 16 of 16 (100.00%)
Registered Voters: 1,555 of 3,088 (50.36%)
Ballots Cast: 1,555

UNITED STATES SENATE (DEM) (Vote for 1)
DEM

Precincts Reported: 16 of 16 (100.00%)

Times Cast f 385/718

Burlelgh Danny

Knlght David Drew

‘Mahendra, Suleet “Bobby“ ”

Rhemhan A"en o . . w 13 - 3,53%2
Sbalh Jesse B . 12 3 26%
None OfThese Candldates - ” 60 o 16 30% 
,Tptal Votes | | . 353 R ;

Rosen Jacky

Unresolved erte In 0

UNITED STATES SENATE (REP) (Vote for 1)
REP

Precincts Reported: 16 of 16 (100.00%)

Times ’Cast ‘ ’ 883/ 1,564

Brooks, Sherry 29 | 334%
Gazala, Sarah ’ 21 2.42%%
Harrel}, Vic 8 0.92%
“}Iéék Tom ; 178 2053%

| - s | ;;;6667%“5
None Of oo Cand|dates e e ,,,,,,,,,,,,, S o
o Voo | : e e

HeIIer Dea

o Total

Unresolved Write-In ; 0



Page: 2 of 7 6/12/2018 8:30:55 PM

REP IN CONGRESS DISTRICT 2 (DEM) (Vote for 1)
DEM

Precincts Reported: 16 of 16 (100.00%)

S— e
Rl
e
81 2a40%
24 723%
T e
ST

Shepherd, Rick o 79 | 2380%

Alm Vance

Fogarty, Patnck

Sc ofield Jr JackL

kTotal Votesﬂ

‘Unresolved Wnte In

REP IN CONGRESS DISTRICT 2 (REP) (V ote for 1)
REP

Precincts Reported: 16 of 16 (100.00%)

Times Cast . BB3/1564 S646%

560 | 6734%
e ;...2012%,
e T 0

Unresolved Wnte in

GOVERNOR (DEM) (V ote for 1)
DEM

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

Times Cast

C237%
Dewan, Asheesh ; 6 ©158%!

Glunchlghan( a\)n;tl‘na "Chns
G“ .. . . - . e
Jones Dawd E ' ; k k R 12 | 3 16%
. 3M b 0'79%’

131 3447%

Slsolak Steve

Thorns, Henry

None Of These Candidates 38 1000%
Total Votes

Unresolved Write-In 0



Page: 3 of 7

GOVERNOR (REP) (Vote for 1)
REP

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

Times Cast | 883/1564  5646%

iCandndate e i
BOYd W'”,am "B'” | g Solsiade 30 ; 344%
Carlide, Stephame “ S . 39 4;,48%
‘Conquest Fredean |_ s e o 2 023%
,,Dundas" dw’a"‘,‘d . | et 8 S 5 B — . e

Fisher, Jared L. ; , :
,,Laxalt Adam Paul P S 617 . %6,84%
LLusak San B U P 115%

Schwartz Dan
kNone Of These Candldates
Total Votes

Unreso(ved Wnte In

LIEUTENANT GOVENOR (DEM) (Vote for 1)
DEM

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

Times Cast 385/718 53.62%

Hansen, Laurle L . 12.81%
«MarSha” e e i e o 255 . 6948%
None OfThesetandldates S - 65 : ’17‘.71%
:‘Tma, votes e S 3,67 B

Unresolved erte In

LIEUTENANT GOVENOR (REP) (Vote for 1)
REP

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

Times Cast

Hoover, Eugene 141 3%
9 s 82%
I 6 55%‘;

Jones, Brent A

LaFata, Scott Anthony

Roberson Michael 4 30%
I

~ Total

Unresolved Write-In ‘ : ‘ ’ 0

6/12/2018 8:30:55 PM



Page: 4 of 7

SECRETARY OF STATE (REP) (Vote for 1)
REP

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

ijeg Cast 883 /1,564 : ’56.46%2

(Aldrldge Ernest C

52 64%

kCegavske Barbara K :
15 47%

None Of These Candtdates
Total Vote

Unresolved erte In 0

TREASURER (REP) (V ote for 1)
REP

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

Times Cast - B ‘ 883 /1,564 @ 56.46%.

&)

Beers, Bob ) ’ - | o prpees
'None of These Candldates ’ o | H 139

Unresolved Write-In

ATTORNEY GENERAL (DEM) (Vote for 1)
DEM

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

. T‘m' e
Times Cast ; i ; 385/718  53.62%

Ford, Aaron - a7 59.62%
,MaCKIe Stua}u T
SR candldatesu B Rt
Toatvoes 3 2005%

Unresolved Write-In 0

6/12/2018 8:30:55 PM



Page: S of 7 6/12/2018 8:30:55 PM

ATTORNEY GENERAL (REP) (Vote for 1)
REP

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

56.46%

Duncan Wes 452 53.43%
Mueller Craig 278 32.86%
None Of These Candldates 116 C1371%

Total Votes 3 846

k o ‘; i Tuta| -
’Unresolved Wnte In o ‘ 0

COUNTY COMMISSIONER DISTRICT 2 (REP) (Vote for 1)
REP

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

T&mesCast o o 883/’1‘,56 . 5646%

: - 5384%
McGuffey, Jak , 397 4616%
’Tota| Votes 860

Unresoived Wnte ln

DISTRICT ATTORNEY (REP) (V ote for 1)
REP

Precincts Reported 15 of 15 (100 00%)

Times Cast o 883/1564 56.46%

Total

Langer, Anne ' 458 . 54.14%
Neidert, Dave j 388 45.86%
Total Votes : 846

Unresolved Write-In 0



Page: 6 of 7 6/12/2018 8:30:55 PM

JUSTICE OF THE SUPREME COURT, SEAT C (Vote for 1)

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

Times Cast 1555/3,088  5036%

Aberasturi, Leon ‘ 17.57@
Cadish, Elissa o 333 2322%
Lefebvre, Alan J 91 6.35%
Rutledge, John 02

Tao, Jerry

None Of Thgsﬂe Candidates 27‘34%i

Total Votes

Unresolved Write-In

UNIVERSITY BOARD OF REGENTS, DISTRICT 9 (Vote for 1)

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

1.555/3,088  50.36%

Del Carlo, Carol

| 100.00%

Total Vote

Unresolved Write-In

JUSTICE OF THE PEACE (Vote for 1)

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

Times Cast 50.36%:

1,288 100.00%:
1,288

Herrington, Eileen F.

Total Votes

Unresolved Write-In , 0




Page: 7 of 7

SHERIFF (Vote for 1)

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

| 1555/3088  5036%

Times Cast

«

: U ol 3334%,
Clark, Bruce 42 2.72%

Cullen, Mlke ‘ 678 43.94%
Total Votes 1,543

Antinoro, Gerald

Unresolved Write-In 0 ;

SCHOOL BOARD, SEAT 2-B (Vote for 1)

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

1(555 /3,088 ‘ 50.36%

Times Cast

Miller, Dawn B 1,262 . 100.00%
Total Votes § 1,262

Unresolved Write-In

SCHOOL BOARD, SEAT 1-C (Vote for 1)

Precincts Reported: 15 of 15 (100.00%)

Times Cast

Thompson, Tom
Total Votes

Unresolved Write-In

6/12/2018 8:30:55 PM



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 19, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda:- Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Transfer of Funds from the 474 FIRE DISTRICT to the STOREY COUNTY
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

2. Recommended motion: I approve Resolution |Z—‘_¥3( ) which transfers funds from the
474 Fire District to the Storey County Community Development Department in the
amount of $195,000.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller | Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Transfer Budgeted funds due to the transfer of employees/inspection
duties from the 474 Fire District to Community Development

5. Supporting materials: Resolution
6. Fiscal impact: yes
Funds Available: Fund: ALL #/ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

V%\ynment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
RN County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

-
e ]

Agenda Item No. | 8



RESOLUTION #

RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER FUNDS FROM THE 474 FIRE DISTRICT to THE STOREY
COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Whereas, the total Transfer of Funds from the 474 Fire District to the Storey County
Community Development Department is to be $195,000 and;

WHEREAS, the total DECREASE to available resources budgeted in 474 Fire District from
is $5,933,615 to $5,738,615 and;

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Comptroller’s Office shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _19™ of June, 2018.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 19, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Augment 474 FIRE DISTRICT - MUTUAL AIDE

2. Recommended motion: I approve Resolution \?‘4(3&2 which Augments 474 Fire
District Mutual Aide in the amount of $405,000 pursuant to NRS 354.598005

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Mutual Aide is an in/out account no funds were budgeted FY 2017-2018

S. Supporting materials: Resolution

6. Fiscal impact: yes

Funds Available: Fund: ALL A Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
A Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

=)
S

Agenda Item No. lO‘



RESOLUTION #

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2017-2018 BUDGET OF 474 FIRE DISTRICT MUTUAL
AID FUND

Whereas, total resources of the 474 FIRE DISTRICT MUTUAL AIDE FUND were budgeted
to be $0.00 on July 1, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be $405,000 WHEREAS,
said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:

Salaries $200,000
Benefits S 30,000
Service & Supplies S 50,000
Capital Outlay $125,000

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the STOREY COUNTY
JUSTICE COURT FUND

Now, therefore it is here by RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its 2017-2018
budget by appropriating $405,000, thereby increasing its appropriations for the
MUTUAL AID from $0.00 TO $405,000. A detailed schedule is attached to this
Resolution and by reference is made a part thereof

IT IS FUTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Comptroller’s Office shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _19™ of June, 2018.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk



NRS 354.598005 Procedures and requirements for augmenting or amending a budget

_ If available resources (unanticipated or higher Beginning fund Balance) exceed those budgeted for:
a) Funds receiving ad valorem must PUBLISH a notice for 3 days and need a RESOLUTION
b) Funds not receiving ad valorem and enterprise funds just need a RESOLUTION, no publish

5) Appropriations may be TRANSFERRED between FUNCTIONS, FUNDS & CONTINGENCY accounts
if the transfer does not increase the total appropriations
a) (comptroiler) may transfer appropriations within any function
b) (comptrolier)may transfer appropriations between functions and programs if:
1) BOC is advised at next regular meeting
2) ACTION is recorded in minutes
c) (comptroiler) may recommend and BOC authorize TRANSFER of appropriations BETWEEN
FUNDS or CONTINGENCY if:
1) BOC announces at next regular meeting and sets EXACT AMOUNTS to be transferred and
affected the accounts, functions and programs and funds affected
2) BOX set forth the reasons
3) Action is recorded in the minutes

IFire District Mutual Aide (270)
$ 405,000.00 Higher than anticipated Revenue
Salaries-Regular
Salaries-Overtime
Benefits -PERS
Benefits -PACT
Benefits -Health Insur

S 5,000 270-270-51010
S 195,000 270-270-51011
S 1,500 270-270-52010
S 7,000 270-270-52011 $ 30,000
S 14,500 270-270-52012
Benefits -Medicare S 4,000 270-270-52013
Benefits -Social Security S 3,000 270-270-52014
S&S-Office supplies S 2,000 270-270-53011 $ 50,000
S&S-Travel S 8,000 270-270-53013
S&S-Gas & Diesel S 7,000 270-270-53040
S&S-Tires S 2,000 270-270-53041
S&S-Equipment Maint S 15,000 270-270-53058
S&S-Professional Services S 13,000 270-270-53070
S&S Ambulance Supplies S 3,000 270-270-54308
Capital Outlay S 125,000 270-270-54010

$ 405,000 $ 405,000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 19, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Transfer of Funds from the STOREY COUNTY CONTINGENCY FUND to the
PIPERS OPERA HOUSE FUND

2. Recommended motion: I approve Resolution |£-44| which transfers funds from the
Storey County Contingency Fund to Piper’s Opera House in the amount of $67,000.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006
4. Staff summary: As Piper’s Fund was established during the 2017-2018 budget year no funds
were budgeted for expenses
5. Supporting materials: Resolution
6. Fiscal impact: yes
Funds Available: Fund: ALL % Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

%N‘/M'Dep ent Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
@ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
M

Agenda Item No. 2 )



RESOLUTION #

RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER FUNDS FROM THE 2017-2018 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY
GENERAL CONTINGENCY FUND USING THE ADMIN TRANSFER ACCOUNT TO THE
PIPERS OPERA HOUSE FUND

WHEREAS, the total available resources budgeted in Storey County Contingency Fund is
$401,300 as of July 1, 2017 and;

Whereas, the total Transfer of Funds from the Storey County Contingency Fund to
Piper’s Opera House is to be $67,000 and distributed as follows:

Salaries $ 23,000
Benefits $ 9,000
Service & Supplies $ 35,000

Now, therefore it is here by RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its 2017-18
budget by appropriating $67,000 to a Transfer of Funds to the Piper’s Opera House
thereby increasing appropriations for Piper’s Opera House from $0 TO $67,000. A
detailed schedule is attached to this Resolution and by reference is made a part thereof

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Comptroller’s Office shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _19" _of June, 2018.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk



_ if available resources (unanticipated or higher Beginning fund Balance) exceed those budgeted for:
a) Funds receiving ad valorem must PUBLISH a notice for 3 days and need a RESOLUTION
b) Funds not receiving ad valorem and enterprise funds just need a RESOLUTION, no publish

5) Appropriations may be TRANSFERRED between FUNCTIONS, FUNDS & CONTINGENCY accounts
if the transfer does not increase the total appropriations
a) (comptroller) may transfer appropriations within any function
b) (comptroller)may transfer appropriations between functions and programs if:
1) BOC is advised at next regular meeting
2) ACTION is recorded in minutes
€) (comptroiler) may recommend and BOC authorize TRANSFER of appropriations BETWEEN
FUNDS or CONTINGENCY if:
1) BOC announces at next regular meeting and sets EXACT AMOUNTS to be transferred and
affected the accounts, functions and programs and funds affected
2) BOX set forth the reasons
3) Action is recorded in the minutes

TRANSFERS between Funds
[Fund 001 General |
S 67,000 Transfer out from Contingency (57200)to Plper's

500 231-231-53033
1,500 231-231-53057
3,000 231-231-53060
5,000 231-231-53070

10,500 231-231-53609

S&S-Computer Equip
S&S-Bldg Maint
S&S-special Events
S&S-Professionai Srv
S&S-Social Media

Salaries S 23,000 231-231-51010
Benefits-PERS S 4,000 231-231-52010
Benefits-PACT S 1,500 231-231-52011
Benefits-Health Ins S 2,500 231-231-52012
Benefits-Medicare S 500 231-231-52013
Benefits-Social Sec S 500 231-231-52014
S&S-Postage S 500 231-231-53010
S&S-Office Supplies S 400 231-231-53011
S&S-Telephone S 600 231-231-53012
S&S-Equip Maint $ 3,000 231-231-53016
S&S-Utilities S 10,000 231-231-53022

S

S

$

$

$

$ 67,000 PAGE TOTALS $ 67,000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 19, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

8.

Mnty Manager Other agency review:

9.

. Title: Augment STOREY COUNTY GENERAL FUND and transfer to STOREY COUNTY

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

. Recommended motion: I approve Resolution 1¥-4({.] which AUGMENTS Storey

County General Fund and TRANSFERS $2,000,000 to Storey County Capital
Projects Fund pursuant to NTS 354.598005

. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff

Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

. Staff summary: Higher than anticipated Ad Valorem transferring to Capital Projects
. Supporting materials: Resolution

. Fiscal impact: yes

Funds Available: Fund: ALL féz Comptroller
. Legal review required:
District Attorney
Reviewed by:
241 Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Board action:
[ Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

[

Agenda Item No. 7 7



RESOLUTION #
RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2017-2018 STOREY COUNTY CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Whereas, total resources of the STOREY COUNTY GENERAL FUND were budgeted to be
$13,773,617 on July 1, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be $15,773,617; and
WHEREAS, said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:
Ad Valorem $2,000,000

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the STOREY COUNTY
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND;

Now, therefore it is here by RESOLVED, that Storey County shall transfer the 2017-2018
excess resource by transferring $2,000,000, thereby increasing appropriations for the
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND from $1,550,200 TO $3,550,200. A detailed schedule is
attached to this Resolution and by reference is made a part thereof

IT IS FUTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Comptroller’s Office shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _19" of June, 2018.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk



- If available resources (unanticipated or higher Beginning fund Balance) exceed those budgeted
a) Funds receiving ad valorem must PUBLISH a notice for 3 days and need a RESOLUTIC
b) Funds not receiving ad valorem and enterprise funds just need a RESOLUTION, no publi

5) Appropriations may be TRANSFERRED between FUNCTIONS, FUNDS & CONTINGENCY acc
if the transfer does not increase the total appropriations
a) (comptrolier) may transfer appropriations within any function
b) (comptrolier)ymay transfer appropriations between functions and programs if:
1) BOC is advised at next regular meeting
2) ACTION is recorded in minutes
c) (comptrolier) may recommend and BOC authorize TRANSFER of appropriations BETWE
FUNDS or CONTINGENCY if:
1) BOC announces at next regular meeting and sets EXACT AMOUNTS to be transferrec
affected the accounts, functions and programs and funds affected
2) BOX set forth the reasons
3) Action is recorded in the minutes

IGeneral (001) to Capital Projects Fund (070)

$ 2,000,000 Transfer from General Higher than Anticapated Revenue

Capital Outlay $ 1,000,000 070-070-54010
Capital Qutlay -Tyler S 500,000 070-070-54101-280
Capital Outlay -Devnet S 500,000 070-070-54101-281

$ 2,000,000 PAGE TOTALS $ 2,000,000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 19, 2018 Estimate of time required: 20 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Transfer of Appropriations in the General Budget

2. Recommended motion: I approve the transfers of appropriations within General Fund
Departments and Special Revenue Funds pursuant to NRS 354.59800S5 in the
amount of $640,500

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4, Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for transferring appropriations.

5. Supporting materials: Spreadsheet of proposed transfers detailing affected funds, functions,
and transferred amounts

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: ALL % Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Degpartment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[
[R—y——

Agenda Item No.



NRS 354.598005 Procedures and requirements for augmenting or amending a budget

- If available resources (unanticipated or higher Beginning fund Balance) exceed those budgeted for:
a) Funds receiving ad valorem must PUBLISH a notice for 3 days and need a RESOLUTION
b) Funds not receiving ad valorem and enterprise funds just need a RESOLUTION, no publish

5) Appropriations may be TRANSFERRED between FUNCTIONS, FUNDS & CONTINGENCY accounts
if the transfer does not increase the total appropriations
a) (comptroller) may transfer appropriations within any function
b) (comptroller)ymay transfer appropriations between functions and programs if:
1) BOC is advised at next regular meeting
2) ACTION is recorded in minutes
¢) (comptroller) may recommend and BOC authorize TRANSFER of appropriations BETWEEN
FUNDS or CONTINGENCY if:
1) BOC announces at next regular meeting and sets EXACT AMOUNTS to be transferred and
affected the accounts, functions and programs and funds affected
2) BOX set forth the reasons
3) Action is recorded in the minutes

Summary of Transfers in General

Page Totals
Page 2 337,500.00 Transfers from Contingency
Page 3 114,500.00 Transfers within a Department between Objects
Page 4 10,000.00 Transfers within a Department between Objects
Page 5 178,500.00 Transfers between Departments and Objects

640,500.00

Transfers 2017-18 Fiscal Year

1



Transfers from Contingency

{Fund 001 General |

S 337,500 from Contingency (57900) to Com Dev (109), General Transfers OQut

Com Dev (109) $ 12,000  001-109-53029
S 1,500 001-109-53034
S 8,000  001-109-53040
S 2,500  001-109-53041
$ 27,000 001-109-53070
$ 11,000  001-109-53071
Transfer Out to Sewer S
$

Transfer Out to Pipers

$ 337,500 PAGE TOTALS $ 337,500

Training

Computer Software
Fuel

Tires

Professional Services

208,500 001-105-57200-xxx Transfer Out to Sewer
67,000 001-105-57200-xxx Transfer Qut to Pipers

Transfers 2017-18 Fiscal Year

2



Transfers within a Department between Objects

|[Fund 001 General - Administrative (105) | |
S 50,000 Service & Supplies (53401) to Salaries & Benefits

S 26,000 001-105-51010  Salaries
Benefits S 2,000 001-105-52010 PERS
S 5,500 001-105-52012  Health Insurance
S 5,500 001-105-52014 Social Security
$ 11,000 001-105-52016 Retiree Health Benefits
S 50,000 $ 50,000
{Fund 001 General - Buildings & Grounds (106) I
S 15,000 Capital Outlay (54409) to Service & Supplies
Service & Supplies S 10,000 - 001-106-53071  Adverse Labor Relations
S 5,000 001-106-53022 Utilities
$ 15,000 $ 15,000
{Fund 001 General - Sheriff (107) |
S 40,000 Salaries (51010) to Benefits and Service & Supplies
Benefits S 10,000 001-107-52010-100 PERS - Corrections
S 15,000 001-107-52011 PACT
Service & Supplies S 15,000 001-107-53401 Garnisments
S 40,000 $ 40,000
|[Fund 001 General - Health & Human (114) ]
) 1,000 Service & Supplies (53045) to Benefits
Benefits S 1,000 001-114-52012  Health Insurance
S 1,000 S 1,000
[Fund 001 General - Communications (117)] l
Service & Supplies to Salaries
S 3,000 001-117-53016
$ 6,000 001-117-53027
S 9,000 001-117-51011 Salaries- Overtime
$ 9,000 S 9,000

[Fund 001 General - Emergency Mgt (142) |

S 500 Benefits (52012) to Salaries

S 500 001-142-51010  Salaries (51010)
$ 500 $ 500
S 114,500 PAGE TOTALS $ 114,500

Transfers 2017-18 Fiscal Year



Transfers within a Department between Objects Continued

[Fund 001 General - Planning (143) |

) 1,000 Salaries
S 1,000 001-143-52012  Health Insurance
$ 1,000 $ 1,000
{Fund 001 General - District Attorney (111)}
S 9,000 Professional Services (53070)
DA S 4,000 001-111-51010 Salaries
S 5,000 001-111-52012  Health insurance
$ 9,000 $ 9,000
$ 10,000 PAGE TOTALS $ 10,000

Transfers 2017-18 Fiscal Year 4



Transfers between Departments and Objects

[Fund 001 General - District Attorney (111)|

1

001-102-51010
001-102-52010
001-102-52012
001-102-56530
001-105-52010
001-107-54303
001-107-56602
001-112-54245
001-113-53029
001-121-52012
001-121-53070
001-143-53070

) 178,500 Professional Services {(53070) to Various Departments
Clerk/Treasurer (102) S 20,000
S 6,000
S 14,000
S 40,000
Admin (105) S 6,800
Sheriff (107) $ 5,000
S 5,200
District Court (112) S 38,500
Justice Court (113) S 3,000
Comptroller (121) S 5,000
S 15,000
Planning (143) S 20,000
S 178,500 PAGE TOTALS $ 178,500

Salaries

PERS

Health Ins

Refunds

PERS

Coroner's Office
Insurance Deductible
Public Defender
Training

Benefits

Professional Services
Professional Services

Transfers 2017-18 Fiscal Year

5



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 19, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Augmentation of the Storey County Justice Court Fund

2. Recommended motion: I approve Resolution \8 "d\(j 2 which accepts the
Augmentation for the Storey County Justice Court Fund pursuant to NRS
354.598005 in the amount of $7000.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for augmenting budgets
S. Supporting materials: Resolution and supporting schedules

6. Fiscal impact: yes
Funds Available: Fund: ALL % Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Dep ent Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

HX
@ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

— p—
e b

Agenda Item No. 24



RESOLUTION #

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2017-2018 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY JUSTICE
COURT FUND

Whereas, total resources of the STOREY COUNTY JUSTICE COURT FUND were budgeted
to be $17,000 on July 1, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be $31,000 WHEREAS,
said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:

JOP Admin Assessment $ 5000
JOP Court Facility $ 9000

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the STOREY COUNTY
JUSTICE COURT FUND

Now, therefore it is here by RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its 2017-2018
budget by appropriating $7000, thereby increasing its appropriations for the JUSTICE
COURT FUND from $17,000 TO $24,000. A detailed schedule is attached to this
Resolution and by reference is made a part thereof

IT IS FUTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Comptroller’s Office shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _19™ _of June, 2018.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk



- If available resources (unanticipated or higher Beginning fund Balance) exceed those budgeted for:
a) Funds receiving ad valorem must PUBLISH a notice for 3 days and need a RESOLUTION
b) Funds not receiving ad valorem and enterprise funds just need a RESOLUTION, no publish

5) Appropriations may be TRANSFERRED between FUNCTIONS, FUNDS & CONTINGENCY accounts
if the transfer does not increase the total appropriations
a) (comptroller) may transfer appropriations within any function
b) (comptroller)may transfer appropriations between functions and programs if:
1) BOC is advised at next regular meeting
2) ACTION is recorded in minutes
c¢) (comptroller) may recommend and BOC authorize TRANSFER of appropriations BETWEEN
FUNDS or CONTINGENCY if:
1) BOC announces at next regular meeting and sets EXACT AMOUNTS to be transferred and
affected the accounts, functions and programs and funds affected
2) BOX set forth the reasons
3) Action is recorded in the minutes

IJustice Court Fund (187) ‘

S 5,000 187-000-35104 JOP Admin Assessment
S 2,000 187-000-35111 JOP Court Facility
S&S - Furniture & Fixtures S 7,000 187-187-53034
187-187-53035

S 7,000 PAGE TOTALS $ 7,000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 19, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

[o—

. Title: Augmentation of the Storey County Indigent Fund

2. Recommended motion: I approve Resolution [2’—4014 which accepts the
Augmentation for the Storey County Indigent Fund pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in

the amount of $5500.
3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006
4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for augmenting budgets
S. Supporting materials: Resolution and supporting schedules

6. Fiscal impact: yes

Funds Available: Fund: ALL & Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Went Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
@\ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

e b

Agenda Item No. 2_6



RESOLUTION #
RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2017-2018 BUDGET OF STOREY INDIGENT FUND

Whereas, total resources of the STOREY COUNTY INDIGENT FUND were budgeted to be
$72,621 on July 1, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be $81,621 WHEREAS,
said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:

Ad Valorem — Assessor $6000
State Centrally Assessed $3000

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the STOREY COUNTY
INDIGENT FUND;

Now, therefore it is here by RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its 2017-2018
budget by appropriating $5,500, thereby increasing its appropriations for the INDIGENT
FUND from $72,711 TO $78,711. A detailed schedule is attached to this Resolution and
by reference is made a part thereof

IT 1S FUTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Comptroller’s Office shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _19™ of June, 2018.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk



I ' available resources (unanticipated or higher Beginning fund Balance) exceed those budgeted for:
a) Funds receiving ad valorem must PUBLISH a notice for 3 days and need a RESOLUTION
b) Funds not receiving ad valorem and enterprise funds just need a RESOLUTION, no publish

5) Appropriations may be TRANSFERRED between FUNCTIONS, FUNDS & CONTINGENCY accounts
if the transfer does not increase the total appropriations
a) (comptroller) may transfer appropriations within any function
b) (comptrollerymay transfer appropriations between functions and programs if:
1) BOC is advised at next reguiar meeting
2) ACTION is recorded in minutes
¢) (comptroller) may recommend and BOC authorize TRANSFER of appropriations BETWEEN
FUNDS or CONTINGENCY if:
1) BOC announces at next regular meeting and sets EXACT AMOUNTS to be transferred and
affected the accounts, functions and programs and funds affected
2) BOX set forth the reasons
3) Action is recorded in the minutes

Ilndigent Fund (185) ‘

S 5,500 185-000-31101
S&S-Indigent Accident S 5,500 185-185-53046

S 5,500 PAGE TOTALS $ 5,500




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 19, 20178 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. 1. Title: Acceptance of a transfer of funds from the 474 FIRE DISTRICT to the
STOREY COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT and
distributions as recommended

2. Recommended motion: I approve the acceptance of funds transferred from the 474 Fire
District in the amount of $195,000 to Storey County Community Development and
the Comptroller’s recommendations on distribution of funds pursuant to NRS
354.598005

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff

Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for augmenting budgets

S. Supporting materials: Resolution and supporting schedules

6. Fiscal impact: yes

Funds Available: Fund: ALL 4. Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
% epartment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
C/_j\ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

P -
e

Agenda Item No. 7 (,



RESOLUTION #

RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM THE 474 FIRE DISTRICT TO
STOREY COUNTY GENERAL FUND TO increase STOREY COUNTY COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT'’S 2017-2018 BUDGET

Whereas, the total Transfer of Funds from the 474 Fire District to Storey County
Community Development Department is to be $195,000 and;

WHEREAS, the total INCREASE to available resources budgeted in Storey County
Community Development Department from is $723,862 to $918,862 and distributed as
follows;

Salaries S 155,000
Benefits S 40,000

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Comptroller’s Office shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _19" of June, 2018.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk



474 Fire District
NRS 354.598005 Procedures and requirements for augmenting or amending a budget

- If available resources (unanticipated or higher Beginning fund Balance) exceed those budgeted for:
a) Funds receiving ad valorem must PUBLISH a notice for 3 days and need a RESOLUTION
b) Funds not receiving ad valorem and enterprise funds just need a RESOLUTION, no publish

5) Appropriations may be TRANSFERRED between FUNCTIONS, FUNDS & CONTINGENCY accounts
if the transfer does not increase the total appropriations
a) (comptroller) may transfer appropriations within any function
b) (comptroller)may transfer appropriations between functions and programs if:
1) BOC is advised at next regular meeting
2) ACTION is recorded in minutes
¢) (comptroller) may recommend and BOC authorize TRANSFER of appropriations BETWEEN
FUNDS or CONTINGENCY if:
1) BOC announces at next reguiar meeting and sets EXACT AMOUNTS to be transferred and
affected the accounts, functions and programs and funds affected
2) BOX set forth the reasons
3) Action is recorded in the minutes

TRANSFERS between Funds

|Fire District (250) to Com Dev (109) | 1
$ 195,000 Salaries (51010} to Com Dev Salaries & Benefits
Community Development S 155,000 001-109-51010 Salaries

S 40,000 001-109-52010 PERS

$ 195,000 $ 195,000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 19, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: Acceptance of a transfer of funds from the STOREY COUNTY CONTINGENCY
FUND to the VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER and distributions as recommended

2. Recommended motion: I approve the acceptance of funds transferred from Storey
County Contingency in the amount of $208,500 into the Virginia Divide Sewer Fund
and the Comptroller’s recommendations on distribution of funds pursuant to NRS
354.598005

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for transferring appropriations.

5. Supporting materials: Resolution and supporting schedules

6. Fiscal impact: yes

Funds Available: Fund: ALL Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
"L ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e ——
] Lo

Agenda Item No. o’)q



RESOLUTION #

RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM THE STOREY COUNTY GENERAL
CONTINGENCY TO THE VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER and INCREASE THE VIRGINIA DIVIDE
SEWER 2017-2018 BUDGET

Whereas, the total Transfer of Funds from the Storey County Contingency Fund to
Virginia Divide Sewer is to be $208,500 and; distributed as follows:

WHEREAS, the total INCREASE to available resources budgeted in Virginia Divide Sewer
from is $382,000 to $590,500 and distributed as follows;

Salaries S 12,000
Benefits S 7,000
Capital Outlay $189,500

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Comptroller’s Office shall reflect the
applicable changes in the next QES report to the Department of Taxation

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _19™ of June, 2018.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk



- If available resources (unanticipated or higher Beginning fund Balance) exceed those budgeted for:
a) Funds receiving ad valorem must PUBLISH a notice for 3 days and need a RESOLUTION

b) Funds not receiving ad valorem and enterprise funds just need a RESOLUTION, no publish

5) Appropriations may be TRANSFERRED between FUNCTIONS, FUNDS & CONTINGENCY accounts
if the transfer does not increase the total appropriations
a) (comptroller) ma)f transfer appropriations within any function
b) (comptrollerymay transfer appropriations between functions and programs if:
1) BOC is advised at next regular meeting
2) ACTION is recorded in minutes
c) (comptroller) may recommend and BOC authorize TRANSFER of appropriations BETWEEN
FUNDS or CONTINGENCY if:
1) BOC announces at next regular meeting and sets EXACT AMOUNTS to be transferred and
affected the accounts, functions and programs and funds affected
2) BOX set forth the reasons
3) Action is recorded in the minutes

Transfer from General Contingency
{virginia City Sewer Enterprise Fund |

S 280,500 From General Contingency
Salaries
Benefits-Health Ins
Capital Outlay - USDA
Capital Outlay - GH Septic

12,000 130-130-51010
7,000 130-130-52012
132,000 130-130-57202-139

57,500 130-130-54016-145

v N n n

S 280,500 PAGE TOTALS $ 208,500




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 19, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Transfer of Funds from the STOREY COUNTY CONTINGENCY FUND to the
VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER

2. Recommended motion: I approve Resolution | g-—éﬂs which transfers funds from the
Storey County Contingency Fund to the Virginia Divide Sewer in the amount of
$208,500 pursuant to NRS 354.598005

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: *USDA Loan was finalized after the 2017-18 budget was approved.
* Funds for emergency repairs to the GH septic system.

5. Supporting materials: Resolution
6. Fiscal impact: yes

Funds Available: Fund: ALL Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

( F\;\/County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

= —
el bemd

Agenda Item No._27)



RESOLUTION #

RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER FUNDS FROM THE 2017-2018 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY
GENERAL CONTINGENCY FUND USING THE ADMIN TRANSFER ACCOUNT TO THE
VIRGINIA CITY SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

WHEREAS, the total available resources budgeted in Storey County Contingency is
$401,300 as of July 1, 2017 and;

Whereas, the total Transfer of Funds from the Storey County Contingency Fund to
Virginia City Sewer Enterprise Fund is to be $208,500 and distributed as follows:

Salaries $ 12,000
Benefits S 7,000
Capital Outlay $189,500

Now, therefore it is here by RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its 2017-18
budget by appropriating $208,500.00 to a Transfer of Funds to the Virginia Divide
Sewer, thereby increasing appropriations for the Virginia Divide Sewer from $359,332
TO $567,832. A detailed schedule is attached to this Resolution and by reference is
made a part thereof

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Comptroller’s Office shall forward the
necessary documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _19" of June, 2018.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 19, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent | | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Transfer of Appropriations in the Storey County Water Fund

2. Recommended motion: I approve the transfers of appropriations within the Storey County
Water Fund pursuant to NRS 354.598005 in the amount of $52,000

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for transferring appropriations.

5. Supporting materials: Spreadsheet of proposed transfers detailing affected funds, functions,
and amounts

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: ALL AZ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
“¥% Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
< ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[re— pr—
[ R -

Agenda Item No. (")



Storey County Water Fund (090)
Transfers within a Fund between Objects

|water Fund 090 |
Capital Outlay to Salaries & Benefits
$ 48,000 54107
$ 4,000 54404
Salaries S 37,000 090-090-51010
Benefits S 15,000 090-090-52012

$ 52,000 $ 52,000




- If available resources (unanticipated or higher Beginning fund Balance) exceed those budgeted for:
a) Funds receiving ad valorem must PUBLISH a notice for 3 days and need a RESOLUTION
b) Funds not receiving ad valorem and enterprise funds just need a RESOLUTION, no publish

5) Appropriations may be TRANSFERRED between FUNCTIONS, FUNDS & CONTINGENCY accounts
if the transfer does not increase the total appropriations
a) (comptroller) may transfer appropriations within any function
b) (comptroller)may transfer appropriations between functions and programs if:
1) BOC is advised at next regular meeting
2) ACTION is recorded in minutes
c) (comptroller) may recommend and BOC authorize TRANSFER of appropriations BETWEEN
FUNDS or CONTINGENCY if:
1) BOC announces at next regular meeting and sets EXACT AMOUNTS to be transferred and
affected the accounts, functions and programs and funds affected
2) BOX set forth the reasons
3) Action is recorded in the minutes

Storey County Water Fund (090)
Transfers within a Fund between Objects

[Water Fund 090 )
Capital Outlay to Salaries & Benefits
S 48,000 54107
S 4,000 54404
Salaries $ 37,000 090-090-51010
Benefits S 15,000 090-090-52012

$ 52,000 $ 52,000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: 6/19/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for On-Sale, Off-Sale & Cabaret for Bonanza Saloon, 27 N C St, Virginia
Clty, NV 89440. Apphcant is Vincent Malfitano.

2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve the first reading for On-Sale, Off-Sale &
Cabaret for Bonanza Saloon, 27 N C St, Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Vincent
Malfitano.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: First reading for On-Sale, Off-Sale & Cabaret for Bonanza Saloon, 27 N C St,
Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Vincent Malfitano.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro

@@mty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

1
[y —

Agenda Item No. 7).



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: 6/19/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for On-Sale, Off-Sale & Cabaret for Delta Saloon 18 S C St, Virginia City,
NV 89440. Applicant is Vincent Malfitano.

2. Recommended motion: I motion to approve the first reading for On-Sale, Off-Sale &
Cabaret for Delta Saloon 18 S C St, Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Vincent
Malfitano.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant

Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: First reading for On-Sale, Off-Sale & Cabaret for Delta Saloon 18 S C St,
Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Vincent Malfitano.

S. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
X  Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro

( —= g‘_‘,C/MntyManager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

—

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
—_—

Agenda Item No. 24



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

6-19-18
Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field

Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4, Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the
Commission Meeting, The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new

business license holder.

S. Supporting materials: Sce attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review ;egqired:

___ _District Attomey

Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
(] Approved
(] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—
[E—

Agenda [tem No. &5



Storep County Community Development
Buginess @l Lirensing

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 « mfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office June 11, 2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the June 19, 2018 COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

JACKSON QUALITY DRYWALL - Contractor / 1560 Willow Cr Ln ~ Gardnerville, NV
APOLLO CONSTRUCTION, INC - Contractor / 1133 W. Columbia Dr ~ Kennewick, WA
EDGE COMMUNICATION INC - Contractor / 2955 Hwy 40 W. ~ Verdi, NV
HENKEL - General / 32100 Stephenson Hwy ~ Madison Heights, MI
CLIMATE PROS OF NORTHERN NV — Contractor / 10090 Orchard Hill De ~ Reno, NV
RELEVATE, LLC — General / 2161 W. Enfield Way ~ Chandler, AZ
TIM BLAKELY IMAGING SOLUTIONS - Home Business / 2090 Lousetown Rd ~ VCH, NV
AIR TREATMENT CORP — General / 640 N. Puente St ~ Brea, CA
PRECISION MANHOLES, INC — Contractor/ 770 E. Main St #321 ~ Lehi, UT
PACIFIC CONSOLIDATED OF NV INC — General / 2615 Branson Ave ~ Plano, TX
GQS - GLOBAL QUALITY SUPPLY LLC — General / 333 H. St Ste. 5024 ~ Chula Vista, CA
RICKS AEC REPROGRAPHICS — General / 488 Kictzke Ln ~ Reno, NV

. CRYSATL BARHAM - Handyman / 234 Prospector Rd ~ Dayton, NV
A & A TOWING, INC - General / 1395 E. 4" St ~ Reno, NV

. MECHATECH INC- General / 435-1 Fuzinomori ~ Hikone-Shi, Japan

LELY TANK AND WASTE SOLUTIONS, LLC / General — 3033 Waltham ~ Sparks, NV

. ARC HEALTH & WELLNESS CNT — General / 82 E. Glendale ~ Reno, NV

ARC WORK PLACE SVC, LLC- General / 82 E. Glendale ~ Reno, NV

ALFA LAVAL INC - General / 5400 International Trade Dr ~ Richmond, VA

APPLIED ENGINEERING INC - General / 3300 Fiechtner Dr ~ Fargo, ND

CENTURY PLASTICS LLC - General / 15030 23 Mi Rd ~ Shelby Twp, MI

. CYBERTROL ENGINEERING LLC - General /2950 Xenium Ln ~ Mpls, MN

W ELECTRICAL SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 2710 Valley View Dr ~ Reno, NV

X. MK NORTH AMERICA, INC — General / 105-125 Highland PK Dr ~ Bloomfield, CT

Y. PFM INTEGRATORS INC- General / 2726 Autumn Woods Dr ~ Chaska, MN

Z. AMUNDSON ROQFING INC- Contractor / 8995 Terabyte Dr ~ Reno, NV

AA. SAFETY ON SITE - General / 316 California Ave ~ Reno, NV

BB. NAISBITT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 4 Hardy Dr ~ Sparks, NV

CCHPROTNOZEINASTZOTIETOR P

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office ‘ Comptroller’s Office



